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In 2016, we extended our reach across the country, to better serve
our customers. Our presence has now been established in every
industry, which indicates clearly, our commitment to progress and in
reaching a leading position as a sought after general insurance solutions
provider.
The year ended in successive achievements with our goals for the year
being pursued consistently. Our branch expansion now makes us the
insurance provider with the 3rd largest network reach in the country,
with 50 branches across each and every province of the country.
We are proud of our service offering, enhanced by our
expanding network reach, which gives us a key advantage
in providing convenience and customer care, to
customers in urban and rural settings and in
the farthest corners of the country.
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Who we are
The Co-operative Insurance Company Limited (CICL) has the unique distinction of being the largest co-operative sector owned
insurance company in Sri Lanka. As at end 2016, 201 co-operative federations/societies owned 99.9% of CICL. These cooperatives
represent 305 multi-purpose co-operatives and 2,227 rural banks, scattered across the island. The individual co-operative
members, numbering over 8.02 million men and women, are engaged in a range of micro and small to medium scale economic
activities in agriculture, fisheries, trading and services.

....................................................................................................................

4

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

History & Milestones
CICL is the brainchild of the then Chairman of the Co-operative Council
of Sri Lanka, Mr Lionel Samarasinghe, and was originally incorporated
by the Co-operative movement in 1994, as an agent of the National
Insurance Cooperation, to provide insurance products and services
to Co-operative societies, and their members. As community based,
and largely rural entities, the Co-operative sector was not viewed as
a viable market by traditional insurance services providers. Therefore,
CICL’s primary mandate, at that time, was to support the Co-operative
movement by providing safety nets for the risks faced by Co-operative
members. In 1998, with the deregulation of the insurance sector, CICL
was registered as a private limited liability company and was licensed
by the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka (IBSL) to operate as an insurance
services provider.

Since then, CICL has gradually extended its operational scope beyond
the Co-operative sector, by providing insurance products and services
to people and businesses outside the Co-operative movement. Since
2015, over 50% of CICL’s general insurance customer base is made up
of clients from outside the Co-operative movement.
Following compliance with regulatory changes to segregate the
general and life insurance businesses, in January 2015, CICL became
the holding company, with 100% ownership, of the life insurance
subsidiary Cooplife Insurance Ltd. CICL continues to operate the
general insurance business.

Annual Report
Compliance Award
2015

Awarded compliance certificate for the
year 2015 Annual Report at the Annual
Report Awards organised by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

....................................................................................................................
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Vision & Mission
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2016 Group

2015 Group

Change %

Total Gross Written Premium (Rs. '000)

2,940,073

2,216,622

33%

Assets Under Management (Rs. '000)

5,199,489

4,291,601

21%

Net Assets (Rs. '000)

1,683,745

1,586,642

6%

Profit before Taxation (Rs. '000)

161,876

203,069

-20%

Profit after Taxation (Rs. '000)

129,373

149,512

-13%

Earnings Per Share

1.20

1.49

-19%

Life Fund (Rs. '000)

1,210,032

1,058,499

14%

Return on Equity (%)

7%

9%

-22.91%

Effective Tax Rate (%)

28%

28%

0.00%

15.97

15.79

1.12%

Net Asset Value Per Share (Rs.)
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The Co-operative Insurance
Training Academy
The Co-operative Insurance Training Academy is the Company’s inhouse training facility, established in 2015, to train CICL employees.

During 2016, 30 employees received certification level training at the
Academy and over 350 received training on other technical aspects of
insurance and customer care, aimed developing professionalism and
overall competencies.

In 2016, CICL entered into a partnership with the Insurance Institute
of India to facilitate training and certification for students of the
Co-operative Insurance Training Academy. Through this process
employees will receive certifications that are internationally recognised,
while also obtaining professional level industry related exposure.

....................................................................................................................

Given the success of the current attempt at specialised insurance
training, a new training venue was set up at the new dedicated Motor
Claims unit premises, adjacent to the head office building, to expand
existing educational capacities.
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About this Report
Introduction

Determining materiality

This is CICL’s second year at Integrated Reporting based on the
International Integrated Reporting
Framework of 2013. The
Company is not a listed entity and the decision to comply with the
integrated reporting standard is a voluntary decision to present to our
shareholders, the Co-operative societies, a more detailed description
of the company’s activities during the year. The Board of Directors’
have acknowledged their responsibility towards the integrity of this
report in the ‘Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs
of the Company,’ in page 46 of this report.

Topics discussed in this report were selected as material based on two
criteria;
1. Statutory requirements under the Company’s Act and the
Insurance Board of Sri Lanka.
2. Shareholder expectations in terms of disclosure and
transparency. As a company fully owned by Co-operative
societies, and dedicated to serve Co-operatives, the Cooperatives are both shareholders and customers of CICL.
Therefore, management of CICL have, in structuring this report,
attempted to focus on value creation for shareholders in terms
of financial returns and also non financial aspects.

Scope and boundary of this report
The scope of this report is limited to CICL and its performance in the
general insurance sector. The current report covers the activities of
CICL during the period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

Basis of preparation and presentation of this report
The material topics selected for disclosure were decided by the top
management, under the guidance of the Managing Director/CEO’s,
based on key stakeholder expectations and regulatory and good
governance disclosure requirements.

We value your opinion

Meeting integrated reporting principles

We welcome feedback from all stakeholders
on this report. Please direct any questions or
comments to:

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by SJMS
Associates - Chartered Accountants, Sri Lanka, for reliability and all
other information have been approved by relevant senior managers.
Through the process of selecting material topics for disclosure, we
have attempted to present a connected and complete, but concise
report. In addition, through the direct involvement of the Chairman,
CEO and senior management in compiling this report, we have
presented a consistent and strategic picture of our performance for
the financial year 2016 and our future plans.

....................................................................................................................

Name : Mr. Laksiri Nawaratne
Tel

: 011- 2557318

Fax

: 011- 2557311

Email : snraccountant2@ci.lk
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Mapping of Material Topics
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Mapping of Material Topics Contd.
Materiality process
Having reviewed the previous integrated annual report of 2015, the management has decided material topics, and their prioritisation, remain
unchanged in the current financial year. Therefore, no changes have been made to the material topics.
Material topic
Performance during the year

Future direction

Chapter in annual report

Page number

Chairman’s Message

14

Managing Director/CEO’s Review

18

Our business model

22

Financial performance

41

Financial statements

80

Chairman’s Message

14

Managing Director/CEO’s Review

18

Our growth strategy

23

Risks and opportunities

Risks, potential impacts on the company and our responses

24

Customer engagement

Managing Director/CEO’s Review

18

Engaging our stakeholders

34

How we create value

32

Adding value to our people

36

Chairman’s Message

14

Financial performance

41

Speed of service

How we created value

32

Value for money

Our growth strategy

23

How we create value

32

Our stakeholders

34

Dividends

Shareholder engagement

....................................................................................................................
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Material topic

Chapter in annual report

Page number

Business partners

Our stakeholders

34

Employee training

Adding value to our people

36

Community engagement

Our stakeholders

34

Internal controls and compliance

Governance and internal controls

50

Governance

Governance and internal controls

50

Annual Report of the Directors

46

Audit Committee Report

81

Certificate of IBNR and LAT

78

Adding value to our people

36

Employee welfare

....................................................................................................................
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Significant developments during the year
The current financial year has been an extremely eventful year for CICL
and as the elected Chairman of the company it is my duty to bring to
the notice of our shareholders the significant changes to the company
during the year.

My dear shareholders,
It gives me great pleasure to present the annual report and audited
accounts of CICL for the financial year 2016 and to announce the good
news to our shareholders of a record year of growth for CICL.
Although we are one of the smallest players in the industry we have
recorded the highest GWP growth rate in the country for the financial
year 2016. More importantly, this has been achieved in an environment
of extreme competition. I believe this performance demonstrates
CICL’s capabilities and future potential and is proof positive that we
can compete successfully, if we all work together under a well thought
out strategic plan. Our shareholders have also played a central role in
our success by investing funds to strengthen the company’s capital
base for operational continuity and by supporting the Board and
management in our decisions.
I would like to state that the coverage of this annual report, with
the exception of the consolidated financial statements, is limited
to the general insurance sector and does not include details of our
performance in the life insurance sector.

As I explained in my message last year, following the segregation of
CICL in to separate general and life insurance companies, CICL was
required under the Insurance Board regulations, to list in the Colombo
Stock Exchange (CSE). However, the Board of Directors were of the
opinion that the Colombo Stock Market was not conducive for listing
in 2016 and also in early 2017. Therefore, CICL is considering an initial
public listing in the near future. We hope the stock market itself would
have recovered from its current downturn by then, to reflect better
value for our shareholders. In order for public listing, the status of the
company will have to change from a limited company to a PLC.
In anticipation of public listing we have already enhanced our
issued share capital to Rs 1.1 billion, as at end March 2016, through
capitalisation of reserves, where existing shareholders were issued
additional shares.

Chairman’s Message Contd.
Future direction

The Audit Committee’s mandate was expanded to include oversight
with regards to Related Party Transactions, to accommodate the
Stock Exchange directives on governance criteria in this regard. To
strengthen our operations, a management level Risk Management
Committee was constituted that met regularly during the current
financial year and reviewed the exiting risk management and internal
control for further improvements. This is in addition to ongoing
modernisation of internal processes. We have also complied with
minimum requirement of solvency ratios.

The focus going forward will be on strengthening the business
fundamentals of the company to enhance shareholder returns. CICL
is one of the smallest operators in the market and due to small size
is more vulnerable to competition. Therefore, a strategic focus area
will be on developing our competitiveness as we are now facing direct
competition from larger players.
I congratulate the Managing Director and the CICL team and also our
network of external partners for their achievement during the year
and I call on their dedication to take CICL to the next level. As always
I am grateful to the Board of Directors for their guidance and advice
and my gratitude goes out to our shareholders for standing by the
company through these years of change. I am grateful to the cooperative sector and our customers for their loyalty and I look forward
to meeting their expectations in the new financial year.

During the year CICL reduced its ownership in the subsidiary Coop life
to 80%, by divesting 20% of the shares to co-operative societies for
the value of Rs100 million.
In addition to the above, the company launched an aggressive expansion
drive during the year. We are also investing in technology infusions
and personnel training, which is bringing about rapid modernisation
of the company. I urge you to read the Managing Director’s Review
for details on our performance and to refer the Financial Review for
details on our financial performance.

Sincerely

As we prepare to take CICL into its next phase of growth I look forward
to our shareholders’ attendance at the Annual General Meeting on
25th June, 2017, the notice and agenda of which, has already been
dispatched.

W. L. A. Peiris
Chairman
17th May 2017

....................................................................................................................
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Business performance

The current financial year has been one of rapid change for CICL as
we fast tracked the implementation of our growth strategy, which
was mapped out in the previous financial year. Faced with a number of
imminent threats stemming from segregation of the insurance sector,
we were of the opinion that CICL, as a very small player, must move
fast and become extremely flexible to survive. Therefore, I am pleased
to report that CICL has made record progress in terms of achieving
targets set for the current reporting period and in building a more
competitive business model.

Despite the external challenges, Insurance Board data shows that CICL
has achieved the highest GWP growth rate in the general insurance
industry. We recorded a GWP growth of 43.55% for the year.
Our profit after tax increased by 15% year-on-year, to reach Rs 143
million. This lower rate of profit growth, compared to GWP growth,
is primarily due to the large Rs 28 million claims payout following the
2016 floods. In this case too, I am pleased to report that we settled all
claims with minimum delays, ensuring speedy and genuine support for
CICL policy holders.

Operating environment
As anticipated, competition in the insurance market escalated during
the reporting period with industry consolidation following changes
consequent to segregation. The net outcome is that the insurance
industry has become highly price sensitive and extremely cost
competitive with consumers demanding more value for lower cost.
This scenario resulted in higher customer turnover as customers
switched providers based on perceived value.

Out of GWP incomes, motor insurance remained the largest
contributor accounting for 90% of total GWP. However, with the motor
insurance market for new vehicles contracting rapidly during the year,
we focused on retaining and growing our share of the existing motor
market. It is indeed encouraging to note that we have been extremely
successful in this objective, in spite of severe competition from larger
players that offered cost-related and other benefits to existing CICL
customers. Unlike most other companies, CICL also does not resort to
expensive mass media advertising.

As a general insurance company, a critical change during the year was
the shrinking of the motor market of the country and the economic
slowdown. Motor insurance is the primary source of revenue for general
insurance companies and in 2016, the growth rate of this market
declined due to the unfavourable policy environment of higher taxes
and lower margins of leasing assistance. This market contraction is
evidenced in the total number of new vehicles registrations continuing
to decline drastically.

A positive contributor to growth was the significant enhancement
of reinsurance capacity that was achieved by signing up a new IBSL
approved reinsurer. Enhanced reinsurance capacity will enable greater
portfolio growth as we continue to expand our business. Which is a
challenge for the next year.

While demand for general insurance slowed down, the rising
competition put downward pressure on premiums. Meanwhile, overall
cost structures continued to increase due to rising interest rates and
taxes. Insurance industry profitability was also eroded by a sharp spike
in insurance claims due to floods and landslides. Therefore, the financial
year 2016 presented a particularly challenging operating environment
for a very small player like CICL.

....................................................................................................................

During the year, we also launched a fast-tracked expansion drive to
extend our delivery channels. Our primary delivery channels are the
CICL branch offices, service centres and external agents. During the
year, we expanded our branch network by adding 10 new branches
in strategic geographic locations and we also expanded our network
of brokers and agents. This is the largest annual expansion by CICL
to date. However, this investment has made it possible for us to
reach more customers, more efficiently, and to target new customer
segments.
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MD/CEO’s Message Contd.
In the new financial year, we will continue our market penetration
strategy while retaining our existing customers. We will also focus
on diversifying our product portfolio to rebalance risks and generate
new revenues. The cost competition from larger competitors caused
some erosion of our customer base in 2016. We anticipate this trend
to continue in 2017 and throughout the medium term. However, I
am confident our continuing investments into channel expansion,
technology and human resource development will strengthen our
competitiveness over the medium term. Therefore, provided there are
no significant changes to the current risk profile, I believe CICL can
continue to expand our market share and sustain GWP growth over
the short to medium term.

Channel expansion was supported by enhancing our workforce and
our technology systems. We have invested a significant amount in
technological solutions and personnel development during the year.
The total number of permanent employees increased by 28% to
supply manpower for the new branches and to cover more ground at
field level.
To maintain quality of service and the CICL brand image, we have
continued to train our employees using our in-house training centre
the CICL Training Academy. Our agreement with the Insurance
Institute of India ensures that our trained insurance professionals
are of international standard. We continued to invest in IT software
and technology solutions to increase efficiencies of various internal
processes. This has improved productivity and also facilitated cost
savings. In addition to operational efficiencies, system modernisation
is also directly contributing to better internal controls and we have
been able to reduce irregularities.

I believe the secret of our success is in our ability to cooperate and work
together. The current year’s financial performance would not have
been possible without all employees and delivery channel personnel,
such as brokers and agents, working together. Therefore, I would like
to thank the management and employees, our agents and brokers, for
their hard work in making 2016 a record year for CICL. I thank our
shareholders and the Board for their confidence in me and for their
continued support in executing our growth strategy. Our customers
are the basis of our success and I look forward to serving them better.

As we enhance our market presence I believe in motivating our
employees by rewarding performance and integrity and we have
improved our employee reward schemes and opened up growth and
personal development avenues for our employees.

Sincerely

To sum up our performance for the year, overall, our total operational
costs increased by Rs 557 million year-on-year. However, this was offset
by the revenue increase of Rs 570 million. These numbers indicate
productivity improvements per employee and a satisfactory average
cost per claim reduction year-on-year. For more detailed information
about our financial performance please refer the Financial Review.

Wasantha Ranasingha

Outlook for the New Year

Managing Director/CEO

As stated by the Chairman, in 2017 CICL will prepare the groundwork
for listing in the Colombo Stock Exchange. We also anticipate some
improvement in the external climate in the 2017 financial year, as the
stock market gradually recovers and previously stalled development
projects and private projects become operational. I believe the
recovery of the real estate and construction sectors will generate
many opportunities for general insurance and a stock market reversal
will enhance our revenues and shareholder returns.

....................................................................................................................

17th May 2017
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Our Business Model
CICL is owned by Sri Lanka’s
co-operative sector and as at end
March 2016, 99.9% of CICL shares
were held by co-operative societies.
Due to co-operative ownership our
governance and daily operations
are based on co-operative values.
The Board of CICL includes majority
representation
from
the
cooperative sector, making co-operative
associations directly involved in the
strategy development of the company.
The Board itself is appointed on
co-operative principles, where all
directors are elected on shareholder
votes and all shareholders are eligible
to apply for director positions.
We also partner with co-operative
associations in service delivery by
setting up CICL Service Centres in
strategic locations that retail CICL
products, but the premises are owned
and operated by co-operatives.
We engage with co-operatives
on corporate social responsibility
activities.

....................................................................................................................
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Our Growth Strategy
Our business strategy is based on leveraging technologies, enhancing competitiveness and delivering
value for money for customers. We are improving the competitiveness of the Company through
employee training and development, technology solutions for more efficient operations and by
strengthening our delivery network. To enhance customer value, we are using technology that
facilitates greater convenience, faster response times and better customer communications.

....................................................................................................................
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Risks, Potential impacts on the Company and
Our Responses
CICL faced many challenges during the current financial year and is facing new risks due to regulatory requirements to list shares in the Colombo
Stock Exchange. These emerging and existing risks and our responses are given below. We believe some risks can be converted into opportunities
and appropriate responses have been developed

Top risks faced by CICL in 2016
Customer
expectations

Underwriting
losses

2015

High

Public listing

Competition

2016

Risk

Mid

Shrinking
motor market

2017

Impact

CICL’s response

Competition

Pressure on prices

• Design value-for-money products by aligning costs
to market based pricing
• Target niche markets and customise products
• Develop new products
• Increase company visibility
• Build reliability to increase policy renewals

Risks associated with listing in the stock market

Co-operatives may lose ownership of CICL through
takeover or loss of majority control

• Begin educating co-operative community about
stock market trading

Shrinking motor market

New vehicle registrations are declining which impacts
profitability and cash flows

• Strengthen sales and marketing to capture more
market share

CICL experienced comparatively lower levels of
employee productivity

• Initiate culture change to shift employees
responses to proactive from reactive
• Introduce ICTs to employees
• Employee training
• Setting up clear reporting lines and authority
levels

Losses from insurance settlements

• Diversify customer segments to distribute the risk
• Expand non-motor segments to diversify product
portfolio risk
• Reduce false claims

Customers expect faster services at a lower price

• Crunch the claim settlement process by using
technology
• Integrate call centre and other

Low

Low employee productivity

Rising underwriting losses

Increasing customer expectations

....................................................................................................................
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Our risk management framework
Our three tier risk management framework is embedded in the internal control system of the company.

2nd line of
defence
Internal audits &
external audits

1st line of
defence
Business Unit
Heads

• Monitor external environment for
risks and impacts through feedback
from field staff, business partners
and customers
• Observe variations in business
volumes and inform top management
• Risk management committee formed
at the level of operational
management - identifies, evaluate and
assess the potential risks

3rd line of
defence

Internal Audit reports directly to the
Audit Committee, which reports to the
Board.

Compliance Officer
Audit Committee
Board of Directors

• Conduct regular audits to measure
the adequacy of accounting and
internal systems, efficiency of
operations and reliability and the
accuracy of the accounting records
and recommend improvements

• Monitor effectiveness of risk
management methods

• Conduct investigations for reported
and revealed malpractices for
recovery of losses, strengthen control
systems and deterrents

• Recommend risk controlling
measures to the Board
• Empower the responsible personnel
to take appropriate actions to control
risks

External audits:
• These are conducted by Messrs. SJMS
Associates - Chartered Accountants
and reported to shareholders
• They report on the strength of the
accounting and internal control
systems and recommend
improvements

....................................................................................................................
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Risks, Potential impacts on the Company and
Our Responses Contd.
Key risk areas and CICL control mechanisms
Risk area

Strategic risk

Description of risk

Control mechanisms

Inability to implement agreed strategies • CICL has a five year strategic plan approved by the Board
and action plans due to conditions • The Board regularly reviews actual performance against the budget and
such as activities of rivals, insufficient
adjustments action plans in line with the external changes
capacities to meet the requirements of
• For closer monitoring the corporate budget is subdivided among
the market, resource constraints etc.
each line of business and at branch level and the performance of the
management team is linked to the divisional/branch goals

Underwriting Risk
Exposure Risk

Holding risks beyond the Company’s • The Company financial authority manual, in its sections on underwriting
net retention capacity and not having
and claims settlements, defines the limits of authority applicable in
sufficient reinsurance arrangements.
making decisions relating to the underwriting of risks and settlement of
claims.
• Underwriting is done on a selective basis considering the appropriateness
of the return to compensate the risk associated with. Whilst not
undertaking loss making businesses the Company maintains records of
statistics of transactions of clients.
• All risks exceeding the Company’s retention levels are reinsured with
reinsurers who meet the criteria specified by the regulator, the Insurance
Board of Sri Lanka.
• The Company conducts training programmes for staff involved in
underwriting and claims settlements.
• The Company regularly seeks advice from the Consultant Actuary on
terms, conditions and benefits included in insurance policies to ensure
appropriate pricing.
• Review the wording of the policies and promotional materials to prevent
claims from causes that are not anticipated.
• Product prices are set through a financial analysis including review of
past experiences of the Company and the industry.
• Reinsurance is managed to reduce net liability on large individual risks, to
have greater diversification of insurance risk and to provide protection
against large losses.
• Underwriting is carried out by trained dedicated staff. The experience
and merits of the staff are applied on individual basis in underwriting
each and every risk.

....................................................................................................................
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Risk area

Credit risk

Description of risk

Control mechanisms

Policyholders who obtain insurance • The Company implements the Premium Payment Warranty (PPW) and
covers on credit basis, may fail to meet
ceases the liability of policies for which premium settlements are not
their obligations to the Company on
received within the stipulated period.
time.
• All premium receivables are monitored and every possible action is
taken to collect premiums within the given period and to minimise
policy cancellations.
• Managing Director and the other respective officers meet regularly to
review the status of outstanding premiums and monitor collections.
• The ultimate authority of credit approval is held by the Managing
Director. Credit approval authority is delegated to different levels of
management as appropriate.

Reinsurance risk

Retaining risks beyond the Company’s • No insurance cover is issued for risks above treaty limits, without a
net retention capacity as against having
confirmed reinsurance arrangement.
adequate reinsurance arrangements. • We deal with reputed and highly rated reinsurance brokers to reduce
This risk also includes the inability of
the reinsurance risk in reinsurance placement and claims recovery.
reinsurers to meet their commitments
• Risks relating to riot and terrorism are placed with the Government
due to insufficient financial strength.
controlled National Insurance Trust Fund (NITF)
• Continuously monitor the reinsurance agreements and the credit risk of
the reinsurers.

Claims settlement risk

False or undue claims

• Training for claims management team to verify the genuineness of
claims.
• Claims are assessed periodically and appropriate actuarial reserves are
established to reflect up to date experience and any anticipated future
events. This includes reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported.
• The Company consults professional loss adjusters and independent
assessors.
• There is a claim panel (non-life) for significant and/or complicated claims
and appeals are also reviewed by the claim panel.
• The Company’s Legal Officers attend to disputes and other legal matters
relating to claims and also for third party related claims.

....................................................................................................................
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Risks, Potential impacts on the Company and
Our Responses Contd.
Risk area

Reserving risk

Description of risk

Control mechanisms

Inadequacy of reserves made to meet • Standard claim reserves are made as soon as the required information
future obligations arising from claims.
is received for intimated claims. There is a 24 hour customer care centre
set up for customers to intimate their claims.
• Claims are assessed and reserves are made at the earliest, upon claim
intimation. A claim is made active for processing for six months in order
to ensure the optimality in making provisions.
• The services of a qualified independent Actuary is obtained to assess
the adequacy of reserves made in relation to incurred but not reported
(IBNR) and incurred but not enough reported (IBNER) claims in the
general insurance business.
• The service of a qualified independent Actuary is obtained to review
reserving in the life insurance business.
• Liability adequacy test (LAT) is carried out by an independent Actuary.
• The Company conducts regular training for the staff on the reserving
process for underwriting and claims.

Investment risk

The possibility of the outcome of • The Investment Committee, headed by the Chairman, evaluates the
investments being lower than expected.
investment opportunities in detail and recommends to the Board. The
Company considers different types of risks in investments.

Market risk

Impairment in the value of investments • The Investment Committee keeps a close track on possible occurrences
due to factors that affect the overall
that would have impact on the value of the investments and the market
performance on the financial market due
rates. Possible actions are taken to reduce any adverse impact on the
to incidents such as natural disasters or
value of the investment portfolio within the regulatory limits.
conditions such as recessions, political • The investment portfolio is reviewed by the Investment Committee on
turmoil, interest rate changes and
a timely basis and analyses the vulnerability of individual investments to
commotions etc.
market risk.
• Investment opportunities are analysed in terms of nature of investment
and the quality of the investee organisation.

....................................................................................................................
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Risk area

Liquidity risk

Description of risk

Control mechanisms

The inability to meet contractual • The Investment Committee reviews the maturity mix of the investment
obligations (claims and reinsurers’
portfolio on regular basis to ensure that the liquidity levels and other
payments) due to a shortfall of liquid
regulatory requirements are maintained.
assets in the investment portfolio.
• Cash flow movements are studied in advance and monitored on a daily
basis. Investment opportunities are selected to meet the short term
and long term cash flow requirements.
• Life Insurance policies with guaranteed returns are secured by
investments with higher returns with similar tenure.

Maturity Mix – Non Life
Less Than 1 Year
2 Years
3 Years
4 Years
More Than 5 Years

17.23%

Non Life

15.45%

54.82%
5.67%
6.84%

....................................................................................................................
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Risks, Potential impacts on the Company and
Our Responses Contd.
Risk area

Credit risk

Description of risk

Control mechanisms

The risk of being unable to recover the • The creditworthiness of investee organizations is assessed by the
capital and / or the interest relating
Investment Committee via the ratings awarded by the Rating Agencies
to the investment from the investee
to the issuing institution as well as the instrument.
organization due to declining financial • The Company follows a conservative policy of investing in Government
strength.
Securities in preference to corporate instruments.
• All investments in Government Securities are made through primary
dealers approved by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.
• Single party exposure limits are decided based on the credibility of the
issuing institutions whilst adhering to single party exposure limit rules
required by the Regulator.

Operational risk
Human resources risk

Human resources risk refers to the • Remuneration packages for the staff are set in line with the industry to
possibility that lack of competent
retain and attract staff with necessary qualifications and experience.
personnel and key employees leaving • Professional and personnel development programs are provided to the
the organization. Human resources risk
staff. The Company encourages continuous education whilst providing
is considered as the most significant
relevant training and development opportunities and fosters a culture
element of the operational risk as it
where all employees can actively contribute to the business.
ramifies to the other risks within the
• Continuous training and education of staff are further encouraged
operation.
through the provision of financial and other support.
• Opportunity is given to the employees to meet the higher level of
management to discuss their grievances or matters they wish to deal
with confidentiality.

Economic and political Outcome of the socioeconomic and
risk
political factors have an impact on the
expected status of performance of the
Company. The impact can directly and
mainly affect the insurance business, the
investment income and the investment
value.
The management takes necessary action
to mitigate the impact on possible
events whilst absorbing the others.

....................................................................................................................

• Closely monitor the changes and their trends in the external environment
due to political and economic factors and assess their potential risks.
• Facilitate the relevant staff to attend to educational and training
programs on economic trends, developments and their consequences.
• Seek experts’ opinion on outcomes of possible political and economic
changes, when necessary.
• Ensure that the Company follows a politically neutral policy.
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Risk area

Description of risk

Control mechanisms

Information Technology Possible losses due to use of inadequate • The Company assesses the status of information technology
risk
technology, inappropriate use of
infrastructure to ensure their appropriateness to manage the needs and
technology, technical mishaps and
the scale of operation of the Company.
disaster situations.
• Policy on the security of information and information technology
infrastructure is implemented and updated timely.
• Disaster recovery methods are planned and ready for implementation
on urgent situations.
Fraud risk

Fraudulent acts that could take place • Internal Audit Team, to report on the strength of the internal control
due to inadequate internal controls.
systems with their recommendations on areas that need further
strengthening. The Internal Audit Team reports to the Internal Audit
Committee that includes five Directors.
• In cases of frauds, malpractices and discrepancies etc., immediate
investigations are carried out followed by corrective actions to recover
any losses. Corrective actions are taken to prevent recurrence.
• A Procurement Committee comprising five Directors have been
appointed. Goods and services that are significant in terms of value
and complicated in terms of nature are procured on the approval of the
Procurement Committee.
• Staff is educated about the laid down internal control systems in order
for them to execute transactions in the transparent manner and prompt
to the management of any doubts. Any such references are investigated
and appropriate actions are taken immediately.
• Provisions in the Anti- Money Laundering Act are followed up strictly.

Regulatory risk

Regulatory risk refers to the possibility of • Company culture insists on the achievement of full compliance with
being non-compliant to the regulatory
legal and regulatory requirements.
requirements laid down from time to • Internal Auditors review the status of compliance to regulatory
time to govern the insurance industry.
requirements and refer any non-compliance to the Board through Audit
In addition, there can be risk of nonCommittee. Their findings are discussed and addressed on a timely basis.
compliance to the other common laws
and accounting standards in relation to • Experts are appointed to review changes to the regulatory regime
and assess impact on the business as well as to advise on compliance
presentation of financial status of the
requirements.
Company.
• A Compliance Officer is tasked with ensuring that regulatory
requirements are observed and complied.

....................................................................................................................
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How we create value
Creating customer value
Customer value creation through enhanced accessibility, convenience and speed
of service was a focus area for CICL in the 2016 financial year. During the previous
financial year we conducted customer surveys to better understand customer
perceptions of value and customer expectations from the company. Based on
these findings we implemented internal process changes and creative technology
solutions to cater to what our customer’s wanted from us.

Accessibility
Convenience
Speed

Internal
changes

A cashless motor vehicle repair process was initiated by
partnering with 20 garages in Colombo and the suburbs.
The cashless repair service makes it possible for customers
to repair and release their vehicles much faster. We
continued to train our employees rigorously to provide
consistent, professional and customer oriented services.

Enhance
customer
value

Harnessing technology
During the previous financial year all 51 CICL branches
and 121 Service Centres were networked for real time
monitoring and communications. All CICL employees were
provided with email accounts and access to the company
intranet.

External
outcome

Technology adaptation remained a strategic priority in the
current financial year, to enhance overall competitiveness
of the company, and a number of significant technology
solutions were implemented during the year.

Internal reorganisation
As customer continue to demand greater convenience, we evaluated internal
processes and work flows and changed these processes to facilitate faster
response times to customer inquiries, requests and complaints.

....................................................................................................................

To ensure customers have access to motor claims
settlement and other motor insurance related facilities
any day of the week, a new dedicated Motors Division was
established at a new building adjoining the head office
building. The new Motor Division is equipped to provide
services 8-to-8 (8.00 am to 8.00 pm) and 365 days of the
year, for maximum customer convenience. The additional
floor space also provides a more comfortable environment
with better facilities for our customers and has increased
the speed of motor claims settlement.
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A dedicated IT Division was formed to focus on technology
solutions and the IT team has been developing customised
solutions for CICL to digitise manual operations and
to contain costs, while enhancing customer value. This
approach has proven to be extremely successful in terms of
cost effectiveness and we anticipate further modernisations
of CICL operations in the new financial year.

...................................................................................................................
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The mobile phone was harnesses for customer convenience by
facilitating SMS messages to customers. In addition, a mobile
application was developed and incorporated into the claim settlement
process to speed up the process. CICL field staff are equipped with
mobile phones to transmit motor accident related photographs
and other information directly to Claims Departments for faster
processing of relevant documentation. This process has significantly
reduced the time associated with settlements and made the process
more customer friendly.

We also continued to support cooperative owned Service Centres
with technology solutions and training. These 121 service centres,
coupled with our own branch network, call centre and network of
external business partners, makes us the third largest insurance
service network in the country. This is a key strength for CICL making
it possible to deliver relatively fast services to any part of the country,
including extremely remote areas.
During the year our external business partners included 159 field
officers, 2,774 agency channels and 54 insurance brokers. We will
continue to expand our distribution network in the new financial year.

Customer convenience was further enhanced by enabling online
temporary cover notes for motor insurance. The use of the Internet
has eliminated physical travel and made the process far less costly for
customers.

System security and customer confidentiality
As we digitise and modernise our operations we have continued to
monitor systemic security to safeguard customer confidentiality and
to ensure uninterrupted facilities for our customers. Our systems are
audited and monitored regularly and we maintain in-house system
specialists to ensure optimum operations of computer systems.

Expanding our reach
As part of our rapid expansion strategy, 10 new branches, were added
to the network in strategic locations during the current year. This is the
largest branch expansion in the history of the Company. CICL currently
operated 51 branches, which has contributed towards faster market
penetration and increased customer convenience and accessibility to
CICL products and services. As competition in the general insurance
market continues to increase, our improved reach will make us more
flexible and responsive.

....................................................................................................................

33

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Our Stakeholders
Stakeholder group

Engagement in 2016

Co-operative societies (shareholders)

• Paid 11% dividends by capitalising profits to meet Risk Based Capital requirements
• The annual AGM was conducted at which shareholder approval was obtained on a number
of items
• Cooperative societies are represented on the Board which held regular meetings on the
company status
• Board approval was sought for all non routine matters, where shareholders are represented
as Board members
• Quarterly company accounts were made available to shareholders

Customers

• Paid Rs 1,258 million in claims, out of which Rs 27 million was flood claims
• The Customer Grievance Committee in compliance with IBSL requirements recorded
customer complaints
• We improved customer communications through the use of mobile apps
• Marketing events were conducted to engage with existing and potential customers. Please
see marketing activities below
• SMS system was introduced to communicate with customers
• A new Motor Division was opened, equipped to serve customers 8-to- 8 and 365 days

Employees

• We have invested in employee skill development through an agreement for professional
training and internationally recognised certifications

CICL employees

• Please read the chapter titled ‘Adding Value to our People,’ for more information
Regulatory agencies

• We have initiated engagement with the Colombo stock exchange in anticipation of a
public share issue

IBSL
Central Bank
National Insurance Trust Fund
Company Registrar

• We have complied on time, with all reporting and auditing requirements of the IBSL and
other regulators
• Please refer the ‘Governance and Internal Controls,’ chapter for more information

....................................................................................................................
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Customer Engagements
Stakeholder group

Engagement in 2016

Business partners

• We entered into a new reinsurance agreement

Brokers
Agents
Field Officers
Reinsurers
Auditors

Community

• A new external auditor was appointed and we have complied with all auditing and
information requests of the auditors
• We conduct monthly review meetings with sales personnel to communicate with external
partners
• We are dealing with rated reinsurers approved by IBSL which will strengthen our capacity

• We conducted a number of corporate social responsibility activities during the year. These
are given below

Marketing Activities

Corporate social responsibility activities

As a policy, CICL does not advertise in expensive mass media. Instead,
we rely on alternative marketing methods to raise brand awareness
and build customer confidence. During the year we conducted many
such marketing events. The key events are described below.

CICL supports those in need and contributes to community welfare
through many philanthropic and corporate social responsibility events.
Some of these events conducted during the year, are listed below.

Promotional campaign in Madu

Donation for Deaf Rehabilitating
Organization

Promotional campaign in
Wariyapola

....................................................................................................................
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Sponsorship for sportsmen
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Adding Value to our People
As a community centred institution with links to the country’s grass
roots cooperative sector, we recognise that people are the most valuable
asset in our company and we understand that our people will drive
the organisation and define its level of success in the market. Hence,
we have gone beyond the industry norms to continuously enhance
our investment in our people through extensive skill development
initiatives. The Cooperative Academy, was initiated within this strategic
vision to empower not only CICL employees but the entire domestic
insurance sector through specialised skill development that would
position insurance industry personnel as a professional community on
par with other professional categories.

•

The available training space was further extended by dedicating
an additional floor in our new premises to conduct classes

•

We invest in external training both local and overseas

•

We have mapped skill gaps and have started filling vacancies at
all levels and we are recruiting experienced managers from the
private sector, with solid track records, to guide our employees
Integration of technology with human resource process:

We are proud to report that CICL has observed all statutory dues to
our employees and we have not faced any penalties or regulatory
disciplinary actions for non-compliance with any applicable labour
regulations during the financial year 2016.

•

We have adopted a centralised human resource administration
model, covering both CICL and our subsidiary Cooplife, to avoid
administrative duplication

•

Manual processes are being gradually replaced with technology
solutions, to reduce costs associated with time and to enhance
efficiencies

•

All employees are provided internet and email access, including
employees of branches and the Call Centre

•

We have networked all the branches and the CICL head office
for real time updates of claims and quotations situations

CICL Human Resource Policy
CICL is an equal opportunity employer and has a formal Board approved
Human Resource (HR) Policy to guide management and development
of our teams. The Company also has a formal HR Board subcommittee
to advise the Board and management on HR related matters.

HR strategic focus in 2016

Motivate employees:

The segregation of the Company in 2015 resulted in internal
structural changes within the Company and also exposed the
Company to new external market risks. Therefore, the primary focus
of the HR management function during 2016, was to enhance CICL’s
competitiveness in the increasingly competitive general insurance
market, by adding value to the human capital base.

Strategy to enhancing CICL employee competitiveness
Skill developments:
•

The Co-operative Academy provides in-house training for our
employees. During the current financial year we entered into
a partnership with the Indian Insurance Institute to obtain
training, educational support and internationally recognised
insurance industry qualifications, for our employees

....................................................................................................................
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•

A performance based reward system has been introduced to
motivate employees

•

Performance reviews are conducted annually for all employees

•

Promotions are based on merit

•

Many benefits are provided to our employees above and
beyond the statutory basics

•

We maintain an open door policy where employees have access
to top management at all times

...................................................................................................................
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Employee profile

Employee events

CICL’s total employee base reached 706 during the year.

As the CICL family continues to expand, it is essential that new
members, and even existing members, network and build bonds to
cooperate as one team. Therefore we conduct many employee events
during the year to instigate comradery, community and team spirit.
Some of these key events for 2016 are listed below.

Employment benefits
We provide a range of employee benefits to our direct employees that
go beyond statutory requirements such as:

Staff year-end Eve 2016

Life insurance
Health care and critical illness insurance (Disability and
invalidity coverage)
Death donation scheme

Investment in training
During the current financial year we invested over Rs. 2million
on employee training and 352 employees took part in training
programmes at the Cooperative Academy and other external training
events.

Staff New Year function

....................................................................................................................
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Operational Review
Industry overview
There were 28 insurance companies registered with the Insurance
Board of Sri Lanka (IBSL), as at end 2016. Out of this number, 13
were exclusive general insurance companies and 12 were exclusive
long-term insurance business companies. Another 3 companies were
composite insurance companies providing both life insurance and
general insurance. In addition, the insurance sector also included 59
insurance brokering companies mainly focusing on general insurance.
In total 8 insurance companies were listed on Colombo Stock Exchange
(CSE), while 5 operated with foreign affiliations.
Insurance penetration in Sri Lanka, calculated based on total premium
as a percentage of GDP, increased marginally to 1.21% in 2016, from
1.12% in 2015. This numerical improvement is attributed mainly to
growth in total premium, with insurance penetration considered
extremely low compared to peer countries. In 2016, insurance
penetration of long-term insurance and general insurance were
at 0.54% and 0.67%, respectively. However, insurance density has
marginally increased to Rs. 6,743 per person in 2016, from Rs. 5,865
per person in 2015.
The insurance sector recorded improved growth in assets and
earnings during the year. Total sector assets expanded by 10.9% to
Rs. 503.1 billion in 2016, from 453.6 billion in 2015.Out of this, the
general insurance sector accounted for 33.5% (Rs. 168.8 billion).
The growth rate of Gross Written Premium (GWP) of the insurance
industry decelerated to 16.0%, compared to 21.1% in 2015, with
GWP growth rate in general insurance slowing to 14.0% from21.9%.
General insurance accounted for 54.7% of industry GWP with motor
insurance remaining the primary contributor.

•

Overall market share held by CICL in the general insurance
market, in terms of Gross Written Premium (GWP), increased
from 2.56% in 2015, to 3.23%

•

The GWP growth rate improved against the previous financial
year from 24.41% to 43.55% and outpaced the industry
average of 16%.

•

The motor premium growth rate increased from 29.99% in
2015 to 42.62% while the industry average growth rate in
2016 was 15.02%

•

The non motor premium growth rate increased by 51.58%
compared to the industry average growth rate of 11.39%

•

Net claims of the Company increased by 47.43% year-on-year
while the general insurance sector saw claims increase by
15.9%.

•

The Company’s Net Earned Premium (NEP) increased to
34.34% from 14.56% in 2015, while the industry average was
14.28%

60.00%
50.00%

CICL 2015
CICL 2016

40.00%

Industry
AVG 2016

30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

Total profits of the insurance industry increased by 40.95% year-onyear, mainly attributed to the performance of the general insurance
sector,despite claims on the sector increasing by 22.72% to Rs. 41.0
billion.

0.00%
-10.00%
-20.00%

GWP Motor
growth

GWP Non
Motor growth

Net Earnd
Premium growth Claims Growth

CICL’s performance
CICL maintained growth momentum in the financial year 2016, with
strong growth in GWP.

....................................................................................................................
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GWP

GWP

106.00%

3,000,000,000

105.50%

2,500,000,000

105.00%

2,000,000,000

CICL
Industry Avg

104.50%

1,500,000,000

104.00%

1,000,000,000

103.50%

500,000,000

103.00%
102.50%

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

102.00%

GWP (General) Growth 2012-2016

101.50%
2016

Combined ratio

Combined Ratio 2016 Vs 2015

CICL’s combined ratio increased from 103.03% in 2015 to 105.44%.
The combined ratio remained above 100% despite a strong growth
in net earned premium, mainly due to the mismatch of reinsurance
expenses with the reinsurance recoveries as a result of the new
reinsurance arrangement.
Performance
indicator

Combined ratio

Industry avg
2016

103.95%

CICL 2016

105.44%

2015

Employee productivity
The revenue per employee continued to improve supported by more
streamlined procedures, enhanced training and integration on ICTs
into business processes although the increase in workforce. The profit
before tax per employee and value added per employee came down in
the year 2016 slightly.

CICL 2015

103.03%
Productivity indicators

Revenue per employee(Rs)

....................................................................................................................
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2016

2015

3,506,435

3,135,532

Profit (before tax) per employee(Rs)

267,906

318,990

Value added per employee(Rs)

319,239

337,589
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Operational Review Contd.
10.00%

4,000,000
3,500,000

9.00%

2016

3,000,000

ROA
( Net of tax)

8.00%

2015

ROE

7.00%

2,500,000

6.00%

2,000,000

5.00%

1,500,000

4.00%
3.00%

1,000,000

2.00%

500,000

1.00%

-

0.00%
*Revenue per
employee

**PBT per
employee

***Value added
per employee

Industry Avg
2016

CICL 2016

Profitability Indicators

Employee Productivity

Shareholder value creation

Profitability
•

Return on assets increased from 3.97% to 4.25% in the year
2016 and was higher than the general insurance industry
average of 3.42%

•

Return on equity increased from 7.89% to 9.49% in the year
2016 and was higher compared to the general insurance
average of 7.04%.

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders increased from Rs
122,296,071 to Rs 160,827,877 for the year 2016. This growth
contributed to an increase in the Earnings Per Share from Rs 1.22 to
Rs.1.49.
Shareholder value

EPS
Profitability
indicator

CICL 2015

Industry Avg
2016

CICL 2016

2016

1.49

2015

1.22

CICL 2015

ROA (Net of tax)

3.42%

4.25%

3.97%

ROE

7.04%

9.49%

7.89%
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Financial Review
Basis of financial reporting

Miscellaneous
7%

Marine
0%
Fire
4%

Financial information presented in this review is prepared in accordance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/LKAs).

The financial structure
Over past 16 years the financial priority was sustainable growth that
accommodated policyholders’ liability, whilst meeting the expectations
of shareholders and other stakeholders. The management, under
the directions of the Board, works at improving the strength of the
financial structure, taking due care of the threats and opportunities
encountered and foreseen.

Motor
89%

Revenue composition
Composition of GWP - 2016 (General)

CICL’s GWP composition remained the same in 2016, as in 2015, with
motor insurance continuing to be the main contributor to revenues.
The motor insurance contribution to GWP increased up to 42.62%
against 2015 while non-motor segments also recorded 51.58%
growth. The non-motor product category is limited to fire, marine and
miscellaneous insurance products.
Class

Motor
Fire
Marine
Miscellaneous
Total GWP

Rs, '000

Net Earned Premium (NEP)
The general business NEP growth was 34.34% compared to the GWP
growth of 43.55%. This was due to a significant portion of the GWP
was recorded during the latter part of 2016 and therefore Rs258 Mn.
being transferred to the subsequent period as unearned premium
reserve. The amount so transferred during 2015 was Rs 213 Mn. The
significant increase in reinsurance expense in the year 2016, has also
resulted in NEP growth rate being lower than the GWP growth rate.

% Growth

2,203,633

43

94,105

49

4,719

88

173,087

52

2,475,543

43

Other revenue including investment income
Income from investments is the major source of the other income
being Rs. 198 Mn (before charging finance cost) for the year. This was
Rs. 129 Mn in the previous year.

Expenditure
Net benefits and claims
The net benefits and claims for the financial year 2016 increased by
47% than 2015 due to unexpected claim payments on flood.
The claims ratio increased from 60.39% in 2015 to 66.28% in 2016.

....................................................................................................................
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Financial Review Contd.
Indicator

Industry average
2016

Claims ratio

66.24%

CICL
2016

66.28%

Following segregation, services of the five divisions of Administration,
Legal, Human Resource Management, Internal Audit and IT, were shared
by both the general insurance and life insurance companies. However,
costs increased due to differences in the nature of requirements of
the two companies and unavoidable repetitions in some transactions.
Apart from the compulsory separation of services i.e. underwriting,
claims and policyholder complaints management, reinsurance, sales
and distributed related functions, the Finance Division was also
separated to maintain clarity of the services, although it was not
compulsory to do so.

CICL
2015

60.39 %

67.00%
66.00%
65.00%

Claims ratio

Finance costs

64.00%

Finance costs include interest, on term loan and finance lease, of Rs.
5,024,794 and Rs. 5,923,432 for years 2016 and 2015 respectively.

63.00%
62.00%

Profitability

61.00%

Profits before taxation

60.00%

The company was able to improve profitability during the year. Profit
before tax as a percentage to net earned premium stood at 9.77%
against 12.17% in the previous year.

59.00%
58.00%
57.00%
*Industry Avg
2016

**CICL 2016

Profits after taxation

***CICL 2015

The net profit after tax (PAT) for the year was Rs. 160.83 Mn (PBT
189.14). This was Rs. 122.30 Mn (PBT 175.44) in the previous year. The
net impact for the income tax expenses from the differed tax liabilities
during the year was Rs. 10.98 Mn.

Claim Ratio 2016 Vs 2015

Underwriting and policy acquisition cost
The net underwriting and policy acquisition costs increased in tandem
with the growth in business volume. The cost to net earned premium
for the year was 7.94%. This ratio for the previous year was 8.44%.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
The value of property, plant and equipment of CICL has been increasing
since 2013. The acquisition and development of the office building Cooperative Insurance House, at 74/5, Grandpass Road, Colombo 14, and
the upward movement of its market value, were the main reasons for
this increase. The market value of Co-operative Insurance House at the
end of the financial year 2016 was Rs. 520 Mn whereas it was Rs 518
Mn at the end of 2015.

Other operating expenses
Costs increased during the year by over 23% over 2015, mainly due to
significant improvement in business volume and business expansion,
increased staff costs and administrative expenses, reflecting the
impacts of segregation.

....................................................................................................................
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Reinsurance and premium receivables

Co-operative Insurance House is presented at market price.
Investments in the available for sale and the fair value through profit
or loss, categories in the investment portfolio, are also recorded at
market value. The other assets are recognised at cost. The assets are
depreciated on the straight-line method over their useful lifetime
estimated by the management using their knowledge and the
experience.

Reinsurance receivable represents the dues from reinsurance
companies for paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustments.
Reinsurance receivables are recognised as per the terms of reinsurance
contracts. The amounts receivable are estimated to be consistent
with the outstanding claim provision or settled claims associated with
reinsurers’ policies.

Financial investments, including investment in subsidiary

The management attempts to recover reinsurance receivable promptly
and to keep the receivable amounts at a minimum.

The investment portfolio is maintained primarily to ensure maximum
protection to its assets in accordance with the regulatory requirements
and to receive the highest returns for policyholders and shareholders.

Premium receivables at the end of the year recorded an increase in
comparison with the growth of GWP. The reason for the increase was
the increase in the sales volume during the latter part of the year. The
company has a credit policy of 90 days.

The investment decisions are taken by the Investment Committee
subject to subsequent Board ratification. Investment decisions are
governed by the investment policy of the company. In the investment
decisions, the contribution towards the solvency status and the
security received to the investments, are given more weight than the
returns. The investment portfolio contains 21.22% of government
securities.

Indicator

GWP

Investments are classified under four categories as specified in Sri
Lanka Financial Reporting Standards (SLFRSs) depending on their
characteristics. More details of the investment portfolio are available
in Note 07 to the financial statements.

Premium ceded
Reinsurance ratio

18.02%

Shares
Debentures
Commercial Papers
Fixed deposits

18.31%

Non Life

2,475,543,314

1,724,542,837

280,627,768

69,008,451

11.34%

4%

Other assets mainly include cash, cash equivalents, deposits,
prepayments and staff loans. Cash and cash equivalents are held at
levels that are necessary to meet liquidity requirements. Staff loans
outstanding were Rs 22.13 Mn. (Rs. 22.76 Mn – 2015), which is the
balance of loans granted under the staff loan scheme. These loans are
provided at a nominal interest rate.

0.14%

2.92%

2015

Other assets

Composition of the Investment portfolio
9.53%

2016

The recoverability of these assets is monitored on timely basis and
provisions are made in cases where the recoverability is doubtful.

Treasury Bonds
Overnight Repo
Repo
29.22%

Savings

14.91%
6.96%

....................................................................................................................
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Financial Review Contd.
Insurance liability

Solvency Margin

Our insurance liability, the fund maintained to indemnify our clients
from specified future losses, grew by 19.41% over the previous year.

IBSL implemented Risk Based Capital Framework, replacing the
previous rules based Solvency Framework. Related guidelines on the
transfer were detailed in the directive ‘Solvency Margin (Risk Based
Capital) Rule 2015’ issued in December 2015.These new framework
was effective from 01st January 2016. The Company successfully
participated during the RBC Road Test 2012 and helped to transfer to
the new model effectively. From 01st January 2016, the IBSL returns
were submitted according to the new RBC framework.

The growth of insurance liability for past 5 years is as follows.
Insurance Liability

Insurance
Liability

1,800,000,000
1,600,000,000
1,400,000,000
1,200,000,000
1,000,000,000
800,000,000
600,000,000
400,000,000
200,000,000

As per the new RBC rules, every insurer shall maintain a minimum
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 120%, and maintain minimum Total
Available Capital of Rs. 500 Million, calculated as per the guidelines
given in the rules. As at 31st December 2016 the company could
maintain the CAR ratio at 139%.
Solvency as at 31.12.2016
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

The insurance liability is formed from claims outstanding, together
with unearned premium reserve (UPR), incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR) and incurred but not enough reported claims (IBNER).

Total Available Capital (TAC)

930,531

Risk-based Capital Requirement (RCR)

668,347

1. Risk-based Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
2. Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)
Capital Adequacy Satisfied?

Our Actuary, M/s NMG Financial Services Consulting (Pvt) Limited
confirms that we have made reserves adequate to meet future
obligations.

LKR 000’s

139%
500,000
Yes

In compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard SLFRS 4 –
Insurance Contracts, a Liability adequacy test was performed by M/s
NMG Financial Services Consulting (Pvt) Limited and confirmed that
the liabilities are adequately recorded with regard to future obligations.
Their report is shown in page 75.

....................................................................................................................
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the
Affairs of the Company
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting their report to the
members together with the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2016 and the Auditor’s Report thereon
of Co-operative Insurance Company Ltd., a limited liability company
incorporated in Sri Lanka on August 11, 1997 under the Companies Act
No. 17 of 1982 and re-registered on December 31, 2008 as required
under the provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in conformity
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards laid down by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and comply
with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the
Regulation of the Insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000 and other
rules issued by the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka (IBSL).

Principal Activities

The financial statements duly signed by the Directors are provided
on pages 83 to 202 and Auditor’s Report on financial statements is
provided on page 82 of this annual report.

There was no significant change in the nature of the principal activities
of the Company during the year and general insurance remained to be
the principal activity of the company. The Company has not engaged
in any activity which contravenes the Laws and Regulations of the
country.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting
The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting is
given on page 80 which forms an integral part of the Annual Report of
the Board of Directors.

Review of Business and Future Developments
A review of the financial and operational performance and future
developments of the Company is contained in the Chairman’s Report,
the Managing Director’s Review and the Management Discussion and
Analysis of the Annual Report. These reports form an integral part of
the Report of the Directors’ and together with the audited Financial
Statements reflect the state of affairs of the Company.

Turnover / Gross Written Premium (GWP)
The total turnover measured by the Gross Written Premium (GWP) of
the group of companies for the financial year under review amounted
to Rs 2,476 Mn (Rs. 1,725 Mn in 2015).
Group

2016
Rs.’000

Net profit before taxation

Company
2015
Rs.’000

WW161,876

2016
Rs.’000

2015
Rs.’000

203,069

189,142

175,445

Income tax

(32,503)

(53,557)

(28,314)

(53,149)

Net profit after taxation

129,373

149,512

160,828

122,296

Unappropriated profit brought forward

381,333

360,289

349,966

358,888

Funds available for appropriation

511,754

468,388

510,794

439,771

Other comprehensive income

(2,633)

Dividends Paid
Unappropriated profits carried forward

(1,649)

(304)

(110,540)

(89,501)

(110,540)

(89,501)

398,581

381,333

398,605

349,966

1.20

1.49

1.49

1.22

Earnings per share (Rs.)

....................................................................................................................
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The Board of Directors

Directors and their shareholdings

The Board of Directors consists of 13 Directors and their names and
status are stated in the table below. The following Directors held office
as at the Balance Sheet date and their profiles are given on pages 64
and 67 of the annual report.

Directors and their shareholdings as at December 31, 2016 are as
follows:

Name of the Director

Name of the Director

Status

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris - Chairman

Number of
Shares
11,458

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe - Vice-Chairman

Nil

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe – Managing Director

Nil

Mr. A.D.T.S. Palitha

Nil

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris (Chairman)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe
(Vice-Chairman)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe
(Managing Director)

Executive Director

Mr. K.J. Sesiri

6,966

Mr. D.P. Amaradeva

Non-Executive Director

Mr. D.P. Amaradeva

6,467

Mr. K.J. Sesiri

Non-Executive Director

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe

2,404

Mr. R. Sooriyaarachchi

Non-Executive Director

Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge

862

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe

Non-Executive Director

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathna

Nil

Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge

Non-Executive Director

Mr. J.M.V.P. Jayasooriya

Nil

Mr. A.D.T.S. Palitha

Non-Executive Director

Mr. R.M.B.M. Bandara

Nil

Mr. J.M.V.P. Jayasooriya

Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.S.S. Weerasekara

Nil

Mr. R.M.B.M. Bandara

Non-Executive Director

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathna

Non-Executive Director

Mr. K.S.S. Weerasekara

Non-Executive Director

Mr. R. Sooriyaarachchi

Dividends
The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of Rs. 1.30
per share to shareholders as at December 31, 2016 to be paid by
distribution of ordinary shares of the company as provided for in
clause 122 of the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Interest with Contracts and Related Party
Transactions
The Directors have no direct or indirect interest in contracts with
the Company other than those disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial
Statements.

....................................................................................................................

27,737

Investments
The details of investments held by the Company are disclosed in Note
06 to the Financial Statements.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the
Affairs of the Company Contd.
Property, Plant & Equipment
Name of the Shareholder

The book values of the Property, Plant & Equipment were Rs.782
Mn. as at the Balance Sheet date. Details of the Property, Plant &
Equipment and movement during the year are disclosed in Note 04 to
the Financial Statements.

Number of
Ordinary
Shares

Hambantota District Co-operative Rural Bank
Union Ltd.

2,220,000

Sri Lanka Co-operative Rural Bank Federation Ltd.

2,220,000

Colombo District Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Ltd.

2,087,411

Central Province Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Ltd.

1,993,960

Number of
Ordinary
Shares

Panduwasnuwara Multi-Purpose Co-operative
Society Ltd.

1,842,600

Bingiriya Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd.

1,665,000

Wennappuwa Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society
Ltd.

15,262,500

Mirigama Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd.

1,544,751

Post & Telecom Employees Co-operative Bank
Society Ltd.

Kolonnawa Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd.

1,424,184

12,210,000

Uva Province Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd.

1,387,500

Wayamba Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd.

7,910,033

1,362,326

Gampaha District Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Ltd.

Maharagama Multi Purpose Co-operative Society
Ltd.

7,803,300

Galle District Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd.

1,287,600

Public Service Co-operative Credit & Thrift Society
Ltd.

6,837,600

Provisions

Matara District Co-operative Tea Producers’ Cooperative Society Ltd.

5,738,477

Beliatta Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd.

5,550,000

Matara District Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd.

3,806,471

Beralapanathara Multi-Purpose Co-operative
Society Ltd.

2,374,806

The Directors’ have taken reasonable steps to ensure adequate
provisioning for all known liabilities and insurance related reserves
i.e. Unearned premiums reserves, Claims outstanding reserve and
provisions for Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and Claims
Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) in Non-Life Insurance. The
Directors also have consulted an Independent Actuary in this process
of valuing IBNR and IBNER reserves and his report is given on page 78.

Kotapola Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd.

2,342,273

Homagama Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society
Ltd.

2,253,300

Major Shareholders
Major shareholders of the Company as at December 31, 2016 are as
follows:

Name of the Shareholder

....................................................................................................................

Stated Capital
The Company’s issued and fully paid stated capital as of the year end
was Rs.1,115,367,950/-
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Statutory Payments
The Directors, to the best of their knowledge, are satisfied that all
statutory payments in relation to the Government, the Insurance
Board of Sri Lanka (IBSL) and related to employees have been made
on time.

Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance
Sheet Date
Details of contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet
date are disclosed in Note 35 and Note 36 respectively to the Financial
Statements.

Auditors
A resolution to appoint Messrs. SJMS Associates, Chartered
Accountants as auditors for the financial year ending December 31,
2017 and to authorize the directors to fix their remuneration will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on June 25,
2017at Grand Monarch Hotel, 527/7, Borella Road, Thalawathugoda at
10.00 a.m. The Notice of Meeting relating to the 19th Annual General
Meeting is given on page 213.
By Order of the Board of Directors,

Business Management Services Ltd.
Secretaries to the Company
May 30, 2017

....................................................................................................................
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Governance and Internal Control
CICL is fully committed towards best practices in governance and internal controls to ensure operational integrity and full regulatory compliance
at all times, in all activities. In addition, the governance of the Company is guided by cooperative principles.
Level of regulatory compliance as at end December 2016
Regulators

Compliant

Non Compliant

Partially compliant

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007
Regulation of Insurance Industry (RII) Act, No 43 of 2000 and subsequent
amendments Insurance Board of Sri Lanka regulations, directives, circulars
and determinations
Motor Traffic Act, No 14 of 1951 and subsequent amendments
Inland Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 regulations and directives
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKASs / SLFRSs)
Please refer the Compliance Status section for details on governance compliance. Please refer the Risk Management report for details on internal
control procedures.

System of Internal Control
System of Internal Control
Control
Enviroment

CICL’s system of internal control is designed to achieve:
1. Effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
2. Reliability of financial reporting.

Monitoring

Risk
Management

3. Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Information &
Communication

....................................................................................................................
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Control
Activities

...................................................................................................................
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Internal control element

CICL response

Control environment

Risk assessment

Control activities

Information and communication

Monitoring

....................................................................................................................
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-

Reporting and oversight structures were improved for greater
clarity

-

We practice a business ethic of honesty, cooperation and
integrity

-

Independent Board of Directors

-

We expect accountability from all personnel

-

During the current financial year we recruited 3 new Heads of
Departments to implement our growth strategy

-

Please refer Risk Management Framework on pages 24 to 31

-

Internal Audit Division conducts audits and investigations

-

Audit Committee (consisting Board Members) views such
reports and recommends necessary actions

-

Investment Committee takes decisions about the maintenance
of the investment portfolio and monitors it

-

Procurement Committee controls the procurement of goods
and services that are significant in the nature

-

Information on major classes of transactions are available to
assist the control function

-

Information on how such transactions are initiated are clear

-

Financial statements along with significant accounting records
and other supporting documents are available

-

Accounting and financial reporting process, from the initiation
of transactions and other events, up to their inclusion in the
financial statements can be viewed

-

The Internal Audit Division carries out audits on regular basis.
Investigations are carried out when necessary. The reports
of the audits and the investigations are viewed by the Audit
Committee

...................................................................................................................
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Governance and Internal Control Contd.

CICL
Board of
Directors

CICL Holding
company and general
Insurance Service
provider 99.9% owned
by Co-operative
associations

Audit
Committee
Cooplife
Life insurance Service
Provider 80% owned
subsidiary of CICL

Investment
Committee

Human
Resources
Committee

Procurement
& Tender
Committee

Business
Development
Committee

80] iuQmldr rlaIK
iud.ug wh;a mßmd,s;

Management
Committee
(Heads of
departments,
Chaired by
Managing
Director)

Compliance
and Risk
Committee
(Chaired by
Managing
Director)

....................................................................................................................
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Customer
Grievance
Committee
(Chaired by
Managing
Director)

...................................................................................................................
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Composition and main functions of board subcommitiees
Names

No of scheduled
meetings

No of meetings
attended

Mr. A.D.T.S. Palitha - Director (Chairman of the committee)

22

22

Mr. D.P. Amaradeva - Director

22

22

Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge - Director

22

19

Mr. J.M.V.P. Jayasooriya - Director

22

22

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris - Chairman

11

8

Mr. P.M.C. Bandara - Vice-Chairman

9

6

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe - Managing Director

11

7

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe - Director

11

9

Mr. K.J. Sesiri - Director

11

9

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathna - Director

2

2

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris - Chairman

3

3

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe - Managing Director

3

3

Mr. R. Sooriyaarachchi - Director

3

3

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathna - Director

3

2

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe - Director

3

0

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris - Chairman

9

8

Mr. P. M.C. Bandara - (Retried on 04.09.2016) Vice-Chairman

7

6

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe - Vice-Chairman

2

1

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe - Managing Director

9

8

Mr. K.J. Sesiri - Director

8

4

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe - Director

9

9

Mr. R. Sooriarachchi - Director

1

1

Committee

Audit Committee

Secretary - Internal Auditor

Human Resources Committee

Secretary - Human Resources Manager

Investment Committee

Secretary - Finance Manager

Procurement & Tender Committee

Secretary - Manager Administration

....................................................................................................................
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Governance and Internal Control Contd.
No of scheduled
meetings

No of meetings
attended

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris - Chairman

2

2

Mr. P.M.C. Bandara - Vice-Chairman

2

2

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe - Managing Director

2

2

Mr. R.M.R.B. Bandara - Director

2

2

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe - Director

2

2

Mr. S.S. Weerasekara - Director

1

1

Committee

Names

Business Development Committee

Secretary - GM Marketing

....................................................................................................................
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Committee
Frequency of Meeting
Main Functions of each
Board Sub Committee

Audit Committee
As required
• Implement effective
Internal Control Processes
• Review risk assessment
process and risk profile

Human Resources
Committee

Investment
Committee

As required
• Ensure the recruitment
and maintenance of a
competent and suitablyqualified staff and the
reduction of the staff
turnover.

• Review internal and
external audit reports
and follow up on
recommendations.

• Regular review of
remuneration as well as
service conditions.

• Ensure compliance with
laws and regulations

• Determine the career
path of staff members.

• Review financial reporting
system, critical accounting
policies and the quality
of accounting judgments
and estimates

• Ensure a sound
performance appraisal
system at all levels.

As required

Procurement &
Tender Committee
As required

Business
Development
Committee
As required

• Set policy guidelines
to manage investment
portfolio

• Develop procurement
policy subject to Board
approval

• Suggest to the Board new
ventures and take action
after feasibility studies.

• Monitor investment
portfolio and its return
against the set income
target.

• Decide on mode of
procurement for high
value goods and services

• Evaluate IBSL reports,
auditors, actuaries, rating
agencies and any other
consultants who may
provide consultancy on
specific issues

• Monitor compliance with
investment regulations
• Review performance
of the key investment
portfolios and guide
investment strategy at
the macro level.

• Scrutinise Admin.
Department procedures
for quotations
• Approve tender
procedures and scrutinise
tender invitation
documents
• Open tenders and sealed
quotations and handle
information received with
due care
• Evaluate quotations and
tenders using matrix
prepared by the Admin.
Manager and other
technical personnel
• When necessary
delegate such evaluation
to an expert/s

• suggest any changes
in the management
structure
• Study external market
reports to enable
the Company to take
proactive action
• Study and report on
monthly progress reports
of the Company forward
by the management and
guide the Board to take
necessary action.
• Study and report on any
other matters referred to,
by the Board.

• Based on evaluations
decide on awarding
tenders
• Set conditions for carrying
out a contracted task or
purchase order
• When necessary, take
follow up action on a
contract or process of
procurement

....................................................................................................................
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Governance and Internal Control Contd.
Attendance at Board meetings from January to December 2016
No of scheduled
meetings

Board member

No of meetings
attended

Mr. W.L.A. Peiris

13

13

Mr. P.M.C. Bandara (Retried on 04.09.2016)

09

08

Mr. K.R.W. Ranasinghe

13

13

Mr. D.P. Amaradeva

13

13

Mr. R. Sooriyarachchi

13

13

Mr. K.J. Sesiri

13

13

Mr. K. Rankothge

13

12

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe

13

13

Mr. K.R. K.N. Jayasinghe

13

13

Mr. A.D.T.S. Palitha

13

13

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathna

13

13

Mr. J.M.V.P. Jayasooriya

13

13

Mr. R.M.B.M. Bandara

13

13

Mr. K.S.S. Weerasekara (Appointed on 04.09.2016)

04

04

....................................................................................................................
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Compliance Status
Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

CICL’s Level of Compliance

Board of Directors

The Board shall direct the organisation to
achieve desired goals by ensuring designing
Compliant
of corporate strategy effectively and
implementing the same efficiently

Existence of Non-Executive Directors

Frequency of the Board Meetings

Availability of agenda for discussion

The Board consists of 13 Directors. The majority of them represent
shareholders of cooperative societies being chairpersons of such
cooperative societies. The Managing Director is also a member of the
Board. Directors’ profiles are presented on pages 64 to 67 of this Annual
Report.
Members of the Board of Directors are elected at the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting, for a three-year term. One-fourth of the Directors (approximately
three Directors) retire every year on a rotation basis. This arrangement
allows the Company to retain experienced members and to induct new
members in order to infuse new ideas.

Compliant

The Board comprises of an Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors,
with expertise, experience and knowledge in the insurance industry.

Compliant

The Board of Directors usually meets on a monthly basis to review the
Company’s performance and to determine whether its strategies and
business practices are in line with the corporate plan. The attendance of
the Directors in year 2016 has been 99.99%. During the year 2016, 13
Board meetings were held.

Compliant

The Board Papers are submitted to the Managing Director by the Head
of the Divisions. After the review of the Managing Director, the Board
Secretary prepares the agenda. Comprehensive Board Papers are sent to
Directors in advance of the Board Meetings giving them sufficient time to
be prepared for the discussion. The Board Secretary maintains record of
Board discussion Minutes of matters discussed by the Board.

Key Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is responsible for steering the Company towards its overall
success. The Board delegates the authority to the Managing director to
formulate the required strategy.
Formulation and implementation of the
Compliant
Business Strategy

The Managing director and the management team develop the Corporate
Strategy.
Annual Budgets and action plans are developed in order to implement the
Corporate Strategy. Those are reviewed by the Board of Directors.

....................................................................................................................
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Compliance Status Contd.
Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

CICL’s Level of Compliance

Key Responsibilities of the Board

Ensuring that the MD and the Management
Team possess the required skills, experience Compliant
and knowledge to implement the strategy

Effective systems to ensure the integrity
of information, internal controls and risk Compliant
management

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Financial Reporting

Compliant

Compliant

The Board ensures that the MD and the Management Team possess the
required skills, experience and knowledge to implement the corporate plan
and further to ensure that a proper succession plan is in place.
The Board decides the remuneration of the MD and the Management Team
ensuring that their performances are recognized equitably in terms of
remuneration.
Adequate systems and procedures are implemented to ensure the integrity
of information, effectiveness of internal controls and the appropriateness of
risk management procedures.
The Internal and External Auditors, management team regularly review
these systems.
The Board recognizes the importance of complying with all the applicable
Laws and Regulations.
The Board ensures that all the applicable Laws and Regulations are complied
with in the conduct of the affairs of the Company.
The Board ensures that the proper processes are in place and systems
of control and procedures are implemented to monitor and maintain
accounting and financial records with integrity to meet the highest
professional standard.
The Board ensures that effective systems are in place to identify, analyze
and manage risks faced by the Company and monitor continuous existence
of those processes.
The risk management policy has been adopted on the basis of norms set
by the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka in terms of solvency, technical reserves,
reinsurance arrangements, actuarial reviews, and also occasional inspection
by the Insurance Board officers.

Risk Management

Compliant

In the case of investment risk, the Company has adopted a policy of spreading
investments in different institutions and commercial banks recognized by
the Insurance Board so as to give a higher contribution to solvency levels.
The underwriting risks have been kept within the proper levels of adequate
assets and also within the reinsurance arrangements

....................................................................................................................
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Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

CICL’s Level of Compliance

Key Responsibilities of the Board
Recommending the appointment and
reappointment of the External Auditors to Compliant
shareholders

Recommending to the shareholders for the appointment of the External
Auditor is done based on the review process, made by the Audit committee
and Management Team, and the direct dialogue with the External Auditors.

Chairman, Managing Director, Independent Director and Secretary to the Board
The role of the Chairman is to conduct Board meetings in a manner which
ensures that there is effective participation of all Directors and that their
individual contribution and concerns are objectively assessed prior to
making key decisions and the balance of power is maintained. He ensures
that the Board is in complete control of the Company’s corporate affairs.
Division of responsibilities between the
Chairman also supports the Managing Director to manage day to day
Compliant
Chairman and the Managing Director
operations of the Company. Chairman is the ultimate point of contact to
the shareholders at the AGM.

Role of Independent Director

Compliant

Secretary to the Board of Directors

Compliant

The Managing Director is responsible for day to day operations of CICL and
accountable to the Board of Directors.
The Board consists of an Independent Non-Executive Director who expresses
his independent views about the matters that need Board decisions. His
views are considered by the Board in arriving at decisions.
The Board Secretary, a registered and reputed Secretarial Company is
responsible for convening Board Meetings, Annual General Meetings and
Extraordinary General Meetings. The Secretaries keep minutes, prepare
agendas and conduct elections whenever necessary. They enjoy neutral
status vis-à-vis the Board of Directors.

Appraisal of Managing Director
The Board is required, at least annually, to
assess the performance of the Managing Compliant
Director

The Board sets targets (both financial and non-financial) for each of the
financial years based on the corporate plan, reviews them on a regular basis
and discusses at the Board meetings. If such targets are not met, it also
considers whether there are reasonable grounds for such departures and
takes relevant action.

Remuneration of Directors and Management
Formal and transparent procedure for
remuneration for the Directors and Compliant
Management

....................................................................................................................

The Board decides the remuneration of Directors and the Remuneration
and HR Committee sets remuneration, perquisites and allowances of the
Management and the other employees based on industry and market
surveys. The Chairman of the Board also chairs the Remuneration and
HR Committee. Remuneration levels are designed to attract, retain and
motivate persons who contribute to the achievement of the corporate plan.
59
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Compliance Status Contd.
Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

CICL’s Level of Compliance

Remuneration of Directors and Management
As a policy, the Company maintains remuneration at current market rates
and provides incentives for staff members who make special contributions
to the operation of the Company.
Level and make-up of remuneration

Compliant

Disclosure of the Remuneration

Compliant

The Remuneration and HR Committee decides on the cadre and
remuneration levels as per the recommendations made by the senior
management, and refers its decisions to the Managing Director. Eventually,
the Board approves the remuneration of each category and special
remuneration for staff members considering the recommendations of the
Committee and the Managing Director.
The aggregate remuneration of the Managing Director and the other
Directors is shown on page 146.

Relationship with Shareholders

Constructive use of Annual General Meeting
Compliant
(AGM) and its notice.

The Board encourages all shareholders to attend and actively participate
in the AGM. During the year 2015, the participation of the shareholders at
the AGM was 71%. The Board members and Company representatives are
available to clarify the matters raised by shareholders.
As per the Companies Act No 07 of 2007 annual report together with
notice of meeting, form of proxy and any other document (if any) are
circulated to the shareholders at least 15 working days prior to the date of
Annual General Meeting.

Relationship with Shareholders
Separate resolutions for each substantially
Compliant
separate issue

Each substantially separate issue is proposed as a separate resolution. The
adoption of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements is proposed as
a separate issue.

Summary of procedures governing voting at
Compliant
the AGM

A summary of procedures governing voting at the AGM is provided in the
Proxy Form which is circulated to the shareholders, fifteen working days
prior to the AGM.

Major transactions

The Company’s future strategies and their potential impact, if any, have been
disclosed in the Chairman’s Message and the Managing Director’s Review.

Compliant

....................................................................................................................
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Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

CICL’s Level of Compliance

Disclosure of Information In Respect of Directors
The profiles of all Board Members are provided on pages 64 to 67.
Disclosure of the Directors in the Annual
Compliant
Report

Details of Related Party Transactions are provided on pages 148 to 157.
The composition of Board Committees, details of attendance at Board
Meetings and Board Committee Meetings are provided on pages 46 to 49.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting
Presentation of fair assessment of the Compliant
Company’s financial position, conduct and
prospects

Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (comprising of SLFRSs and LKASs) and other Laws
and Regulations applicable. The Company’s financial position and prospects
have been disclosed in the Chairman’s Message, the Managing Director’s
Review and the Management Discussion and Analysis.

Statutory and Regulatory Reporting

The Annual Report, which is the main communication tool between the
Company and the shareholders, is prepared and presented in compliance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,
Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000 and other rules and
regulations of the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka and other applicable rules
and regulations of the country.

Compliant

The Annual Financial Statements and Regulatory Reports are submitted to
the Authorities on a timely basis.
The Compliance Officer is appointed by the Board of Directors.
Accountability and Audit
Responsibilities of the Board for the
preparation of Financial Statements and
Compliant
responsibilities of the External Auditors with
regard to forming an opinion thereon
Directors’ Report

Compliant

....................................................................................................................

The respective responsibilities of Board of Directors and the External
Auditors are described in the Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities,
and the External Auditors’ Report on pages 80 to 82 respectively.
The Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the affairs of the Company
is presented on pages 46 to 49.
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Compliance Status Contd.
Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

Declaration of Going Concern by the Directors Compliant

Internal Controls

Compliant

Internal Audit

Compliant

CICL’s Level of Compliance

The Board after conducting necessary reviews and inquiries decided to
apply the ‘going concern’ assumption in presenting the Company’s Financial
Statements.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s system of Internal
Controls and the continuous review of their effectiveness. On behalf of
the Board, Internal and External Auditors ensure that there is an effective
system of internal controls.
The internal audit function is carried out by the team of Internal Auditors
headed by a person well experienced and competent to carry out the internal
audit functions. The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Chairman and
the Board of Directors.
The Board is of the opinion that the function of the Internal Auditor would
provide a more independent view on the Company’s system of internal
controls.

Audit Committee and Investment Committee

Audit Committee and Financial Disclosure

Compliant

Investment Committee

Compliant

....................................................................................................................

The Audit Committee is a subcommittee of the Board and comprises of
four (04) Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by a
Chartered Accountant who is a professional Director. The term of reference
under which the Committee has been appointed sets out its scope and
responsibilities and enables it to operate with appropriate authority,
independence and objectivity.
The Investment Committee is chaired by the Chairman with the participation
of four (04) Directors and includes a member from the senior management.
The Committee meets regularly as and when investment decisions are
to be taken, to review the assets allocation and the performance of the
key investment portfolios providing guidance on investment strategy at a
macro level. It also monitors compliance with investment, asset and liability
as well as liquidity policies adopted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance requirement

Compliance Status

CICL’s Level of Compliance

Compliance

Regulatory Compliance

Compliant

The Company has established effective policies and procedures to make
sure that all activities of the Company are conducted in accordance
with the applicable Laws and Regulations. Therefore, the Company has
appointed a Compliance Officer to continuously monitor the Company’s
compliance with the applicable Laws and Regulations. The Compliance
Officer submits reports for review by the Board.
The Company has submitted all required information to the Regulators
throughout the year.

....................................................................................................................
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Board of Directors Contd.
Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris - Chairman

Mr. K. Jayantha Sesiri - Director

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris is the Chairman of the Coop Life Insurance
Company, National Co-operative Council of Sri Lanka, Wennappuwa
Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Limited and Chilaw District Cooperative council. He is also the Director of Sri Lanka Co-operative
Rural Bank Federation Limited and National Institute of Co-operative
Development - Polgolla.

He holds a Bachelor of Science Management Special Degree. Mr. K.J.
Sesiri is the Chairman of Beralapanatara Multi-Purpose Co-operative
Society Ltd and Matara District Co-operative Council. He is Vice
Chairman of the Matara District Tea Producers Co-operative Society
Union. He is also Director of Matara District Co-operative Rural Bank
Union Ltd, Sri Lanka Co-operative Consumer Federation and Coop Life
Insurance Limited also.

Mr. K. R. K. N. Jayasinghe - Vice Chairman

Mr. Rajeewasiri Sooriyaarachchi - Director

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe is the Chairman of Postal & Telecom Employees
Co-operative Bank Society Ltd .

Mr. Sooriyaarachchi was the former Chairman of the Gampha District
Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd. He was also the former chairman
of the Puttalam Salt Ltd.

Mr. Wasantha Ranasinghe - Managing Director
Mr. Wasantha Ranasinghe is a Fellow Member (F.C.A.) of Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Society of Certified
Management Accountants Sri Lanka (FSCMA). He is also a member
(LIDPM) of Institute of Data Processing Management (UK). He holds
MBA, PIM and B.SC. Management (Special) Degree University of Sri
Jayawardenapura. He counts over 30 years Public and Private sector
managerial positions as a Director, CEO and CFO.

Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge - Director
Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge is the Chairman of Central Provincial Cooperative Rural Bank Union Ltd. and Pujapitiya Multi-Purpose Cooperative Society Ltd.

Mr. C. P. Jayasinghe - Director
Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe holds Bachelor of Arts Degree & he is the Chairman
of Dambadeniya Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd. He is Vice
Chairman of Wayamba Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd., Wayamba
Co-operative Consumer Federation and District Co-operative Council
of Kurunegala.

Mr. Wasantha Ranasinghe was the Director, Chief Executive Office
/ Chief Financial Officer of the LAUGFS Group of Company and the
Managing Director of Prime Engineering Lanka (Pvt) Ltd. He is also a
Director of the Sirioya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd & Co-operative Leasing
Company Ltd.

Mr. D. P. Amaradewa - Director
Mr. D. P. Amradeva was a former Chairman of Nattandiya Multi-Purpose
Co-operative Society Limited.

....................................................................................................................

66

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Mr. A.D.T.S Palitha – Director

Mr. Susil Shantha Weerasekera - Director

Mr. Palitha has completed Bachelor of Commerce (Special) Degree at
University of Kelaniya. Also he is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. Currently he is the Partner at
TSP Associates, Chartered Accountants .

Mr. Weerasekera is the Chairman of Weligama Multi-Purpose Cooperative Society Ltd., Matara District Tea producers Co-operative
Union Limited and CAPRO Co-op Southern Limited and the Director
of Matara District Cooperative Council.

Mr. Vajira Prabath Jayasuriya – Director
Mr. Jayasuriya has completed the Bachelor of Arts Degree and Master
of Arts (Sociology) University of Kelaniya. He is the Chairman of
the Galigamuwa Multi-Purpose Co-operative Society Ltd. Also Mr.
Jayasuriya functioning as a Director of Kegalle Dist. Co-operative Rural
Bank Union Ltd. and District Co-operative Council of Kegalle and also
functioning as a Director of Lanka Electricity Company Ltd (LECO).

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathne – Director
Mr. Kularathne is the Chairman of the Paduwasnuwara Multi-Purpose
Co-operative Society Ltd. He is a Managing Director of Puttalam Salt
Ltd. Also functioning as a Director of Wayamba Co-operative Rural
Bank Union and Kuliyapitiya District Co-operative Council.

Mr. R.M.B.M. Bandara - Director.
Mr. Bandara is the Chairman of the Polonnaruwa Multi-Purpose Cooperative Society Ltd. and Polonnaruwa District Co-operative Rural
Bank Union Ltd. Also he is Director of Polonnaruwa District Cooperative Council, Sri Lanka Co-operative Rural Bank Federation. and
National Co-operative Council of Sri Lanka.
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Corporate Management Team Contd.
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Branch Management Team Contd.
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Certificate of IBNR and LAT

15 February 2017
To the shareholders of Co-operative Insurance Company Limited
Co-operative Insurance Company Limited 31 December 2016 Net
IBNR and LAT Certification
The results have been determined in accordance with internationally
accepted actuarial principles.

I hereby certify that the undiscounted Central Estimate IBNR provision,
including an allowance for CHE of LKR122,310,948 is adequate in
relation to the Claim Liability of Co-operative Insurance Company
Limited as at the 31 December 2016, net of reinsurance. This IBNR
provision, together with the Case Reserves held by the Company, is
expected to be adequate to meet the future liabilities in respect of
the Company's incurred claims obligations as at 31 December 2016,
in many but not all scenarios of future experience. (The undiscounted
IBNR provision, gross of reinsurance, including an allowance for CHE is
LKR 130,890,680).

I have relied upon information and data provided by the management
of the Company and I have not independently verified the data supplied,
beyond applying checks to satisfy myself as to the reasonability of the
data.

At the end of each reporting period, companies are required to carry
out a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) as laid out in SLFRS 4. The LAT
is performed to assess the adequacy of the carrying amount of the
Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR). I hereby certify that the UPR
provision of LKR1,147,152,468 set by the Company, net of reinsurance,
is adequate in relation to the unexpired risks of Co-operative Insurance
Company Limited as at 31 December 2016, in many but not all scenarios
of future experience . As such, there is no premium deficiency to be
recognised by the Company. (The UPR provision, gross of reinsurance,
is LKR1,344,271,814).

Yuen Leng Chin
Fellow of the Actuarial Society of Malaysia (FASM)
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (FIA)
For and on behalf of NMG Consulting
Dated 15 February 2017

T: +65 6325 9855 F: +65 6325 4700 E: contact@NMG-Group.com
www. NMG-Group.com
30 Hill Street, #0302A, Singapore 179360
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Statement of Director’s Responsibilities
The responsibility of Directors in relation to Financial Statements of
the company prepared in accordance with the Companies Act No.
07 of 2007 is set out in the following statement. These differ from
the responsibilities of the External Auditors in relation to Financial
Statements, which are set out in Report of the External Auditors given
on page 82.

4. They are also responsible for taking measures to safeguard
the assets of the Company and in that context to have proper
regard to the establishment of appropriate systems of internal
control with a view to prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
5. The Directors are required to prepare the Financial Statements
to provide the Auditors with every opportunity to take
whatever steps and undertake whatever inspection they may
consider appropriate to enable them to give their audit opinion.

1. The Directors are required by the Companies Act No. 07 of
2007 to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year,
which gives a true and fair view of
•

the state of affairs of the Company as at the Balance Sheet
date; and

•

the Profit or Loss of the Company for the financial year
ended on the Balance Sheet date.

6. The Directors continue to adopt the Going Concern basis
in preparing the Financial Statements. The Directors, after
making inquiries and review of the Company’s budget for 2016,
including cash flows and borrowing facilities, consider that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operation.
7. The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, are
satisfied that all statutory payments in relation to all relevant
regulatory and statutory authorities which were due and
payable by the Company as at the Balance Sheet date have
been paid or sufficiently provided for.

2. The Directors consider that these Financial Statements
have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and material departure, if any, have been
disclosed and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates and in compliance with the applicable Accounting
Standards and Directions issued by the Insurance Board of Sri
Lanka.

By Order of the Board,

3. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company
keeps sufficient accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Company with reasonable accuracy and to
enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements have
been prepared and presented in accordance with the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards, provide the information required
by the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and comply with the
requirements of the Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No.
43 of 2000.

....................................................................................................................

Business Management Services Ltd.
Secretaries to the Company
May 30, 2017
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Audit Committee Report
Role and objectives

Internal controls and internal audit

Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting system with an aim
of safeguarding the interest of all the stakeholders of the Co-operative
Insurance Company Limited. As defined in the Terms of Reference
of Audit Committee, the Committee assist the Board of Directors
in carrying out its responsibilities in the areas of financial reporting
system, business risk management, internal controls and internal
audit, related party transactions, compliance in specially with Sri
Lanka Financial Reporting Standards, Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
and Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000 and External
Audit and Auditor’s independence.

Internal control framework is regularly reviewed and Manager Internal
Audit is requested to report on areas of importance. Internal Audit
reports were discussed in detail with the presence of respective Heads
of Departments and branch level management. Further, a mechanism
is in place to follow up actions and feedback. Related parties and
transactions with related parties were also identified discussed at the
meetings.

External audit
The Audit Committee perused the Independent Auditor’s Report,
Management Letters and other communications during the course of
the audit of financial statements 2016. Management responses are
followed up as well in implementing Auditor’s recommendations.

Composition and proceedings
The Audit Committee comprises of the following Independent, NonExecutive Directors

Conclusion and recommendation

• Mr. A. D. T. S. Palitha (Chairman)

The Committee, together with the management reviewed the system
of internal controls, risk management procedures and appropriateness
and application of accounting policies of the Company and is satisfied
with them. Further improvements are also encouraged to meet
emerging challenges.

• Mr. D. P. Amaradeva
• Mr. R. G. K. Rankothge
• Mr. J. M. V. P. Jayasuriya
Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. Managing Director,
Chief Operating Officer and Heads of Finance, Marketing, Human
Resources, Information Technology attend the meetings on invitation.
Manager Internal Audit functions as the Secretary to the Audit
Committee. During the financial year 2016, twenty-one meetings have
been conducted and all the matters material have been reported to
the Board. Audit Committee held two meetings with the External
Auditors, S J M S Associates, Chartered Accountants in relation to the
audit of financial statements 2016.

The Company’s Internal Audit has been effective and External Auditors
have been independent throughout the year.

A. D. T. S. Palitha
Chairman - Audit Committee

Financial reporting

Colombo

Audit Committee reviews annual and quarterly financial statements
along with their disclosure requirements. Extent of disclosures is
discussed and reported to the Board of Directors.

....................................................................................................................

17th May, 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
No. 11, Castle Lane,

Tel: 5364293, 5444420, Fax: 2504008

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE
COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Co-operative insurance Limited (“the Company”), and
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiary (“Group”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Board’s responsibility for the financial statements
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
and for such internal control as Board determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by Board, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as
at 31st December 2016 and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards.
Other matter

a)

The basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the
audit are as stated above.

b)

In our opinion:

_

we have obtained all the information and explanations
that were required for the audit and, as far as appears
from our examination, proper accounting records have
been kept by the Company.

_

the financial statements of the Company give a true and
fair view of its financial position as at 31st December
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards.

_

the financial statements of the Company and the Group
comply with the requirements of sections 151 and 153
of the Companies Act.

As required by Section 47(2) of the Regulation of Insurance
Industry Act, No.43 of 2000, as far as appears from our
examination, the accounting records of the Company have
been maintained in the manner required by the rules issued
by the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka, so as to clearly indicate
the true and fair view of the financial position of the Company.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 11th July 2016.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
As required by section 163(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of
2007, we state the following:

SJMS ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Colombo
17 May 2017

P. E. A. Jayewickreme, M. B. Ismail, Ms. S. L. Jayasuriya,
G. J. David, Ms. F. M. Marikkar, Ms. M. S. J. Henry, R. H. M. Minfaz, Ms. S. Y. Kodagoda
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Statement of Financial Position
Group

Company

Note

2016
Rs.

Property, plant and equipment

4

1,029,129,996

995,145,774

676,489,451

782,372,876

792,220,399

676,489,451

Intangible assets

5

3,254,012

5,223,164

5,683,179

3,073,679

4,847,582

5,683,179

Financial investments

6

3,364,941,506

2,760,621,980

2,420,277,097

1,903,630,823

1,337,622,691

2,317,275,108

Investment in subsidiary

7

-

-

-

400,000,040

500,000,040

100,000,040

Loans to life policyholders

8

18,244,588

14,757,093

11,213,065

-

-

11,213,065

Deferred tax asset

20

39,207,757

6,915,144

-

39,207,757

6,915,144

-

Reinsurance receivables

9

93,262,500

32,030,715

43,879,482

82,931,657

21,272,032

43,879,482

Premium receivables

10

440,911,935

310,544,767

231,625,872

418,971,726

293,536,246

231,625,872

483,819

-

-

11,998,559

5,277,178

1,219,108

As at 31 December,

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

2015
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

Assets

Related party receivables
Other assets

11

125,198,287

121,559,965

133,574,040

69,296,032

78,289,729

133,524,041

Cash and cash equivalents

12

84,854,773

44,802,188

327,814,121

75,831,464

36,865,532

327,560,283

5,199,489,173

4,291,600,791

3,850,556,307

3,787,314,614

3,076,846,572

3,848,469,629

1,115,367,950

1,004,909,610

1,004,909,610

1,115,367,950

1,004,909,610

1,004,909,610

305,431,791

261,518,182

113,274,337

268,847,038

233,220,060

113,274,337

(135,636,652)

(61,118,751)

17,029,933

(87,476,248)

(39,017,836)

17,029,933

398,581,474

381,333,203

360,289,041

398,604,509

349,965,668

358,887,960

1,683,744,564

1,586,642,244

1,495,502,921

1,695,343,249

1,549,077,502

1,494,101,840

97,100,338

-

-

-

-

-

1,780,844,902

1,586,642,244

1,495,502,921

1,695,343,249

1,549,077,502

1,494,101,840

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent
Stated capital

13

Revaluation reserve
Available for sale reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

16

....................................................................................................................
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Statement of Financial Position Contd.
Group

As at 31 December,

Note

2016
Rs.

Company

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

2015
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings

14

22,145,542

33,808,571

149,660,538

17,625,419

28,027,997

149,660,538

Insurance liabilities

15

2,885,191,064

2,351,501,034

1,974,839,035

1,653,884,388

1,277,037,794

1,974,839,035

Retirement benefit obligations

17

45,713,608

31,895,322

31,403,673

32,130,390

22,679,048

31,403,673

Reinsurance creditors

18

122,786,350

33,220,123

25,749,600

100,183,583

8,007,050

25,749,600

Other liabilities

19

301,735,859

197,371,489

165,828,933

247,075,734

134,855,172

165,143,336

Bank overdrafts

41,071,849

57,162,009

7,571,607

41,071,849

57,162,009

7,571,607

Total liabilities

3,418,644,271

2,704,958,547

2,355,053,386

2,091,971,365

1,527,769,071

2,354,367,789

Total equity and liabilities

5,199,489,173

4,291,600,791

3,850,556,307

3,787,314,614

3,076,846,572

3,848,469,629

The notes to the financial statements from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

Laksiri Nawaratne
Finance Manager
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

W.L.A. Pieris
Chairman

K.R.W. Ranasinghe
Managing Director

Colombo.
17 May 2017
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Group

For the year ended 31 December,

2016
Rs.

Note

Gross written premium

21

Less premium ceded to reinsurers

22

Net written premium

2015
Rs.

2,940,072,597
(321,643,278)
2,618,429,320

Net change in reserves for unearned premium

23

Net earned premium

Company

(258,345,122)

2016
Rs.

2,216,521,622

2,475,543,314

(101,021,036)
2,115,500,587

2015
Rs.

(280,627,768)
2,194,915,546

(213,978,244)

(258,345,122)

1,724,542,837
(69,008,451)
1,655,534,386
(213,978,244)

2,360,084,198

1,901,522,343

1,936,570,424

1,441,556,142

287,385,053

234,144,479

192,795,948

123,281,494

Other revenue
Net finance income

24

Unrealised losses

25

(3,126,300)

(8,972,030)

-

-

Realised loss

6.3

(29,913,959)

-

-

-

Policy administration fees

26

91,966,277

75,110,018

91,966,277

75,110,018

Other income

27

10,441,513

34,652,119

9,729,110

20,758,549

356,752,583

334,934,584

294,491,336

219,150,061

2,716,836,782

2,236,456,927

2,231,061,760

1,660,706,203

1,435,962,432

971,497,220

1,354,063,910

869,450,045

Total net revenue

Net benefits and claims
Gross benefits and claims incurred

28

Claims ceded to reinsurers

(81,841,574)

Change in life contract liabilities

151,532,183
1,505,653,041

....................................................................................................................
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(9,795,607)

(70,585,218)

1,127,557

206,761,950

-

-

1,168,463,563

1,283,478,692

870,577,602
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Contd.
Group

For the year ended 31 December,

2016
Rs.

Note

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Other expenses
Underwriting and policy acquisition cost

29

220,274,311

189,642,323

153,697,752

121,603,219

Other operating and administrative expenses

30

829,033,311

675,281,929

604,743,561

493,080,780

1,049,307,622

864,924,253

758,441,314

614,683,999

Profit before income tax

31

161,876,119

203,069,112

189,141,755

175,444,602

Income tax expenses

32

(32,502,884)

(53,556,732)

(28,313,877)

(53,148,531)

129,373,235

149,512,381

160,827,877

122,296,071

Revaluation of land and buildings

43,645,299

124,086,916

21,326,299

92,570,052

De-recognition of revaluation reserve

(1,640,476)

-

(1,640,476)

-

Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plan

(6,301,322)

4,141,528

(4,693,864)

321,883

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss ;

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss ;
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets
Tax on other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year, net
of tax

....................................................................................................................

(97,168,907)

(112,690,905)

(52,419,540)

(55,619,133)

24,736,070

57,003,510

21,306,692

56,872,307

(36,729,338)

72,541,048

(16,120,890)

94,145,110

92,643,897

222,053,429

144,706,988

216,441,180
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Group

For the year ended 31 December

2016
Rs.

Note

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Profit attributable to :
Equity holders of the company

131,091,431

149,512,381

160,827,877

122,296,071

-

-

-

129,373,235

149,512,381

160,827,877

122,296,071

Equity holders of the company

97,453,361

222,053,429

144,706,988

216,441,180

Non controlling interest

(4,809,464)

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

92,643,897

222,053,429

144,706,988

216,441,180

1.20

1.49

1.49

1.22

Non controlling interest

(1,718,196)

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to :

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

33

The notes to the financial statements from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

....................................................................................................................
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Non
controlling
interests

Retained
earnings

Stated
capital

Revaluation
reserve

Available for
sale reserve

1,004,909,610

113,274,337

19,510,661

327,839,660

-

1,465,534,268

-

-

(2,480,728)

32,449,381

-

29,968,653

1,004,909,610

113,274,337

17,029,933

360,289,041

-

1,495,502,921

-

-

-

(41,413,018)

-

(41,413,018)

-

-

-

149,512,381

-

149,512,381

- Net change in revaluation reserve

-

124,086,916

-

-

-

124,086,916

- Net change in fair value of available for sale financial
assets

-

-

(112,690,905)

-

-

(112,690,905)

- Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plan

-

-

-

4,141,528

-

Tax on other comprehensive income

-

24,156,929

34,542,221

(1,695,640)

-

148,243,845

(78,148,684)

2,445,888

-

72,541,049

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

148,243,845

(78,148,684)

151,958,269

-

222,053,430

Issue of shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

Ordinary dividend - 2014

-

-

-

(89,501,089)

-

(89,501,089)

1,004,909,610

261,518,182

(61,118,751)

381,333,203

-

Group
Balance as at 01 January 2015
Prior year adjustments (Note 38)
Restated balance as at 01 January 2015
Deferred tax on split

Total

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2015

....................................................................................................................
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4,141,528
57,003,510

1,586,642,244
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Stated
capital

Revaluation
reserve

1,004,909,610

261,518,182

(61,118,751)

Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary (Note 16)

-

-

-

Effect on partial disposal of a subsidiary

-

(5,659,624)

4,420,183

Group
Balance as at 01 January 2016

Available for
sale reserve

Non
controlling
interests

Retained
earnings
381,333,203
(5,603,146)

Total
-

1,586,642,244

-

(5,603,146)

4,932,786

101,909,802

105,603,146

101,909,802

1,686,642,245

1,004,909,610

255,858,558

(56,698,568)

380,662,843

-

-

-

131,091,431

-

40,297,449

-

(1,640,476)

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year

(1,718,196)

129,373,235

-

3,347,850

43,645,299

-

1,640,476

-

-

Other comprehensive income for the year
- Net change in revaluation of land and building
- De-recognition of revaluation reserve
- Net change in fair value of available for sale
financial assets

-

-

(90,456,502)

-

(6,712,405)

(97,168,907)

- Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plan

-

-

-

(6,060,203)

(241,119)

(6,301,322)

Tax on other comprehensive income

-

10,916,261

11,518,418

1,786,984

514,407

24,736,070

-

49,573,234

(78,938,084)

(2,632,743)

-

49,573,234

(78,938,084)

110,458,340

-

1,115,367,950

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of shares
Ordinary dividends - 2015
Balance as at 31 December 2016

....................................................................................................................

(3,091,267)

(35,088,861)

128,458,688

(4,809,464)

94,284,374

-

-

-

110,458,340

-

-

(110,540,057)

-

(110,540,057)

305,431,791

(135,636,652)

97,100,338

1,780,844,902

89

398,581,474
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Statement of Changes in Equity Contd.
Stated
capital

Company
Balance as at January 01, 2015

Revaluation
reserve

1,004,909,610

113,274,337

Prior year adjustments (Note 38)
Restated balance as at January 01, 2015
Transfered to Coop Life Insurance Ltd.

1,004,909,610

113,274,337

-

Retained
earnings

Available for
sale reserve

(4,103,651)

Total

19,510,661

326,438,579

1,464,133,187

(2,480,728)

32,449,381

29,968,653

17,029,933

358,887,960

1,494,101,840

(26,447,760)

Deferred tax on split

-

(30,551,411)

(41,413,018)

(41,413,018)

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year

-

-

-

122,296,071

122,296,071

- Net change in revaluation of land and building

-

92,570,052

-

-

92,570,052

- Net change in fair value of available for sale financial
assets

-

-

(55,619,133)

-

(55,619,133)

- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan

-

-

-

321,883

Tax on other comprehensive income

-

31,479,322

26,019,124

(626,139)

56,872,307

-

124,049,374

(29,600,009)

(304,256)

94,145,109

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

124,049,374

(29,600,009)

121,991,815

216,441,180

Issue of shares

-

-

-

-

-

Ordinary dividend - 2014

-

-

-

(89,501,089)

(89,501,089)

1,004,909,610

233,220,060

(39,017,836)

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2015

....................................................................................................................

90

349,965,668

321,883

1,549,077,502

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Stated
capital

Company
Balance as at 01 January 2016

Revaluation
reserve

Retained earnings

Available for
sale reserve

Total

1,004,909,610

233,220,060

(39,017,836)

349,965,668

1,549,077,502

-

-

-

160,827,877

160,827,877

-

21,326,299

-

-

21,326,299

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
- Net change in revaluation of land and building
- De-recognition of revaluation reserve

(1,640,476)

1,640,476

- Net change in fair value of available for sale financial
assets

-

-

(52,419,540)

-

(52,419,540)

- Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plan

-

-

-

(4,693,864)

(4,693,864)

Tax on other comprehensive income

-

15,941,155

3,961,128

1,404,409

21,306,692

-

35,626,978

(48,458,412)

(1,648,979)

(14,480,413)

-

35,626,978

(48,458,412)

159,178,898

146,347,464

110,458,340

-

-

-

110,458,340

-

-

-

(110,540,057)

1,115,367,950

268,847,038

(87,476,248)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of shares
Ordinary dividends - 2015
Balance as at 31 December 2016

398,604,509

(110,540,057)
1,695,343,248

The notes to the financial statements from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

....................................................................................................................

91

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Statement of Cash Flows
Group

Profit Before taxation

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

161,876,119

203,069,112

189,141,755

175,444,602

(240,686,559)

(197,820,742)

(129,204,926)

Adjustments for:

-

Interest income

(293,469,297)

Interest expense

6,084,244

1,361,987

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment

88,103,806

Impairment loss on premium receivable

22,184,917

Impairment loss on other assets

5,024,794

1,361,987

58,753,504

71,137,699

48,529,245

4,322,730

22,184,917

4,322,730

1,301,348

2,650,975

1,301,348

2,650,975

-

382,007

-

-

2,088,916

2,237,538

1,893,664

1,885,323

36,955,296

8,972,030

-

-

978,923

(492,575)

-

(12,395,357)

Impairment loss on property, plant & equipment
Amortization of Intangible assets
Fair value gains or losses
(Profit)/ loss on sale of tangible assets
Depreciation write back
Provision for employee benefits
Change in operating assets

978,923

(480,891)

-

(12,395,357)

9,823,109

7,756,472

6,878,962

5,266,453

35,927,381

35,943,549

100,721,319

97,368,456

(199,208,590)

(107,803,879)

(184,822,788)

(83,610,534)

Change in operating liabilities

193,930,598

28,747,831

204,397,096

30,588,624

Change in general insurance reserves

533,690,030

171,425,891

376,846,595

171,425,891

-

206,761,950

-

-

564,339,419

335,075,343

497,142,222

215,772,437

Increase in long term insurance provision
Cash flows from operating activities
Gratuity paid

(2,268,645)

(3,123,296)

(2,121,485)

(3,056,859)

Taxation paid

(24,812,737)

(41,364,087)

(24,812,737)

(41,364,087)

Net cash from operating activities

537,258,037

290,587,960

470,208,000

171,351,491

....................................................................................................................
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Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investments net of sale proceeds
Investment in subsidiary

(678,587,536)

(395,703,316)

(671,422,903)

(10,958,825)

-

-

-

(237,188,738)

Sale proceeds from disposal of subsidiary

100,000,000

-

100,000,000

-

Interest received

199,104,797

215,189,033

199,104,797

134,160,089

948,378

1,108,660

18,948,378

1,108,660

Dividend received
Interest paid

-

Proceeds on sale of tangible assets

3,827,256

Purchase of intangible assets

(119,762)

Purchase of tangible assets
Net cash used in from investing activities

(1,361,987)
830,510
(1,777,524)

3,827,256
(119,762)

(1,361,987)
830,510
(1,253,750)

(88,541,061)

(215,664,387)

(50,062,209)

(168,937,893)

(463,367,927)

(397,379,012)

(399,724,443)

(283,601,936)

-

(130,000,000)

-

(130,000,000)

(17,747,365)

(6,310,198)

(15,427,465)

(5,768,894)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of term loan
Repayment of finance lease
Dividend paid
Net cash used in from financing activities
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

-

(89,501,089)

-

(89,501,089)

(17,747,365)

(225,811,287)

(15,427,465)

(225,269,983)

56,142,745

(332,602,338)

55,056,093

(337,520,427)

(12,359,822)

320,242,516

(20,296,477)

319,988,677

-

-

-

(2,764,727)

43,782,923

(12,359,822)

34,759,616

(20,296,477)

Cash at bank

82,860,485

32,070,098

74,098,177

31,809,335

Cash in hand

5,056,197

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Transfer to Cooplife
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Note A
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

1,994,287

12,317,369

1,733,287

Cash in transit

-

414,720

-

-

Bank overdraft

(41,071,849)

(57,162,009)

(41,071,849)

(57,162,009)

43,782,923

(12,359,822)

34,759,616

(20,296,477)

....................................................................................................................
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Notes to the Financial Statement
1. Reporting entity

2. Basis of preparation

1.1 Corporate information

2.1 Statement of compliance

Co-operative Insurance Company Limited is a Company incorporated
on 11 August 1997 with limited liability and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the Company
are situated at No. 74/5, Grandpass road, Colombo 14.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as SLFRS/LKAS)
as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, the
requirements of Companies Act No 7 of 2007 and the Regulation of
Insurance Industry Act, No. 43 of 2000.

1.2 Consolidated financial statements
The financial statements have the following components:

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 December 2016, comprise the Company (parent company) and
its subsidiary fully owned till 31 March 2017. On 31 March 2017 Cooperative Insurance Company Limited sold 6,000,000 shares (12%
stake) and on 30 April 2016 4,000,000 shares (8% stake) to other cooperative institutions, Cooplife Insurance Limited (together referred
to as the “Group” and individually as “Group Entities”).

• Statement of Financial Position (Ref Page 83)
• Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Ref
Page 85)
• Statement of Changes in Equity (Ref Pages 88 to 91)
• Statement of Cash Flows (Ref Page 92)
• Notes to the Financial statements (Ref Pages 94 to 189)

The Financial Statements of all Companies within the Group are
prepared for a common financial year which ends on 31 December.

2.2 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
authorized for issue by the Directors on 17 May 2017.

1.3 Principal activities and nature of operations
The Group is primarily involved in the Non-life and Life insurance
business. In compliance with the requirements of the Regulation of
Insurance Industry (Amendment) Act No 3 of 2011, the company
completed the segregation of the life and non-life insurance businesses
on 1 January 2015. The Company continues to carry on the non-life
insurance business and its life insurance business operates under it’s
subsidiary Coop Life with effect from 1 January 2015.

2.3 Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the
financial statements. Items of a dissimilar nature or function are
presented separately unless they are immaterial.
2.4 Going Concern

There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities during the financial year under review.

The management has made an assessment of the Parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Parent company has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
consolidated Financial Statements continue to be prepared on a going
concern basis.

1.4 Number of employees
The staff strength of the Company as at 31 December 2016 is 706
(2015 – 550) and the Group is 951 (2015 – 803)

....................................................................................................................
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2.5 Basis of measurement

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and
critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for the following material items which are measured on
an alternative basis at the reporting date:
Item

Measurement
basis

Land and buildings

Fair value

4

Useful lives of property and equipment

3.5.7

15

Motor vehicles

Fair value

4

Impairment of non-financial assets

3.6.5

16

Available for sale financial assets Fair value

6.2

Classification of financial instruments

Non derivative financial
instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value

6.3

Unearned premium

Policy holder liabilities

Actuarial
valuation

15

Actuarially
valued and
recognized at
present value

17

Defined benefit liabilities

Note no.

Critical Accounting Estimate/Judgment

Disclosure
Note

Page

3.3

30

3.9.3 a

17

Insurance liabilities - Life

3.9.1

17

Provision for gross outstanding claims

3.9.2

17

Provision for IBNR/IBNER

3.9.3

17

Employee benefits

3.11

19

Deferred taxation

3.18.2

22

3. Significant accounting policies

2.6 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR),
which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency. Except where indicated, financial information
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these financial statements, unless
otherwise indicated. The accounting policies of the company have
been consistently applied by the Group entities where applicable and
deviations if any, have been disclosed accordingly.

2.7 Use of estimates and judgments

3.1 Basis of consolidation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

3.1.1 Business combinations
The Group accounts for business combinations, using the acquisition
method when control is transferred to the group. The consideration
transferred in acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

....................................................................................................................

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets
the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it
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Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

3.2 Foreign currency

3.1.2 Subsidiaries

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective
functional currencies of Group companies at the exchange rates at the
date of the transaction.

3.2.1 Foreign currency transactions

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The group controls
an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements
of the subsidiary is included in the consolidated financial statement
from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

The directors have concluded that the Group controls all subsidiaries
as it has majority control and voting rights over its subsidiaries as
depicted in Note 3.1.4 below:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
not translated.

3.1.4 Interest in subsidiaries

3.3 Financial instruments

Set out below is the Group’s principal subsidiary as at 31st December
2016.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-tomaturity financial assets, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets.

3.1.3 Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies

Name of
entity
Co-op Life
Insurance
Limited

Place of business/
country of
incorporation

Colombo /
Sri Lanka

Percentage of
ownership
2016

80%

2015

100%

Judgments are made in the classification of financial instruments
based on the management’s intentions on acquisition.

Principal
activities

Life
insurance

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the
other financial liabilities category.
3.3.1 Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities –
Recognition and de-recognition

3.1.5 Loss of control
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables and debt securities
issued on the date when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date.
The Group de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial

3.1.6 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and
expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.

....................................................................................................................

96

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control
over the transferred asset. Any interest in such de-recognized financial
assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a
separate asset or liability.

Available-for-sale financial These assets are initially recognized at
assets
fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at fair value
and changes therein, are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve. When these assets are
derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
balances and call deposits with original
maturities of three months or less. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management, are included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flow.

3.3.2 Non-derivative financial assets – Recognition and Measurement
Held to maturity

Premium Receivable

These assets are initially recognized at
fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method

Financial assets at fair A financial asset is classified as at fair value
value through profit or through profit or loss if it is classified as
loss
held-for-trading or is designated as such
on initial recognition. Directly attributable
transaction costs are recognized in profit or
loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair
value and changes therein, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized
in profit or loss.
Loans and receivable

The Company decided to account for life insurance premiums on
accrual basis in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
Accordingly, due Life Insurance premiums (only the premiums due in
the 30 day grace period) are recognized at each reporting date and
will be reversed if the premiums are not settled during the subsequent
month, and thus the policies will be lapsed as per the Company policy.

These assets are initially recognized at
fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.
Loans and receivables comprise cash and
cash equivalents, staff loans, and policy
holder loans, premium receivables and
other receivables including related party
receivables.

....................................................................................................................

Insurance receivables are recognised when
due and measured on initial recognition at
the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Collectability of premiums is reviewed on an
ongoing basis.
The Company recognizes life insurance
premiums on accrual basis in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. Accordingly,
life insurance premiums for policies within 6
month grace period are considered as due
premium, subject to a provision for premium
default as at each reporting date.

3.3.3 Non-derivative financial liabilities - Measurement
Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value
less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
97

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

assumptions about risk. As a result, an entity’s intention to hold an
asset or to settle or otherwise fulfill a liability is not relevant when
measuring fair value.

3.3.4 Fair value measurement
When an asset is acquired or a liability is assumed in an exchange
transaction for that asset or liability, the transaction price is the price
paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the liability (an entry
price). In contrast, the fair value of the asset or liability is the price that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability (an
exit price).

SLFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to
sell and asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transactions
between market participants at the measurement date.
A Fair value measurement requires an entity to determine all the
following:
1) the particular asset or liability that is the subject of the
measurement
2) for a non-financial asset, the valuation premise that is appropriate
for the measurement (consistently with its highest and best use).
3) the principal (or most advantageous) market for the asset or
liability.
4) the valuation technique(s) appropriate for the measurement, con
sidering the availability of data with which to develop inputs that
represent the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy within which the inputs are categorized.

When transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at
initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially measured at the
transaction price and any difference between this price and the value
initially obtained from a valuation model is subsequently recognised in
profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable
market data or the transaction is closed out.
3.3.5 Determination of fair values
The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for
which there is no observable market price requires the use of valuation
techniques. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and
have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires
varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration,
uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumption and other risks
affecting the specific instrument.

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable market
transactions or market information might be available. For other
assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market
information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair
value measurement in both cases is the same—to estimate the
price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer
the liability would take place between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price
at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant
that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Level 1 - Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices);and

When a price for an identical asset or liability is not observable, an
entity measures fair value using another valuation technique that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the
use of unobservable inputs. Because fair value is a market-based
measurement, it is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including

....................................................................................................................

Level 3 - Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs).
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3.3.6 Amortised cost measurement

Financial assets are reclassified at their fair value on the date of
reclassification. For financial assets reclassified out of the availablefor-sale category into loans and receivables, any gain or loss on
those assets recognized in shareholder’s equity prior to the date of
reclassification is amortised to the profit or loss over the remaining life
of the financial asset, using the effective interest method.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest rate method of any difference between
the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any
reduction for impairment.

3.3.8 Impairment

3.3.7 Reclassification

a) Non-derivative financial assets
Financial assets not classified at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment.

Reclassifications of financial assets, other than as set out below, or
of financial liabilities between measurements categories are not
permitted following initial recognition.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due
to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, the
disappearance of an active market for a security; or observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the expected cash
flows from a group of financial assets.

Held for trading non-derivative financial assets are transferred out of
the held at fair value through profit or loss category in the following
circumstances: to the available-for-sale category, where, in rare
circumstances, they are no longer held for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term; or to the loan and receivables category,
where they are no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term and they would have met the definition of a loan
and receivable at the date of reclassification and the Company has the
intent and ability to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence
of impairment.

Financial assets are transferred out of the available for-sale category
to the loan and receivables category where they would have met the
definition of a loan and receivable at the date of reclassification and
the Company has the intent and ability to hold the assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

Financial assets measured The Company considers evidence of
at amortised cost
impairment for these assets at both an
individual asset and a collective level. All
individually significant assets are individually
assessed for impairment.

Held-to-maturity assets are reclassified to the available-for sale
category if the portfolio becomes tainted following the sale of other
than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets prior to their
maturity.

....................................................................................................................
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3.4 Insurance contracts

A v a i l a b l e - f o r - s a l e Impairment
losses
on
available-forfinancial assets
sale financial assets are recognized by
reclassifying the losses accumulated in
the fair value reserve to profit or loss.
The amount reclassified is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortization) and
the current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognized in profit or loss.
If the fair value of an impaired available-forsale debt security subsequently increases
and the increase can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized, then the impairment
loss is reversed through statement of profit
or loss; otherwise, it is reversed through OCI.

As permitted by SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, the Company continues
to apply the existing accounting policies for Insurance Contracts that
were applied prior to the adoption of SLFRS.
3.4.1 Product classification
SLFRS 4 requires contracts written by insurers to be classified as either
“insurance contracts” or “investment contracts” depending on the
level of insurance risk transferred.
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the
insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party
(the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects
the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risk.

b) Non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of
its non-financial assets (other than deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant
financial risk and no significant insurance risk. Financial risk is the risk
of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate,
financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable,
provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it
remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even
if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all
rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts
can, however, be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if
insurance risk becomes significant.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognized.

....................................................................................................................

All the products sold by the Company are insurance contracts and
therefore classified as Insurance contracts under the SLFRS 4 –
Insurance Contracts. Thus, the Company does not have any investment
contracts within its product portfolio as at the reporting date.
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3.5 Property plant and equipment

is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in
equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation
decrease relating to the same asset, which was charged to profit or
loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognised as income to
the extent of the previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying
amount is recognised as an expense in profit or loss or debited in the
Other Comprehensive Income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income reduces the amount
accumulated in equity under capital reserves. Any balance remaining
in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly
to Retained Earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

3.5.1 Recognition and measurement
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition
as an asset is initially measured at its cost.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that asset.

3.5.4 Subsequent costs

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property plant and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of the item of property and equipment, and is recognised in
other income/other expenses in profit or loss.

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property or
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of
the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

3.5.2 Cost model

3.5.5 Depreciation

The Group applies cost model to property, plant and equipment
except for freehold land, buildings and motor vehicles and records
at cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental
expenses thereon less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The Company provides depreciation from the date the assets are
available for use up to the date of disposal, at the following rates on
a straight-line basis over the periods appropriate to the estimated
useful lives of the different types of assets.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are
as follows:

3.5.3 Revaluation model
The Group applies the revaluation model to the entire class of freehold
land, buildings and motor vehicle. Such properties are carried at
a revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land and buildings are
revalued annually on a roll over basis to ensure that the carrying
amounts do not differ materially from the fair values at the reporting
date. On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount

....................................................................................................................
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2016

2015

Buildings (note 4)

60 years
20 years

60 years
20 years

Building improvements

10 years

10 years

Office equipment

8 years

8 years
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2016

2015

3.5.10 Leased assets – Lessee

Computers

6 years

6 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

5 years

Furniture and fittings

8 years

8 years

Motor vehicles – Lease hold

4 years

4 years

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial
recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the
lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

For operating leases, the leased assets are not recognised on the
Group’s Statement of Financial Position.

3.5.6 De-recognition

3.5.11 Operating leases

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is
de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from it. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an
item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in profit or loss
when the item is de-recognised.

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks
and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items are operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

3.5.7 Useful lives of property and equipment

3.6 Intangible assets – Software

As described in accounting policies the Group reviews the estimated
useful lives over which its property and equipment’s are depreciated.
The Group’s management is satisfied that the estimates of useful lives
are appropriate.

3.6.1 Basis of recognition
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

3.5.8 Gains and losses on disposal

All computer software cost incurred, licensed to be used by the
Company, which are not integrally related to associated hardware,
which can be clearly identified, reliably measured and it’s probable that
they will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the balance
sheet under the category intangible assets and carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are
recognised net within “other income/other expenses” in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
3.5.9 Capital work-in-progress

3.6.2 Subsequent expenditure

Capital work in progress are carried at cost, in respect of the
incomplete projects. Once the project is over and ready for use, it will
be transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
the useful life time of the asset.

....................................................................................................................

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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3.6.3 Amortisation

Salvage inventory is recognized based on the salvage value on the
claim reporting date supported by realizable values from independent
sources or value subsequently sold.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is
available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset. The estimated useful life of software is three years.

3.8 Stated capital
3.8.1 Ordinary share capital

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

3.6.4 De-recognition

3.8.2 Dividends on ordinary shares

An Intangible Asset is de-recognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from it. The gain or loss arising from
the de-recognition of such intangible assets is included in profit or loss
when the item is derecognised.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors in accordance with the Articles of Association. Dividends for
the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as
an event after the reporting date.

3.6.5 Impairment of non-financial assets
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value
less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not
yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance
the asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The
recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for
the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cashinflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

3.9 Insurance contract and liabilities

3.7 Inventories

Furthermore, adjustments are performed to capture the likely liabilities
that may arise due to currently lapsed contracts reviving in the future.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average
cost principle. Value of inventories includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them
to their existing location and condition.

....................................................................................................................

3.9.1 Insurance provision – Life insurance
Life insurance liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered
into and premiums are charged. These liabilities are measured by
using the net premium method as specified by the Insurance Board
of Sri Lanka (IBSL) based on the recommendation of the Independent
Actuary. The liability is determined as the sum of the discounted
value of the expected future benefits, less the discounted value of the
expected future premiums that would be required to meet the future
cash outflows based on the valuation assumptions used. The liability is
computed based on IBSL specified guidelines and current assumptions
which vary based on the contract type.

The valuation of the Long Term insurance business as at 31 December
2016 was carried out by the Actuarial and Management Consultant
Actuary as set out in Note 15.1 to the Financial Statements.
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3.9.2 Liability adequacy test (LAT) – Long term insurance

b) Claims payable including IBNR

As required by SLFRS 4 –Insurance Contracts, the Company performed
a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) in respect of Life Insurance contract
liabilities with the assistance of an External Actuary. In performing the
LAT, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, including
related cash flows such as claims handling and policy administration
expenses, policyholder options and guarantees, as well as investment
income from assets backing such liabilities, are used.

The Claim Liabilities are based on the estimated ultimate cost of
all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether
reported or not, with a reduction for the expected value of salvage
and other recoveries.
Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of claims,
therefore the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty
at the reporting date. The liability is calculated at the reporting date
using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based
on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin
for adverse deviation. No provision for equalization or catastrophe
reserves is recognized. The liabilities are derecognized when the
contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

3.9.3 Insurance provision – Non life insurance
Non-life insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts
are entered into and premiums are charged. These liabilities, known as
the Policy Liability provisions include the Premium and Claim Liabilities.
The Premium Liabilities relate to policies for which the premium has
been received but the exposure has not fully expired, while the Claim
Liabilities relate to that have been incurred but not yet reported
(IBNR) / incurred but not enough reported (IBNER).

IBNR reserve is decided by an independent external Actuary.
3.9.4 Liability adequacy test (LAT) – Non life insurance

a) Unearned premium

At each reporting date the Group reviews its unexpired risk and
a liability adequacy test is performed as laid out under SLFRS 4 to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and
deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This calculation
uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking
account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating
to relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates
show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums (less related
deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized
in the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income by
setting up a provision for liability adequacy.

The provision for Unearned Premiums represents premiums received
or receivable for risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date.
Generally the reserve is released over the term of the contract and
is recognised as premium income. The provision is recognised when
contracts are entered and is brought to account as premium income
over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of
insurance service provided under the contract. Provision for unearned
premium is calculated on a 1/24 basis except for marine / cargo class
which is subject to 60 / 40 basis.
a) Unearned premium (Contd.)

3.9.5 Insurance contract liabilities – Non-life insurance
At each reporting date the Group reviews its unexpired risk and a
liability adequacy test is performed to determine whether there is
any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs
over unearned premiums. If these calculations show that the carrying
amount of the unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition
costs) is inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in the Statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income by setting up a
provision for premium deficiency.

....................................................................................................................

Non - Life Insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the
expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting date and
for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, but not yet reported,
at the reporting date (IBNR). It can take a significant period of time
before the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty. The
main assumption underlying estimating the amounts of outstanding
claims is the past claims development experience.
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3.10 Reinsurance

3.11 Employee benefits

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business
to recognised reinsurers through formal reinsurance arrangements.
These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as
well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts

3.11.1 Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Reinsurance assets represents balances due from reinsurance
companies for paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims
associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the
related reinsurance contract.

3.11.2 Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under
which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an expense in profit and loss when incurred.

Reinsurance is recorded gross in the statement of financial position
unless a right to offset exists.
Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting
date, or more frequently, when an indication of impairment arises
during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition
of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all
outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the
event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the
Company will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss, if any is
recorded in profit or loss.
Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance
companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent
with the related reinsurance contract.

a) Employee Provident Fund
All employees of the Company are member of the Employees’
Provident Fund (EPF). The Company and employees contribute 12%
and 8% respectively of the salary to EPF.
b) Employees Trust Fund
All employees of the Company are members of the Employees’ Trust
Fund (ETF). The Company contributes 3% of the salary of each
employee to ETF.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its
obligations to policyholders.

3.11.3 Defined benefit plans

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are de-recognised when the contractual
rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred
to another party.

....................................................................................................................
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A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other
than a defined contribution plan. The defined benefit is calculated
by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit method as
recommended by LKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using the yield on government bonds
at the reporting date and have maturity dates approximating to the
terms of the Company’s obligations.
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The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses that arise in calculating
the Company’s obligation in respect of a plan in other comprehensive
income.

upon inception of the policy. Rebates that form part of the premium
rate, such as no-claim rebates, are deducted from the gross written
premium.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using
a number of assumptions. Key assumptions used in determining
the defined retirement benefit obligations are given in Note 18.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of defined benefit obligations.

3.14.2 Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written
in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. UPR
represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage. Unearned premiums are calculated
on the 1/24 basis except for the marine and title policies which are
computed on a 60-40 basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent
period is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year
of service for all employees, in conformity with LKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits”. However, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983,
the liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of
continued service.

3.14.3 Reinsurance premiums
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as
an expense on the earlier of the date when premiums are payable or
when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are decided
based on rates agreed with reinsurers.

The obligation is not externally funded.
3.12 Provisions (Other than insurance provision)

3.14.4 Unearned reinsurance premiums

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums
written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.
Unearned reinsurance premiums are calculated on the 1/24 basis
except for the marine policies which are computed on a 60-40 basis.

3.13 Capital commitments and contingencies

3.14.5 Unexpired risk

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of
all known liabilities. The Company’s share of any contingencies and
capital commitments and of its Subsidiary for which the Company is
also liable severally or otherwise are also included with appropriate
disclosures.

Provision is made where appropriate for the estimated amount
required over and above unearned premiums to meet future caims
and related expenses on the business in force as at the reporting date.

3.14 Revenue recognition – non life insurance

Acquisition costs comprise commissions and other variable costs
directly connected with acquisition or renewal of insurance contracts,
are deferred to the extent that these costs are recoverable out of
future premiums. All other acquisition costs are recognised as an
expense when incurred.

3.14.6 Acquisition costs

3.14.1 Gross premiums
Gross written premiums comprise the total premiums received/
receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts
entered into during the accounting period. GWP is generally written

....................................................................................................................
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3.14.7 Reinsurance commission income

3.15 Revenue recognition -Life insurance

Reinsurance commission income on outwards reinsurance contracts
are recognised as revenue when receivable. Subsequent to initial
recognition, reinsurance commission income on outwards reinsurance
contracts are deferred and amortised on a straight line basis over the
term of the expected premiums payable.

3.15.1 Gross premiums
Gross written premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as
revenue when payable by the policyholders (policies within 6 month
grace period are considered as due premium, subject to a provision for
premium default).

3.14.8 Gross benefits and claims

For single premium business, revenue is recognized on the date on
which the policy is effective.

Gross benefits and claims for non-life insurance include all claims
occurring during the year, whether reported or not, related internal
and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the
processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value
of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims
outstanding from previous years.

3.15.2 Reinsurance premiums
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognized as
an expense on the earlier of the date when premiums are payable or
when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are decided
based on rates agreed with reinsurers.

Claims expenses and liabilities for outstanding claims are recognized in
respect of direct and inward reinsurance business. The liability covers
claims reported but not yet paid, Incurred But Not Reported claims
(IBNR), Incurred But Not Enough Reserved(IBNER) and the anticipated
direct and indirect costs of settling those claims. Claims outstanding
are assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating changes
in the ultimate cost of settling claims. The provision in respect of IBNR,
IBNER is actuarially valued on an annual basis to ensure a more realistic
estimation of the future liability based on past experience and trends.

3.15.3 Acquisition costs
All acquisition cost are recognised as an expense when incurred.
3.15.4 Reinsurance commission income
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognized as
an expense on the earlier of the date when premiums are payable or
when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are decided
based on rates agreed with reinsurers.

3.14.8 Gross benefits and claims – (Contd.)

3.15.5 Gross benefits and claims expense

While the Directors consider that the provision for claims is fairly
stated on the basis of information currently available, the ultimate
liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and events. This
may result in adjustment to the amounts provided. Such amounts
are reflected in the financial statements for that period. The methods
used and the estimates made are reviewed regularly.

Claims by death and maturity are charged against revenue on
notification of death or on expiry of the term. The interim payments
and surrenders are accounted for only at the time of settlement.

Recoveries from salvage sales and the movement in salvage inventory
are netted off against claims expense.

Expenses on Life Insurance relates to the acquisition expenses and
expenses for maintenance of Life Insurance business, investment
related expenses not treated as a part of the capital cost of investment,
etc. which are accounted on accrual basis.

3.14.9 Reinsurance claims recoveries

3.15.6 Reinsurance claims recoveries

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance
claim is recognised according to the terms of the relevant contract.
This includes reinsurance exposure of IBNR also.

Reinsurance claims recoveries are recognised when the related gross
insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of the relevant
contract.

....................................................................................................................
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3.16 Other revenue

3.17 Expenses recognition

3.16.1 Interest income

Other expenses are recognised on accrual basis. All expenditure incurred
in the running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant
and equipment has been charged to profit or loss.

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including
available-for-sale financial assets) and dividend income. Interest income
is recognised in the Income Statement as it accrues and is calculated by
using the effective interest rate method (EIR). Fees and commissions
that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset or
liability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of
the instrument.

a) Expenses are recognised in the profit or loss on the basis of a direct
association between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items
of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in
maintaining the property, plant & equipment in a state of efficiency has
been charged to Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in arriving at the profit for the year.

3.16.2 Dividends

b) For the purpose of presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income the directors are of the opinion
that function of expenses method presents fairly the elements of
the Company’s performance, and hence such presentation method is
adopted.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is
established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.
3.16.3 Finance expense
Finance expenses consist of costs relating to investment such as
custodial fees, bank guarantee fee and brokerage fee etc. These
expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.18 Income tax expense
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and
deferred tax is recognised in items recognized directly in equity or
in Income Statement and Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.

3.16.4 Realised gains and losses
Realised gains and losses recorded in the Income Statement on
investments include gains and losses on financial assets.

3.18.1 Current taxation

Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the
difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised
cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
expense is recognised or profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in
equity or other comprehensive income.

3.16.5 Fair value gains and losses
Fair value gains and losses recorded in the Income Statement on
investments include fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Provisions for taxation is based on the profit for the year adjusted
for taxation purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and the amendments thereto at the rates
specified in Note 33.

3.16.6 Other income

3.18.2 Deferred taxation

Other income comprises fees charged for policy administration services,
disposal gains on property, plant and equipment, gains on foreign
currency translations, and miscellaneous income.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Gains on foreign currency translations are recognised on a net basis.

....................................................................................................................

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:
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3.19 Crop Insurance Levy (CIL)

• Temporary difference on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
• Temporary difference related to investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities to the extent that the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
• Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.

The Crop Insurance Levy was introduced under the provisions of the
Section 14 of the Finance Act No. 12 of 2013, and came into effect
from 1 April 2013. It is payable to the National Insurance Trust Fund and
liable at 1% of the Profit after tax.
3.20 Economic Service Charge (ESC)
ESC is payable on the liable turnover at specified rates. As per the
provision of the Economic Service Charge Act No. 13 of 2006 and
subsequent amendments thereto, ESC is deductible from the income
tax liability. Any unclaimed payment can be carried forward and set off
against the income tax payable as per the relevant provision in the Act.

3.18.2 Deferred taxation – (Contd.)
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

3.21 Cash flow statement

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

The Cash flow statement has been prepared using the “indirect
method” of preparing cash flows in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard (LKAS) 7, Cash flow statements.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The cash and
cash equivalents include cash in-hand, balances with banks and short
term deposits with banks.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized. Deferred tax is not recognised for the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries as the parent company has control
over the dividend policy of its subsidiaries and distribution of those
profits. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

For cash flow purposes, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of
bank overdrafts.
3.22 Responsibility for financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for preparation and presentation
of the financial statements of the company as per the provisions of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial statements
is set out in detail in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibility report
in the annual report.

3.18.3 Tax exposures
In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company
takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether
additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on
estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about
future events. New information may become available that causes the
Company to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing
tax liabilities and such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense
in the period that such a determination is made.

....................................................................................................................

3.23 Events occurring after the reporting date
All material subsequent events have been considered and where
appropriate, adjustments or disclosures have been made in the
respective notes to the financial statements.
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The Objective of this standard is to specify the financial reporting
requirements of regulatory deferral account balances that arise when
an entity provides goods or services to customers at a price or rate that
is subject to rate regulations.

3.24 Comparative information
The comparative information is re-classified wherever necessary to
conform with the current year’s classification in order to provide a
better presentation. (note 38)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

3.25 Earnings per share (EPS)
The Company presents basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) data
for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

SLFRS 15 – Revenue from contract with customers
SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
revenue recognition by a 5 step model and will replace the existing
LKAS 18 & LKAS 11.

3.26 New accounting standards issued but not effective as at the
reporting date

SLFRS 15, will be applicable for the financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued the
following new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards which will become
applicable for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The Company has not assessed the potential impact on its
financial statements resulting from their application.

SLFRS 16 – Leases
SLFRS 16 – Leases eliminates the current dual accounting model for
lessees which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases
and off - balance sheet operating leases. Instead there will be a single on
balance sheet accounting model that is similar to the current finance
lease accounting. The Company is assessing the potential impact on its
Financial Statements resulting from the application of SLFRS 16.This
standard is effective from 01.01.2019.

SLFRS 9 – Financial instruments: Classification & measurement
SLFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of work on replacement of
LKAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial
assets & liabilities, depending on the entity’s business model for
managing contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.
SLFRS 9 will be effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.
SLFRS 14 - Regulatory deferral accounts

....................................................................................................................
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4. Property, plant and equipment - Group
Group

Cost

Balance as at 01
January 2015
Additions during the
year

Land

Buildings

Building
improvements

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

181,930,000 337,070,000

-

Partition

Computers

Rs.

Rs.

Office
equipment

Furniture
and
fittings

Motor
vehicles

Lease hold
Equipment

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

- 117,871,994

74,340,495

117,645,915 102,226,809

Working-in
Lease hold
Work in
progress
Motor
Progress
- Furniture
vehicles
Computers and fittings
Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Total
Rs.

-

23,200,000

-

-

954,285,213

646,672

14,079,407

51,728,779

-

16,807,421

12,551,424

63,144,893

13,530,330

7,588,800

18,850,000

52,067,476

-

250,995,201

Asset write-off

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(15,334,550)

-

-

-

-

(15,334,550)

Disposals during the
year

-

-

-

-

-

(326,961)

(170,000)

(611,041)

-

-

-

-

(1,108,002)
55,633,434

Revaluation

18,767,328

30,677,793

16,100,021

-

-

-

-

(9,911,708)

-

-

-

-

Impairment

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(997,640)

-

-

-

-

(997,640)

Transferred to/from
Coop Life Insurance
Ltd as at 31 December
2015

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(8,840,000)

-

-

-

-

(8,840,000)

Balance as at 31
December 2015

201,344,000 381,827,200

67,828,800

- 134,679,415

86,564,958

180,620,808

80,062,200

7,588,800

42,050,000

52,067,476

-

1,234,633,656

Balance as at 01
January 2016

201,344,000 381,827,200

67,828,800

- 134,679,415

86,564,958

180,620,808

80,062,200

7,588,800

42,050,000

52,067,476

-

1,234,633,656
88,541,061

Additions during the
year

-

-

-

2,061,739

65,687,813

13,185,083

28,221,071

14,729,570

-

-

(52,067,476)

16,723,261

Disposals during the
year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,415,000)

-

-

-

-

(3,415,000)

1,206,000

24,185,440

(3,391,440)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

22,000,000

202,550,000 406,012,640

64,437,360

2,061,739

200,367,227

99,750,041

208,841,879

91,376,770

7,588,800

42,050,000

-

Revaluation
Balance as at 31
December 2016

....................................................................................................................
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Cost

Land

Buildings

Building
improvements

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Working-in
Lease hold
Work in
progress
Motor
Progress
- Furniture
vehicles
Computers and fittings

Partition

Computers

Office
equipment

Furniture
and
fittings

Motor
vehicles

Lease hold
Equipment

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

75,010,782

-

3,979,172

-

-

277,795,762

(15,275,665)

-

-

-

-

(15,275,665)

553,350

8,217,813

-

-

58,753,504

(162,220)

-

-

-

-

(321,246)

-

(54,931,662)

-

-

-

-

(68,453,483)

7,356,736

(10,434,500)

-

-

-

-

(12,395,357)

(615,633)

-

-

-

-

(615,633)

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Total
Rs.

Depreciation
Balance as at 01
January 2015

-

-

-

-

95,077,041

39,513,097

64,215,670

Depreciation on asset
write offs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation for the
year

-

8,348,943

5,172,878

-

8,176,824

5,731,800

11,319,655

Depreciation on
disposal

-

-

-

-

-

(127,151)

Depreciation on
revaluation

-

(8,348,943)

(5,172,878)

-

-

-

Depreciation on
reversal

-

-

-

-

(9,113,057)

(204,535)

Depreciation impact
on impairment

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance as at 31
December 2015

-

-

-

-

94,140,808

44,913,211

82,860,186

4,823,343

553,350

12,196,985

-

-

239,487,882

-

-

-

-

94,140,808

44,913,211

82,860,186

4,823,343

553,350

12,196,985

-

-

239,487,882

Depreciation on asset
write offs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation for the
year

-

6,858,766

7,536,533

53,455

18,215,841

7,174,677

20,421,746

948,600

10,151,250

-

-

88,103,806

Depreciation
disposal

on

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(566,667)

-

-

-

-

(566,667)

Depreciation
revaluation

on

-

(6,858,766)

(7,536,533)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(14,395,299)

-

-

-

53,455

Balance as at
January 2016

01

Balance as at 31
December 2016

(31,875)

-

16,742,936

11,232,241

112,356,649

52,087,888

99,603,122

24,678,422

1,501,950

22,348,235

-

-

312,629,722

Carrying value as at
31 December 2016

202,550,000 406,012,640

64,437,360

2,008,284

88,010,578

47,662,153

109,238,757

66,698,348

6,086,850

19,701,765

-

16,723,261

1,029,129,996

Carrying value as at
December 31, 2015

201,344,000 381,827,200

67,828,800

-

40,538,607

41,651,748

97,760,622

75,238,857

7,035,450

29,853,015

52,067,476

-

995,145,774

....................................................................................................................
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4. Property, plant and equipment - Company

Cost

Land

Building

Building
improvements

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Balance as at January 01,
2015

181,930,000 337,070,000

Transferred to Coop Life
Insurance Ltd.

(16,180,000) (77,820,000)

-

Partition
Rs.

Computers

Office
equipment

Furniture
and
fittings

Motor
vehicles

Lease hold
Equipment

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

-

117,871,994

74,340,495 117,645,915 102,226,809
(3,090,140) (23,379,673) (25,137,986)

-

-

(3,543,203)

Additions during the year

-

-

51,728,779

-

13,282,714

6,421,039

Asset write-off

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals during the year

-

954,285,213

-

-

(149,151,002)

52,067,476

187,533,708

- (14,936,945)

-

-

-

(14,936,945)

-

-

-

(326,961)

16,100,021

-

-

-

Balance as at 31 December
2015

182,325,000 267,846,200

67,828,800

-

127,611,505

77,344,433 138,304,153

Balance as at 01 January 2016

182,325,000 267,846,200

67,828,800

-

127,611,505

77,344,433 138,304,153

-

2,061,739

63,476,518

10,006,251

Rs.

11,625,000

-

-

23,200,000

Total

-

8,596,200

-

-

Rs.

7,588,800

-

Additions during the year

Rs.

611,990

44,207,911

16,575,000

Revaluation

Lease hold
Work in
Motor
Progress
vehicles
Computers

(170,000)

-

-

-

-

(496,961)

- (10,225,868)

-

-

-

31,045,353

52,538,000

7,588,800

34,825,000

52,067,476

1,008,279,366

52,538,000

7,588,800

34,825,000

52,067,476

1,008,279,366

16,855,707

9,729,470

-

- (52,067,476)

50,062,209

Disposals during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,415,000)

-

-

-

(3,415,000)

Revaluation

-

5,391,440

(3,391,440)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,000,000

182,325,000 273,237,640

64,437,360

2,061,739

191,088,022

87,350,684 155,159,860

58,852,470

7,588,800

34,825,000

-

1,056,926,576

Balance as at 31 December
2016

Depreciation
Balance as at 01 January 2015

-

-

-

-

95,077,041

39,513,097

64,215,670

75,010,782

-

3,979,172

-

277,795,762

Transferred to Coop Life
Insurance Ltd

-

-

-

-

(3,081,376)

(2,578,955)

(9,131,832)

(6,457,849)

-

-

-

(21,250,012)

Depreciation on asset write
offs

-

-

-

-

-

-

- (14,936,945)

-

-

-

(14,936,945)

Depreciation for the year

-

4,320,833

5,172,878

-

7,971,023

5,439,092

8,727,255

8,849,501

553,350

7,495,313

-

48,529,245

Depreciation on disposal

-

-

-

-

-

(127,151)

(31,875)

-

-

-

-

(159,026)

Depreciation on revaluation

-

(4,320,833)

(5,172,878)

-

-

-

-

Depreciation on Reversal

-

-

-

-

(9,113,057)

(204,535)

7,356,736

Balance as at 31 December
2015

-

-

-

-

90,853,631

42,041,548

71,135,954

....................................................................................................................
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-

(61,524,700)

-

-

-

(12,395,357)

553,350

11,474,485

-

216,058,967

(52,030,989)
(10,434,500)
-
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Cost

Land

Building

Building
improvements

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Partition
Rs.

Computers

Office
equipment

Furniture
and
fittings

Motor
vehicles

Lease hold
Equipment

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Lease hold
Work in
Motor
Progress
vehicles
Computers
Rs.

Rs.

Total
Rs.

Balance as at 01 January 2016

-

-

-

-

90,853,631

42,041,548

71,135,954

-

553,350

11,474,485

-

216,058,967

Depreciation for the year

-

4,539,766

7,536,533

53,455

17,328,506

6,128,377

11,561,055

14,335,156

948,600

8,706,250

-

71,137,699

Depreciation on disposal

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(566,667)

-

-

-

(566,667)

(4,539,766)

(7,536,533)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(12,076,299)

-

-

53,455

108,182,136

48,169,925

82,697,009

13,768,489

1,501,950

20,180,735

-

274,553,699

Carrying value as at 31
December 2016

182,325,000 273,237,640

64,437,360

2,008,284

82,905,886

39,180,759

72,462,851

45,083,981

6,086,850

14,644,265

-

782,372,876

Carrying value as at 31
December 2015

182,325,000 267,846,200

67,828,800

-

36,757,874

35,302,885

67,168,199

52,538,000

7,035,450

23,350,515

52,067,476

792,220,399

Depreciation on revaluation
Balance as at 31 December
2016

-

Property, plant and equipment - Group
Revaluation Land and Building
Free hold land and building of the Group was valued by Mr. Asoka G.D. AIV a professional valuer on 31 December 2016 on “Contractors Basis” and
the excess of Rs. 36,395,299.00 (Rs. 11,493,711-company) over the net book value as at 31 December 2016 has been credited to the revaluation
reserve.
The fair value of the freehold land was determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties. The fair value measurement for all the lands has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique
used. A significant increase in the market value per perch used in arriving at fair value would result in a significant increase in fair value, and vice
versa.

As at 31 December
Property at Grandpass

Land extent

Building area

No of buildings

Date of valuation

Fair value
(Rs.)

33.15Perches

28262 sq ft

1

26.12.2016

520,000,000

Property at Ambalanthota

4.27 Perches

1152 sq ft

1

31.12.2016

13,000,000

Property at Nikaveratiya

39.7 Perches

4788 sq ft

1

30.12.2016

140,000,000
673,000,000

....................................................................................................................
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Fair value Hierarchy

The table below analyse non financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level of the fair value hierarchy.
Level 1
(Rs.)

Land and Buildings

Level 2
(Rs.)

Level 3
(Rs.)

Total

(Rs.)

2016

-

-

673,000,000

673,000,000

2015

-

-

651,000,000

651,000,000

The fair value measurement has been categorised as level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation techniques used.
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of Land and buildings, as well as the significant unobservable
input used.
Location

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable
inputs - Valued at

Property at Grandpass

Open market

Price per perch and sq.ft

5,500,000/-per perch and 9,500/- per
Sq.ft

Property at Ambalanthota

Open market

Price per perch and sq.ft

"1,250,000/- per perch and 4,000 per
Sq.ft"

Property at Nikaveratiya

Open market

Price per perch and sq.ft

"375,000/- per perch and 7,000/- per
Sq.ft"

....................................................................................................................
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If the revalued land and buildings under property, plant and equipment were stated on the historical cost basis, the carrying amount would be as
follows:
Class of Asset

Property at
Grandpass
(Rs.)

Property at
Ambalanthota
(Rs.)

Property at
Nikaveratiya
(Rs.)

Land
Cost

160,064,000

1,120,415

8,217,758

-

-

-

Net book value as at 31 December 2016

160,064,000

1,120,415

8,217,758

Net book value as at 31 December 2015

160,064,000

1,120,415

8,217,758

175,796,923

10,423,590

88,712,132

12,076,299

3,092,556

5,636,411

Net book value as at 31 December 2016

175,796,923

7,331,034

83,075,721

Net book value as at 31 December 2015

166,766,957

7,519,010

84,771,144

Accumulated depreciation

Building
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Fully depreciated assets
Property, Plant and equipment includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of Rs.152,394,114.(2015-152,394,114)
Security
There were no items of Property, Plant and Equipment in the Group and Company, pledged as securities for liabilities during the year. (2015-Nill)
Change in estimates
The Group reassessed its useful life of the Property, Plant and equipment as follows:

....................................................................................................................
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2016

2015

Buildings
Grandpass

60 years

60 years

Ambalanthota

40 years

20 years

Nikaveratiya

50 years

20 years

Office equipment

8 years

8 years

Computers

6 years

6 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

5 years

Furniture and fittings

8 years

8 years

Partitions

8 years

8 years

Improvements to buildings

10 years

10 years

The Management used its knowledge and the experience on using the assets taking into consideration the date of purchase, nature of the business
environment, future usage, asset’s age, purpose of use, objectives of the organization on using the assets (such as retirement of the assets after use
of certain number of years), Management’s attitude on possible technological advancements. The above were considered in reassessing the useful
life time of the Property, Plant and Equipment. The useful life time of the buildings were estimated by the valuer and stated in the valuation report.
5. Intangible assets

Cost
Balance as at 01 January 2015

Computer software
Group
8,727,706

Transfers to cooplife insurance
Additions
Balance as at 31 December 2015

Company

-

8,727,706

Development costs
Group

Total

Company

4,801,648

4,801,648

Group

Company

13,529,354

13,529,354

(4,012,050)

-

(3,806,066)

-

1,777,524

1,253,750

-

-

1,777,524

1,253,750

10,505,230

5,969,406

4,801,648

995,582

15,306,878

6,964,988

....................................................................................................................
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Cost
Balance as at 01 January 2016

Computer software
Group

Development costs

Company

10,505,230

Group

Total

Company

Group

5,969,406

4,801,648

995,582

Company

15,306,878

6,964,988

Transfers

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions

119,762

119,762

-

-

119,762

119,762

10,624,992

6,089,168

4,801,648

995,582

15,426,640

7,084,750

7,846,175

7,846,175

-

-

7,846,175

7,846,175

Balance as at 31 December 2016
Amortization
Balance as at January 01, 2015
Transferred to Coop Life Insurance

(7,614,092)

-

-

-

2,237,537

1,885,323

-

-

2,237,537

1,885,324

Balance as at 31 December 2015

10,083,712

2,117,406

-

-

10,083,712

2,117,407

Balance as at 01 January 2016

10,083,712

2,117,406

-

-

10,083,712

2,117,407

2,088,916

1,893,664

-

-

2,088,916

1,893,664

12,172,628

4,011,070

-

-

12,172,628

4,011,071

As at 31 December 2015

5,223,164

4,847,582

As at 31 December 2016

3,254,012

3,073,679

Amortization for the year

Amortization for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2016

-

(7,614,092)

Carrying amounts

Intangible assets
Computer software represents costs incurred to develop Insurance software system by Informatics (Pvt) Ltd. and web site development by I-Web
Solutions (Pvt) Ltd. And web desighning tool purchased
Development cost represents HRM software development costs by Zillione Business Solutions (Pvt) Ltd.
Amortization
The amortization of softwares and development costs is included in the operating expenses.
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6 Financial investments
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Loans and receivables

(Note 6.1)

1,266,810,333

757,590,543

815,938,076

450,279,012

Available for sale

(Note 6.2)

1,823,410,971

1,531,368,123

1,087,692,746

887,343,679

Fair value through profit or loss

(Note 6.3)

274,720,201

471,663,314

-

-

3,364,941,506

2,760,621,980

1,903,630,823

1,337,622,691

6.1 Loans and receivables
Group

Company

2016
2015
Amortised Cost
Rs.

2016
2015
Amortised Cost
Rs.

420,504,681

329,288,271

343,980,342

202,664,361

24,060,101

23,488,011

24,060,101

23,488,011

Investment in repos

609,292,107

288,496,841

287,182,516

107,809,220

Commercial papers

212,953,444

116,317,420

160,715,117

116,317,420

1,266,810,333

757,590,543

815,938,076

450,279,012

Deposits Fixed deposits

-

Unquoted debentures - Sri Lanka Savings Bank
Unsecured subordinated redeemable debentures at 5%
with 10 year maturity

....................................................................................................................
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6.2 Available for sale
Group
2016
Amortised
Cost

Cost
Treasury bills

2015

-

Fair value

Amortised
Cost

Cost

Fair value

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,940,411

3,451,620

-

4,653,815

10,994,400

-

10,505,760

10,994,400

-

13,437,600

868,298,332

858,508,691

733,867,898

1,228,082,944

866,934,456

805,332,373

1,086,985,728

1,135,178,364

1,074,096,903

700,759,761

733,872,757

707,944,335

1,970,250,380

1,993,687,054

1,823,410,971

1,943,288,725

1,600,807,213

1,531,368,124

Unquoted equity instrument Co-operative Leasing Company Ltd Shares
345,162

3,971,920

Quoted equity instrument Peoples Leasing Company PLC - Shares
610,800
Treasury bonds (Note 6.2.1)
Quoted debentures (Note 6.2.2.1 and 6.2.2.2)

Company
2016
Amortised
Cost

Cost
Treasury bills

2015
Fair value

Amortised
Cost

Cost

Fair value

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,971,920

-

4,940,411

3,971,920

-

4,653,815

10,994,400

-

10,505,760

10,994,400

-

13,437,600

Treasury bonds (Note 6.2.1)

508,513,721

501,823,175

422,253,528

508,513,721

507,283,489

467,054,600

Quoted debentures (Note 6.2.2.1 and 6.2.2.2)

658,963,753

680,659,001

649,993,047

403,341,637

418,761,997

402,197,663

1,182,443,794

1,182,482,176

1,087,692,746

926,821,678

926,045,486

887,343,679

Unquoted equity instrument Co-operative Leasing Company Ltd Shares
345,162
Quoted equity instrument Peoples Leasing Company PLC - Shares
610,800
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Reclassification of Held-to-maturity financial instruments to Available-for-sale
The Company sold more than insignificant amount of treasury bonds, initially classified as Held-to-maturity in 2014. Consequently the total investment classified as Held-tomaturity was reclassified to Available-for-sale category in accordance with the tainting provisions of LKAS 39.

6.2.1 Treasury Bonds
2016

2015

Group
Face value
42,000,000

Year of
maturity

Amortized
Cost

Company

Fair Value

2018

40,526,781

40,848,085

163,076,393

2019

181,588,371

163,473,964

50,301,795

2022

59,803,455

50,574,200

201,168,310

2024

236,698,148

201,797,400

41,925,900

2026

49,744,679

41,925,900

232,680,092

2029

731,152,491

Amortized
Cost

Group
Amortized
Cost

Fair Value
-

Company

Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair Value

-

39,109,134

41,569,668

-

-

82,425,088

73,634,162

186,038,023

173,021,073

84,649,072

77,934,501

31,427,404

26,581,418

60,563,266

55,461,450

31,727,126

29,150,120

153,520,763

131,168,310

239,179,657

219,578,800

155,097,360

142,726,220

49,744,679

41,925,900

49,595,673

47,326,500

49,595,673

47,326,500

290,147,256

235,248,349

184,705,240

148,943,738

292,448,703

268,374,883

186,214,258

169,917,260

858,508,691

733,867,898

501,823,175

422,253,528

866,934,456

805,332,373

507,283,489

467,054,600
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6.2.2. Quoted debentures
6.2.2.1. Quoted debentures - Company

2016
Issuer

No. of
debentures

Maturity
date

2015
Amortised
Cost

Cost

Rs.

Rs.

Fair value

No. of
debentures

Maturity
date

Cost

Rs.

Rs.

Amortised
Cost

Fair value

Rs.

Rs.

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

28.10.2021

890,500

89,050,000

90,887,995

89,050,000

-

-

-

-

-

DFCC Bank Ltd

09.11.2021

1,300,000

130,000,000

132,140,098

130,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

Nation Trust Bank

08.11.2021

38,330

38,330,000

39,019,058

38,572,700

-

-

-

-

-

Peoples Leasing Co PLC

16.11.2021

98,750

98,750,000

100,249,421

98,750,000

-

-

-

-

-

HDFC Bank

23.10.2018

50,000

5,653,366

6,034,103

6,143,000

23.10.2018

50,000

5,653,366

5,773,155

6,143,000

HDFC Bank

23.10.2018

150,000

17,531,873

18,305,603

18,429,000

23.10.2017

150,000

17,531,873

18,989,298

18,429,000

HDFC Bank

23.10.2018

20,000

2,337,583

2,440,747

2,457,200

23.08.2018

20,000

2,337,583

2,531,906

2,457,200

HDFC Bank

23.10.2017

62,400

7,098,156

6,656,416

6,572,592

-

62,400

7,098,156

6,953,727

6,614,400

NDB Bank

19.12.2025

250,000

30,628,911

32,834,050

25,000,000

19.12.2015

250,000

30,628,911

33,412,281

24,719,639

NDB Bank

19.12.2023

100,000

10,555,234

11,661,417

10,411,513

19.12.2023

100,000

10,555,234

11,542,460

11,235,966

Nations Trust Bank

19.12.2018

50,000

5,557,487

5,537,800

5,175,965

19.12.2018

50,000

5,557,487

5,707,295

5,380,929

Bank of Ceylon

24.10.2023

26,800

3,278,935

3,122,852

2,420,529

23.10.2024

26,800

3,278,935

3,263,935

3,209,032

HNB PLC

29.08.2023

120,000

10,553,937

10,783,643

10,966,830

23.08.2023

120,000

10,553,937

11,041,026

12,111,735

DFCC Bank Ltd

18.08.2017

152,400

15,240,000

15,706,114

15,429,297

08.18.2017

152,400

15,240,000

15,705,154

15,510,012

Pan Asia Bank Ltd

31.10.2019

440,000

44,000,000

44,696,055

40,456,339

31.10.2019

440,000

44,000,000

44,686,338

42,060,112

Merchant Bank of Sri lanka PLC

-

-

-

-

-

02.12.2016

819,750

81,975,000

84,739,040

81,975,000

Merchant Bank of Sri lanka PLC

16.12.2017

423,900

42,390,000

48,445,912

46,658,673

02.12.2017

244,750

24,475,000

25,689,787

26,939,633

Peoples Leasing Co PLC

26.03.2018

100,000

10,000,000

10,841,568

10,550,000

26.03.2018

100,000

10,000,000

10,490,048

13,413,990

Alliance Finance Company PLC

30.09.2018

50,000

5,699,874

5,687,817

5,335,927

30.09.2018

50,000

5,699,874

5,750,114

5,513,038

Senkadagala Finance

10.12.2018

50,000

5,633,466

5,281,174

5,000,000

10.12.2018

50,000

5,633,466

5,320,854

5,400,000

Abans PLC

20.12.2018

50,000

5,687,360

5,649,573

5,243,083

20.12.2018

50,000

5,687,360

5,828,496

5,451,581

Alliance Finance Company PLC

30.09.2018

200,000

23,837,892

23,125,384

21,343,707

-

200,000

23,837,892

24,218,360

22,012,642

Senkadagala Finance Company PLC

10.12.2018

50,000

5,797,972

5,338,774

5,000,000

-

50,000

5,797,972

5,580,009

5,400,000

Softlogic Finance Company PLC

27.08.2016

-

-

-

-

27.08.2016

130,000

14,631,149

14,565,142

13,000,000

Softlogic Finance Company PLC

27.08.2016

-

-

-

-

-

200,000

21,816,735

20,813,038

21,976,000

Abans PLC

20.12.2018

90,000

10,416,707

10,224,374

9,437,549

-

90,000

10,416,707

10,622,544

9,771,663

First Capital Holding PLC

12.03.2017

229,350

22,935,000

26,057,106

24,895,943

12.03.2017

229,350

22,935,000

25,391,504

25,465,891

Janashakthi Holdings Pvt Ltd

19.11.2019

180,000

19.11.2019

180,000

18,000,000

19,931,947

16,693,200

658,963,753

680,659,001

649,993,047

....................................................................................................................
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6.2.2.2. Quoted debentures - Subsidiary

Debentures - 2016
Issuer

No. of
debentures

Maturity date

Cost

Amortised
Cost

Fair value

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Hatton National Bank PLC

29.08.2023

324,832

21,995,999

24,949,643

30,789,551

Hatton National Bank PLC

28.03.2021

300,000

30,000,000

32,536,304

27,450,000

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka

23.10.2018

250,000

25,000,000

29,145,866

30,715,000

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka

23.10.2018

50,000

5,000,000

5,779,884

6,143,000

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka

23.10.2018

30,000

3,506,374

3,661,120

3,685,800

National Development Bank PLC

19.12.2023

87,500

12,063,125

12,416,349

8,143,077

DFCC Bank PLC

18.08.2017

152,400

15,240,000

15,707,586

14,328,141

Bank of Ceylon

21.09.2019

330,000

33,000,000

33,676,790

31,967,100

Pan Asia Bank Corporation PLC

30.10.2019

330,000

33,000,000

33,525,001

28,107,115

DFCC Vardana Bank Ltd

10.06.2020

263,100

26,310,000

27,662,785

23,174,930

Sampath Bank PLC

10.06.2021

680,000

68,000,000

72,714,851

68,000,000

People's Leasing & Finance PLC

26.03.2018

200,000

20,000,000

21,709,906

21,100,000

Senkadagala Finance Company PLC

10.12.2018

250,000

28,971,477

26,689,225

25,000,000

First Capital Holding PLC

12.03.2017

229,350

22,935,000

26,064,954

24,895,943

Janashakthi PLC

19.11.2019

330,000

33,000,000

36,541,902

30,604,200

Siyapatha Finance PLC

20.10.2019

500,000

50,000,000

51,737,196

50,000,000

4,307,182

428,021,975

454,519,363

424,103,856
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Debentures - 2016
Issuer

No. of
debentures

Maturity date

Cost

Amortised
Cost

Fair value

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Hatton National Bank PLC

23.10.2018

324,832

21,995,999

24,210,522

35,490,588

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka

23.10.2017

250,000

25,000,000

29,235,300

27,156,860

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka

23.08.2018

50,000

5,000,000

5,776,190

5,412,588

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka

23.08.2023

30,000

3,506,374

3,751,290

3,238,488

National Development Bank PLC

19.12.2025

87,500

12,063,125

12,665,519

9,069,775

DFCC Bank PLC

19.12.2023

152,400

15,240,000

15,705,154

14,984,830

Nation Trust Bank PLC

19.12.2018

9,000

9,517,838

9,557,372

9,242,190

Bank of Ceylon

03.08.2016

330,000

33,000,000

33,659,049

31,788,900

Pan Asia Bank Coporation PLC

24.10.2023

330,000

33,000,000

33,516,468

30,586,749

DFCC Vardana Bank Ltd

30.09.2019

263,100

26,310,000

27,657,109

26,310,000

People's Leasing & Finance PLC

18.08.2017

200,000

20,000,000

21,713,674

22,219,818

Senkadagala Finance Company PLC

31.10.2019

250,000

28,971,477

27,322,161

27,000,000

Softlogic Finance Company PLC

02.12.2016

70,000

7,878,311

7,783,443

7,000,000

First Capital Holding PLC

02.12.2017

229,350

22,935,000

26,031,742

23,232,686

Janashakthi PLC

18.03.2018

330,000

33,000,000

36,525,767

33,013,200

2,906,182

297,418,124

315,110,760

305,746,672

6.3 Fair value through profit or loss
Group

Investment in unit trust
Quoted shares

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Fair Value
Rs.

Fair Value
Rs.

Fair Value
Rs.

Fair Value
Rs.

273,846,678

470,727,143

-

-

873,523

936,171

-

-

274,720,201

471,663,314

-

-

During the year, net realised loss of Rs 29,913,959 has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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7. Investment in subsidiary
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Coop Life Insurance Limited
Balance as at 01 January 2016/2015

-

Investment made during the year

-

Disposal of shares

-

Balance as at 31 December 2016/2015

-

-

400,000,040

-

500,000,040

100,000,040

-

-

400,000,000

-

(100,000,000)

500,000,040

8. Loans to life policyholders
Group
2016
Rs.

Loans

2015
Rs.

14,140,263

Interest receivable

Company
2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

11,893,344

-

-

4,104,324

2,863,749

-

-

18,244,588

14,757,093

-

-

9. Reinsurance receivables
Group
2016
Rs.

Reinsurance receivables on claims
Reinsurance recoveries on IBNR
Balance at the end of the year

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

84,682,769

30,709,595

74,351,926

19,950,912

8,579,732

1,321,120

8,579,732

1,321,120

93,262,500

32,030,715

82,931,657

21,272,032

Fair value of reinsurance receivables
The carrying values disclosed above approximate the fair value at the reporting date.
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Impairment of reinsurance receivables
No imapairment observed for the reinsurance receivables.
Collateral details
The Company does not hold any collateral as security against potential default by reinsurance counter parties.
10. Premium receivables
Group
2016
Rs.

Premium receivable - Non life insurance
Premium receivable - Life insurance
Impairment allowance on premium receivables

Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired ;

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

437,021,559

294,481,543

437,021,559

294,481,543

24,704,055

19,080,268

-

-

(20,813,680)

(3,017,045)

(18,049,834)

(945,297)

440,911,935

310,544,767

418,971,726

293,536,247

14,682,801

15,981,698

34,112

2,142,348

14,682,801

15,981,698

34,112

2,142,348

945,297

11,311,283

18,049,834

945,297

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts ;
Balance at beginning of the year

3,017,045

11,311,283

Impairment losses recognised during the year

20,813,680

(3,017,045)

Amounts written off during the year as uncollectable

(1,097,238)

(1,870,690)

Amounts recovered during the year

(1,919,807)
20,813,680

Foreign exchange gains/ (losses)
Balance at end of the year

....................................................................................................................
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(945,297)

(1,576,556)

(3,406,503)

-

(9,734,727)

-

-

-

3,017,045

18,049,834

945,297
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Fair value of premium receivable
The carrying amount disclosed above approximates the fair value at the reporting date.
Impairment of premium receivable
Impairment charges for the year are recognized in other operating and administrative expenses (Note 30.)
Collateral details
The Company does not hold any collateral as security against potential default by policyholders or intermediaries
11. Other assets
Group
2016
Rs.

Company

01.01.2015
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Deposits, advances and prepayments

41,666,867

45,366,217

88,563,808

32,364,781

35,841,617

88,563,808

With-holding tax receivable

22,245,598

16,775,447

11,151,037

6,491

7,363

11,151,037

Staff loan

29,390,971

22,769,636

22,564,544

22,131,767

22,769,636

22,564,544

Salvage inventory

13,301,700

26,260,602

-

13,301,700

20,670,169

-

1,006,005

-

-

1,006,005

-

-

18,888,495

13,039,038

11,294,652

1,786,636

1,651,919

11,244,652

Inventory - complementary items
Other receivable
(-) Impairment - Other assets

(1,301,348)
125,198,287

(2,650,975)
121,559,965

133,574,041

(1,301,348)

(2,650,975)

69,296,032

78,289,729

133,524,041

Fair value
The fair value of staff loans are based on cash flow discounting rate. Discount rate is equal to AWPLR plus appropriate risk margin.
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12. Cash and cash equivalents
Group
2016

Company
2015

2016

2015

Cash at banks

82,860,485

32,070,098

74,098,177

31,809,335

Cash in hand

1,994,287

12,317,369

1,733,287

5,056,197

Cash in transit
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents (net) in the statement of cashflows

-

414,720

-

-

84,854,772

44,802,187

75,831,464

36,865,532

(41,071,849)

(57,162,009)

(41,071,849)

(57,162,009)

43,782,923

(12,359,822)

34,759,616

(20,296,477)

13. Stated capital

Ordinary shares

(Note 13.1)

Number of shares

(Note 13.2)

Group
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.
1,115,367,950
1,004,909,610

Company
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.
1,115,367,950
1,004,909,610

111,536,795

100,490,961

111,536,795

100,490,961

1,004,909,610

1,004,909,610

1,004,909,610

1,004,909,610

13.1. Voting Ordinary Shares

Balance at the beginning of the year
Share Issue
Balance at the end of the year

110,458,340

-

110,458,340

-

1,115,367,950

1,004,909,610

1,115,367,950

1,004,909,610

100,490,961

63,201,994

100,490,961

63,201,994

13.2. Reconciliation of Number of Shares - Voting Ordinary Shares

No of shares at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
No of shares at the end of the year

....................................................................................................................
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11,045,834

37,288,967

11,045,834

37,288,967

111,536,795

100,490,961

111,536,795

100,490,961
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13.3. Ordinary shares

All issued shares are fully paid. There is one class of ordinary shares. All shares issued carry equal voting rights. The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
14. Interest bearing borrowings
Group
2016

Company

2015

01'01'2015

2016

2015

01'01'2015

Term loan

(Note 14.1)

-

Finance lease (Note 14.2)

(Note 14.2)

22,145,542

33,808,571

19,660,538

17,625,419

28,027,997

22,145,542

33,808,571 149,660,538

17,625,419

28,027,997 149,660,538

Balance as at January 01

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

Add: Loans obtained during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Less: Repayments during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance as at December 31

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

-

- 130,000,000

- 130,000,000
19,660,538

14.1. Term loan

Analysis of term loan by year of repayment
- Payable within one year

....................................................................................................................

129

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
14.2. Finance lease

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows;
Group
Future
minimum lease
payments

Interest

Present value
of future lease
payments

Future
minimum lease
payments

Interest

Present value
of future lease
payments

Present value
of future lease
payments

2016

2016

2016

2015

2015

2015

01.01.2015

Less than one year

14,201,017

3,448,728

10,752,289

17,747,365

6,055,525

11,691,840

3,888,889

Between one and five
years

12,986,706

1,593,453

11,393,253

27,187,723

5,070,992

22,116,731

15,771,649

27,187,723

5,042,181

22,145,542

44,935,088

11,126,517

33,808,571

19,660,538

Present value
of future lease
payments

Future
minimum lease
payments

Interest

Present value
of future lease
payments

Present value
of future lease
payments

2015

01'01'2015

Company
Future
minimum lease
payments
2016

Less than one year
Between one and five
years

Interest
2016

2016

2015

2015

11,881,117

2,670,064

9,211,053

15,427,465

4,996,075

10,431,389

3,888,889

9,506,856

1,092,490

8,414,366

21,387,973

3,791,365

17,596,608

15,771,649

21,387,973

3,762,554

17,625,419

36,815,438

8,787,440

28,027,997

19,660,538

....................................................................................................................

130

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

15. Insurance liabilities
Group

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

1,210,031,604

1,058,499,421

-

-

Life insurance
Insurance provision

(Note 15.1)

Unclaimed benefits

21,275,071

15,963,819

-

-

1,231,306,675

1,074,463,240

-

-

1,147,152,468

888,807,347

1,147,152,468

888,807,347

Non Life insurance
Premium
Unearned premium

(Note 15.2)

Net deferred acquisition cost

(Note 15.3)

(61,326,948)

(75,991,624)

(61,326,948)

(75,991,624)

Claims outstanding

437,168,188

375,980,708

437,168,188

375,980,708

Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) - Net

130,890,680

88,241,362

130,890,680

88,241,362

1,653,884,388

1,277,037,794

1,653,884,388

1,277,037,793

2,885,191,064

2,351,501,034

1,653,884,388

1,277,037,793

Gross claims reserve

(Note 15.4)

15.1. Life insurance provision

Long duration contract liabilities included in the Life Insurance Fund, result primarily from traditional participating and non-participating life
insurance products, short duration contract liabilities are primarily accident and health insurance products. The insurance provision has been
established based upon the following;
•
interest rates which vary by product and year of assurance.
•

mortality rates based on published mortality tables adjusted for actual experience by geographic area and modified to allow the
variations in policy form.

•

surrender rates based upon actual experience by geographic area and modified to allow for variations in policy form

The amount of policyholder dividend to be paid is determined annually by the company. The dividend includes life policyholders share of net
income that are required to be allocated by the insurance contract or by insurance regulations.
The valuation of the life insurance business as at 31 December 2016 was performed by Mr. M. Poopalanathan of Actuarial and Management
Consultants (Private) Limited. In accordance with the Consultant Actuary’s report, the fund for the year amounted to Rs. 1,210 Million (2015 1,058 Million). In the opinion of the consultant actuary, this is adequate to cover the liabilities pertaining to the life insurance business.
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LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST

A Liability Adequacy Test (“LAT”) for life insurance contract liability was carried out by Mr. M. Poopalanathan of Actuarial and Management
Consultants (Private) Limited as at 31 December 2016 as required by SLFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. When performing the LAT, the Company
discounted all contractual cash flows and compares this amount with the carrying value of the liability. According to the consultant actuary’s
report, assets are sufficiently adequate as compared to the discounted cash flow reserves and in contrast to the reserves as at 31 December
2016. No additional provision was required against the LAT as at 31 December 2016.
15.2. Unearned premium
Group

Company

Balance at the beginning of the year

2016
Rs.
888,807,347

2015
Rs.
674,829,103

2016
Rs.
888,807,347

2015
Rs.
674,829,103

Transferred to income statement during the year (Note 23)

258,345,121

213,978,244

258,345,121

213,978,244

1,147,152,469

888,807,348

1,147,152,468

888,807,347

Balance at the end of the year
15.3. Net deferred acquisition cost

Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Deferred acquisition cost
Balance at the beginning of the year

79,319,247

59,713,821

79,319,247

59,713,821

Transfer during the year

38,368,618

19,605,426

38,368,618

19,605,426

117,687,865

79,319,247

117,687,865

79,319,247

Balance at the end of the year
Deferred reinsurance commission
Balance at the beginning of the year

(3,327,624)

(3,801,193)

(3,327,624)

(3,801,193)

Transfer during the year

(53,033,293)

Balance at the end of the year

(56,360,917)

(3,327,624)

(56,360,917)

(3,327,624)

Net deferred acquisition cost

61,326,948

75,991,623

61,326,948

75,991,623

....................................................................................................................
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Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

15.4 Gross claim reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

375,980,707

408,790,541

375,980,707

408,790,541

61,187,481

(32,809,834)

61,187,481

(32,809,834)

437,168,188

375,980,707

437,168,188

375,980,707

IBNR / IBNER balance at the beginning of the year

88,241,362

77,904,887

88,241,362

77,904,887

Increase / (decrease) in IBNR / IBNER

42,649,318

10,336,475

42,649,318

10,336,475

Increase / (decrease) in outstanding claims
Balance at the end of the year

IBNR / IBNER balance at the end of the year

130,890,680

88,241,362

130,890,680

88,241,362

Total reserve for gross outstanding claims

568,058,868

464,222,069

568,058,868

464,222,069

1,653,884,388

1,277,037,793

15.5 Reconciliation between insurance provision and technical reserve

Insurance provision - Non life
Reinsurance on claims reserves

(74,351,926)
1,579,532,463

(21,272,032)
1,255,765,761

Significant delays occur in the notification of claims and a substantial measure of experience and judgment is involved in assessing outstanding
liabilities, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty as of the reporting date. The reserves are determined based on the information currently available. However, it is inherent to the nature of the business written that the ultimate liability may vary as a result of subsequent development.
The Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims reserve has been actuarially computed by Yuen
Leng Chin for and on behalf of NMG Financial Services Consulting Pte Limited. The valuation is based on internationally accepted actuarial methods and is performed on an annual basis.
The Non life insurance technical reserve of Rs.1,579,532,463 as at 31 December 2016 includes the provision of IBNR claims of Rs.130,890,680
that has been certified by the independent consultants actuaries, NMG Financial Services Consulting Pte Limited.
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Liability adequacy test

As per the Liability adequacy test performed by Yuen Leng Chin for and on behalf of NMG Financial Services Consulting Pte Limited. It was concluded that the liability value is sufficient to meet future benefits and expenses. Hence no provision was made for premium deficiency.
16. The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent Company that have a material non-controlling interests:

Name of subsidiary

Country of
incorporation
and principal
place of
business

Proportion of ownership interests held by non-controlling
interests at 31 December
2016

Co-op Life Insurance
Ltd.

Sri Lanka

2015

(Loss)/ profit allocated to
non-controlling interests at at 31
December
2016

2015

Accumulated non-controlling
interests at 31 December
2016

2015

20%

-

(1,718,196)

-

97,100,338

-

20%

-

(1,718,196)

-

97,100,338

-

During the year, the Parent company has disposed 20% partial equity interest in its subsidiary of Co-op life insurance Ltd, which has resulted in
decrease in ownership from 100% to 80% which lead to a loss of Rs 5,603,146 which has been recorded in owners equity.
17. Retirement benefit obligations
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position are made as
follows;
Provision at the beginning of the year

31,895,322

31,403,673

22,679,048

-

-

-

Interest cost

3,189,531

3,067,353

2,267,904

2,006,120

Current service cost

6,633,579

4,689,119

4,611,059

3,260,333

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation

6,301,322

(4,141,527)

4,693,864

Payments made during the year

(2,306,145)

(3,123,296)

(2,121,485)

(3,056,859)

Balance at the end of the year

45,713,609

31,895,322

32,130,390

22,679,048

Transferred

....................................................................................................................
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Group

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Interest cost

3,189,531

3,067,353

2,267,904

2,006,120

Current service cost

6,633,579

4,689,119

4,611,059

3,260,333

9,823,110

7,756,472

6,878,963

5,266,453

6,301,322

(4,141,527)

4,693,864

(321,882)

6,301,322

(4,141,527)

4,693,864

(321,882)

Expenses on retirement benefit obligation
Recognised in profit or loss

Recognised in other comprehensive income
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation

As at December 31, 2016 the gratuity liability was actuarially valued under the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method by Mr. M. Poopalanathan of
Actuarial and Management Consultants (Private) Limited (Consultant and Actuaries) as required by LKAS 19 - Employee Benefits.
The liability is not externally funded. The valuation is performed on an annual basis.
Principal Assumptions as at reporting date
2016

2015

As at 31 December
Discount rate

12%

10%

Future salary increase

12%

8%

55

55

Retirement age (years)

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables
Sensitivity of assumptions used in actuarial valuation

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other variables held
constant in the employment benefit liability measurement.
The sensitivity of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income statement of financial position is the effect of the assumed
changes in discount rate and salary increment rate on the profit or loss and employment benefit obligation for the year.
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Group
Effect on charge to the Statement profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

2016

Increase

Discount rate (change by 1%)
Salary increment rate (change by 1%)

Decrease

Salary increment rate (change by 1%)

Decrease

3,056,258

(2,726,103)

3,056,258

3,229,730

(2,928,328)

3,229,730

(2,928,328)

Increase

Discount rate (change by 1%)

Increase

(2,726,103)

Effect on charge to the Statement profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

2015

Effect on employee benefit obligation

Decrease

Effect on employee benefit obligation
Increase

Decrease

(1,833,883)

2,053,514

(1,833,883)

2,053,514

2,216,891

(2,010,634)

2,216,891

(2,010,634)

Company
Effect on charge to the Statement profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

2016

Increase

Discount rate (change by 1%)
Salary increment rate (change by 1%)

Decrease

Salary increment rate (change by 1%)

Decrease

2,176,807

(1,939,158)

2,176,807

2,290,632

(2,075,106)

2,290,632

(2,075,106)

Increase

Discount rate (change by 1%)

Increase

(1,939,158)

Effect on charge to the Statement profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

2015

Effect on employee benefit obligation

Decrease

Effect on employee benefit obligation
Increase

Decrease

(1,323,282)

1,483,572

(1,323,282)

1,483,572

1,595,156

(1,445,496)

1,595,156

(1,445,496)
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18. Reinsurance creditors
Group
2016
Rs.

Foreign

122,786,350

Domestic

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

33,220,123

2015
Rs.

100,183,583

8,007,050

-

-

-

-

122,786,350

33,220,123

100,183,583

8,007,050

Other liabilities
Group

Commission payable
Government levies and taxes payables
Dividend - Ordinary

(Note 19.1)

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

01.01.2015
Rs.

42,577,278

16,223,379

7,910,391

41,331,205

7,812,400

7,910,391

44,738,798

43,635,561

36,394,472

44,276,771

43,580,925

35,708,875

53,649

-

14,053,232

53,649

-

14,053,232

39,415,944

25,205,730

18,237,534

30,816,403

21,166,994

18,237,534

174,950,191

112,306,819

89,233,304

130,597,707

62,294,853

89,233,304

301,735,860

197,371,489

165,828,933

247,075,734

134,855,172

165,143,336

-

3,786,389

2,992,978

-

3,786,389

2,992,978

Income tax payable

18,290,714

29,362,737

21,519,377

18,290,714

29,362,737

20,833,780

Value added tax payable

24,673,318

6,617,331

8,789,504

24,673,318

6,617,331

8,789,504

720,241

239,978

208,457

258,214

185,342

208,457

Accrued expenses
Deposits and other funds

19.1 Government levies and taxes

Nation building tax payable

PAYE payable
Diesel tax payable

1,054,525

867,525

512,025

1,054,525

867,525

512,025

-

2,761,601

2,372,131

-

2,761,601

2,372,131

44,738,798

43,635,561

36,394,472

44,276,771

43,580,925

35,708,875

Other levies payable (Note 40)
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Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
20. Deferred tax
The amount shown in the statement of financial position represents the following:
Group
2016

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

Company
2015

2016

2015

(19,253,865)

(29,121,698)

1,963,462

(18,018,045)

58,461,621

36,036,841

37,244,294

24,933,189

39,207,757

6,915,144

39,207,756

6,915,144

The movement in the deferred tax account is as follows:
Group
2016

At the beginning of the year

Company
2015

2016

6,915,144

-

Written off to retained earnings

2015

6,915,144

-

-

(41,413,018)

-

(41,413,018)

Release to P/L

7,556,543

(8,675,349)

10,985,921

(8,544,146)

Release to OCI

24,736,070

57,003,511

21,306,692

56,872,308

At the end of the year

39,207,757

6,915,144

39,207,757

6,915,144

Assets
2016

Property plant and equipment

Liabilities
2015

Net

2016

2015

2016

2015

(19,253,865)

(28,887,665)

-

-

(19,253,865)

(28,887,665)

914,331

-

-

(234,033)

914,331

Available for sale financial assets

39,693,527

26,841,469

-

-

39,693,527

26,841,469

Employee benefits

12,799,809

8,930,689

-

-

12,799,809

8,930,689

-

-

-

-

-

-

Intangible assets

Carry forward tax loss
Provisions
Net tax assets (liabilities)

(234,033)

5,053,953

264,683

-

-

5,053,953

264,683

58,461,621

36,036,841

(19,253,865)

(29,121,698)

39,207,756

6,915,144

Movement in deferred tax balances during the year - Company
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Balance as
at 1 January
2016

Property plant and equipment

(28,887,665)

Intangible assets

(234,033)

Available for sale financial assets
Employee benefits
Provisions

Property plant and equipment
Available for sale financial assets
Employee benefits
Provisions
Net tax assets (liabilities)

Balance as at
December 31
2016

10,029,515

(19,253,865)

-

914,331

26,841,469

-

12,852,058

39,693,527

8,930,689

2,014,623

1,854,497

12,799,809

-

-

-

-

264,683

4,789,270

-

5,053,953

6,915,144

7,556,543

24,736,070

39,207,756

Assets
2016

(395,715)

Recognized
in OCI

1,148,364

Carry forward tax loss

Intangible assets

Recognized
in P/L

Liabilities
2015

2016

Net
2015

2016

2015

-

-

1,963,462

(17,784,012)

1,963,462

(17,784,012)

914,331

-

-

(234,033)

914,331

(234,033)

22,279,501

18,318,373

-

-

22,279,501

18,318,373

8,996,509

6,350,133

-

-

8,996,509

6,350,133

5,053,953

264,683

-

-

5,053,953

264,683

37,244,294

24,933,189

1,963,462

(18,018,045)

39,207,756

6,915,144

Balance as
at 1 January
2016

Recognized
in P/L

Recognized
in OCI

Balance as at
December 31
2016

(17,784,012)

3,806,319

15,941,155

1,963,462

(234,033)

1,148,364

-

914,331

18,318,373

-

3,961,128

22,279,501

6,350,133

1,241,967

1,404,409

8,996,509

264,683

4,789,270

-

5,053,953

6,915,144

10,985,921

21,306,692

39,207,756

Movement in deferred tax balances during the year - Company

Property plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Available for sale financial assets
Employee benefits
Provisions
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21. Gross written premium
Group

Life insurance

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

465,830,348

493,650,527

-

-

2,203,558,129

1,544,654,615

2,203,632,975

1,545,158,725

94,104,723

63,146,433

94,104,723

63,271,352

Non life insurance
Motor
Fire
Marine
Miscellaneous

4,718,908

2,511,656

4,718,908

2,511,656

171,860,489

112,558,391

173,086,708

113,601,104

2,940,072,597

2,216,521,622

2,475,543,314

1,724,542,837

21. Premium ceded to reinsurers

Group
2016
Rs.

Life

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

41,015,510

32,012,585

-

-

128,115,379

15,672,768

128,115,379

15,672,768

45,584,988

15,784,621

45,584,988

15,784,621

Non life insurance
Motor
Fire
Marine

4,536,960

1,229,430

4,536,960

1,229,430

48,225,153

4,883,764

48,225,153

4,883,764

Motor

38,923,789

20,897,985

38,923,789

20,897,985

Fire

14,166,451

9,663,456

14,166,451

9,663,456

Miscellaneous
Riot and strike premium

Marine

92,020

49,698

92,020

49,698

983,028

826,729

983,028

826,729

321,643,278

101,021,036

280,627,768

69,008,451

Miscellaneous

....................................................................................................................
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23. Net change in reserves for unearned premium
Group

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

264,470,619

219,175,257

264,470,619

219,175,257

Unearned premium
Motor
Fire

(4,863,826)

1,008,764

(4,863,826)

1,008,764

Marine

(452,080)

(2,158,607)

(452,080)

(2,158,607)

Miscellaneous

(809,592)

(4,047,170)

(809,592)

(4,047,170)

258,345,122

213,978,244

258,345,122

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

213,978,244

24. Net finance income
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

Available for sale
Treasury bonds

83,439,220

87,354,115

48,786,074

49,552,981

Debentures

96,233,927

80,942,303

54,123,557

44,286,843

948,378

1,108,660

18,948,378

1,108,660

Fixed deposits

47,749,902

30,334,245

32,455,746

19,010,482

Repo

Dividend income
Loans and receivables

35,789,062

17,820,697

26,665,923

10,920,421

Overnight deposit

4,319,068

2,412,452

2,340,379

1,469,955

Commercial papers

20,500,251

3,729,479

12,096,649

1,537,245

-

13,909,400

-

-

27,205

-

-

-

Fair value through profit or loss
Unit trust
Quoted shares - dividend

....................................................................................................................
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Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Interest income on
Savings deposits
Policy loans
Staff loans
Total Finance income

66,238

336,606

66,238

336,606

1,814,575

1,530,822

-

-

2,581,471

1,207,780

2,337,799

981,733

293,469,297

240,686,559

197,820,742

129,204,926

-

5,716,515

5,024,794

5,097,867

Interest on lease agreements
Interest on term loan

-

825,565

-

825,565

6,084,244

6,542,080

5,024,794

5,923,432

287,385,053

234,144,479

192,795,948

123,281,494

Total Finance cost
Net finance income

24.1 Notional tax credit for withholding tax on treasury bills and bonds

According to section 137 of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006, a company which derives interest income from secondary market transactions in Government securities is entitled to a notional tax credit (being the one ninth of the net interest income) provided such interest income
forms a part of the statutory income of the company for that year of assessment.
Accordingly, net interest income earned from secondary market transactions in Government securities for the year by the Company has been
grossed up in the financial statements and resulting notional tax credit amounted to Rs.8,325,128 (2015:Rs.6,588,343)
25. Unrealised losses
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
Group
2016
Rs.

Unit Trusts

(3,033,567)

Quoted shares

(92,733)
(3,126,300)

....................................................................................................................
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2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

(8,977,880)
5,850
(8,972,030)

2015
Rs.
-

-

-

-

-

-
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26. Policy administration fees
Group
2016
Rs.

Motor

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

88,157,329

72,394,934

88,157,329

72,394,934

502,537

252,987

502,537

252,987

36,564

25,800

36,564

25,800

3,269,846

2,436,297

3,269,846

2,436,297

91,966,277

75,110,018

91,966,277

75,110,018

Fire
Marine
Miscellaneous

27. Other income
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Gain on foreign currency transaction

104,821

723,815

104,821

723,815

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

978,923

492,575

978,923

492,575

Miscellaneous income (Note 27.1)

9,357,770

33,435,729

8,645,366

19,542,159

10,441,513

34,652,119

9,729,110

20,758,549

Other income

2,730,475

17,504,232

2,730,475

17,504,232

Sundry income

4,329,499

1,898,673

3,617,096

725,273

804,306

733,330

804,306

733,330

-

12,720,170

-

-

1,493,490

579,324

1,493,490

579,324

9,357,770

33,435,729

8,645,366

19,542,159

27.1 Miscellaneous income

Policy fee charges
Commission payable write back
Non refundable tender fees

....................................................................................................................
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28. Gross benefits and claims incurred
Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Life insurance contracts
Death, disability and hospitalization

32,298,138

24,656,956

-

-

Policy surrenders

30,009,397

18,782,673

-

-

Pension benefits

1,113,074

1,148,059

-

-

13,788,342

49,734,508

-

-

Policy maturity
Survival benefits

4,689,571

7,724,979

-

-

81,898,522

102,047,175

-

-

1,378,774,064

918,513,332

1,378,774,064

918,513,332

Fire

37,828,596

13,674,050

37,828,596

13,674,050

Marine

(1,013,869)

2,281,509

(1,013,869)

2,281,509

Miscellaneous

22,673,914

(7,106,459)

22,673,914

(7,106,459)

Non life insurance contracts
Motor

1,438,262,705

Less: Salvage income

927,362,432

1,438,262,705

927,362,432

(84,198,795)

(37,242,218)

(84,198,795)

(37,242,218)

-

(20,670,169)

-

(20,670,169)

Movement in salvage stock

1,354,063,910

869,450,045

1,354,063,910

869,450,045

1,435,962,432

971,497,220

1,354,063,910

869,450,045

....................................................................................................................
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29. Underwriting and policy acquisition cost
Group

Net underwriting and policy acquisition cost
Increase / (decrease) in deferred acquisition cost
Reinsurance commission

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

288,109,094

219,062,249

216,110,487

148,384,030

14,664,676

(20,078,996)

14,664,676

(20,078,996)

(82,499,459)

(9,340,930)

(77,077,411)

(6,701,815)

220,274,311

189,642,323

153,697,752

121,603,219

30. Other operating and administrative expenses
Group

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

327,827,833

273,086,862

225,383,145

185,673,772

Administrative and establishment expenses

257,000,586

218,636,327

191,318,640

164,484,046

Selling Expenses

154,012,170

122,185,692

115,010,413

92,508,394

88,103,806

59,753,504

71,137,698

48,529,245

2,088,916

2,237,537

1,893,665

1,885,323

-

382,007

-

-

829,033,311

675,281,929

604,743,561

493,080,780

Staff expenses

(Note 30.1)

Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Impairment on motor vehicle
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30.1 Staff expenses
Group

Salaries and wages
Contributions to defined contribution plans

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

262,747,304

220,241,352

181,168,868

148,836,469

35,186,628

29,896,522

24,660,003

20,471,324

Contributions to defined benefit plans

9,823,109

7,756,472

6,878,962

5,266,453

Contribution for staff group term assurance

1,652,850

1,367,700

1,167,000

947,100

Staff welfare

4,985,971

3,994,668

3,073,450

2,264,452

Staff training and development

3,201,324

1,262,070

867,742

747,488

Other staff expenses

10,230,649

8,568,079

7,567,120

7,140,486

327,827,833

273,086,862

225,383,145

185,673,771

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

31. Profit before income tax
The profit from operation for the year is stated after charging the following expenses.
Group
2016
Rs.

Directors remuneration
Directors medical insurance
Auditor's remuneration

Company
2015
Rs.

6,581,848

8,383,380

6,581,848

5,903,000

85,059

-

85,059

-

979,000

875,000

979,000

545,000

Impairment loss on premium receivable

20,883,569

5,168,087

20,883,569

4,322,730

Depreciation

88,103,806

58,753,504

71,137,698

48,529,245

2,088,916

2,237,537

1,893,665

1,885,323

Amortization of intangible assets

....................................................................................................................
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32. Income tax expenses
32.1 Amount recognised in the profit or loss
Group
2016
Rs.

For the year ended 31 December

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Current tax expense
Current year
(Over) / under provision for the last year

51,087,164

50,170,042

50,327,535

49,893,044

(11,027,737)

(5,288,659)

(11,027,737)

(5,288,659)

40,059,427

44,881,383

39,299,798

44,604,385

(6,803,894)

(5,214,870)

(6,031,237)

(1,564,813)

(752,649)

13,890,219

(4,954,683)

10,108,959

(7,556,543)

8,675,349

(10,985,921)

8,544,146

32,502,884

53,556,732

28,313,877

53,148,531

Deferred tax expense
Origination / (reversal) of deferred tax assets
Origination / (reversal) of deferred tax liabilities

Income tax expense
32.2 Reconciliation of accounting profit and taxable income

Group

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

161,876,119

203,069,112

189,141,755

175,444,602

Less: Exempted interest income

(45,733,276)

(111,252,142)

(54,123,557)

(44,286,843)

Add: Disallowable expenses

138,386,633

84,848,231

112,161,882

66,620,728

Less: Allowable expenses

(110,236,343)

(41,693,311)

(81,851,316)

(19,589,047)

Less: Profit from life insurance

(137,230,930)

(96,659,976)

-

-

Less: Other income considered separately

(199,174,827)

(83,816,964)

(196,461,867)

(82,827,684)

Business income

(192,112,624)

(45,505,051)

(31,133,104)

95,361,755

237,335,853

83,816,964

-

82,827,684

45,223,229

38,311,913

179,741,195

178,189,439

Profit before tax

Other sources of income
Assessable income
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Group
2016
Rs.

Company
2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Less: Deductions
Tax loss on longterm insurance
Total taxable income

(137,230,930)

(140,866,808)

182,454,158

Total taxable liability (at 28%)

-

-

179,178,721

179,741,195

178,189,439

51,087,164

50,170,042

50,327,535

49,893,044

51,087,164

50,170,042

50,327,535

49,893,044

33. Earnings per share
Basic earning per share

The basic earnings per share is based on net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for the year divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the year and is calculated as follows
Group

Company

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rs.)

129,373,235

149,512,381

160,827,877

122,296,071

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
applicable to basic earnings per share (Nos.)

107,854,850

100,490,961

107,854,850

100,490,961

1.20

1.49

1.49

1.22

Earnings per share (Rs.)

34. Related party transactions and balances
34.1 Transactions with key management personnel

The board of directors of the Company have the authority and responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company.
Accordingly, the Board of directors of the Company have been identified as the key management personnel. (“KMP”) of the Company.
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The emoluments paid to the KMP of the Company are disclosed as follows;
2016
Rs.
11,469,891

Short term employee benefits

2015
Rs.
5,903,000

Post employment benefits accrued are not included above as it cannot be identified separately due to the actuarial valuation.
Loans given to Directors

Company has not given any loans for the Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.
Loans obtained from Director

Company has not obtained any loans from the Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.
34.2 Directors and their directorships in other entities are listed below as the societies represented by the directors on the Board are considered as
related parties.

Director

Company

Relationship

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris

Wennappuwa MPCS Ltd.
National Co-operatvie Council Of Sri Lanka
Chilaw District Co-operative Council
Co-op life Insurance Company Ltd
Sri Lanka Co-operative Marketing Federation
Sri Lanka Co-operative Rural Bank Federation

Chairman
Chairman
Chairman
Chairman
Director
Director

Mr. P.M. Chandrasena Bandara

Uva Province Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Badulla Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Sri Lanka Co-operative Rural Bank Federation
Mahiyangana MPCS
National Co-operatvie Council Of Sri Lanka

Chairman
Chairman
Chairman
Vice Chairman
Vice Chairman

Mr. K.R.W Ranasinghe

Sirioya Hydro Power (Pvt) Ltd
Co-operative Leasing Company Ltd.

Director
Director
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Director

Company

Relationship

Mr. K.J. Sesiri

Beralapanatara MPCS
Matara Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Matara Dist. Tea Producers Co-operative Society Union
Sri Lanka Consumer Cooperative Society Union Ltd

Chairman
Director
Director
Director

Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge

Pujapitiya MPCS
Central Province Co-operative Rural Bank Union
Puttalam Salt LTD

Chairman
Chairman
Director

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe

Post & Telecom Employees Co-op Bank Society Ltd

Chairman

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe

Dambadeniya MPCS Ltd

Chairman

Mr. A.D.T.S. Palitha

P.E. Mathew & Co. Chartered Accountants

Audit Manager

Mr. J.M.V.P. Jayasooriya

Galaligamuwa MPCS
Kegalle Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd
Kegalle Dist. Co-operative Council
Lanka Electricity Company Ltd

Chairman
Director
Director
Director

Mr. P.P.D.S. Kularathna

Paduwasnuwara MPCS Ltd
Puttlam Salt Ltd
Wayamba Co-operative Rural Bank Union Ltd
Kuliyapitiya Dist. Cooperative Council

Chairman
Managing Director
Director
Director

Mr. R.M.B.M. Bandara

Polonnaruwa MPCS Ltd.
Polonnaruwa Dist. Cooperartive Rural Bank Union Ltd.
Polonnaruwa Dist. Cooperartive Council
National Cooperative Council of Sri Lanka
Sri Lanka Co-operative Rural Bank Federation Ltd.

Chairman
Chairman
Director
Director
Director
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Director

Company

Relationship

Mr. K. Susil Shantha Weerasekara

Weligama MPCS LTD

Chairman

Matara District Co-operative Council

Chairman

CAPRO Coop Southern LTD

Chairman

Matara District Tea Producers Co-operative Society LTD

Chairman

34.3 Transactions and balances with related parties

The Multi-Purpose Co-operative Societies represented on the Board are considered as related parties due to the joint shareholdings and representation on the Board. Related party balances and transactions are listed bellow ;
Nature of
transaction

Entity

Coop Life Insurance Ltd.

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.
400,000,000

Equity investment
Shared service expenses

Balance as at 31 December
2016
Rs.
400,000,040

2015
Rs.
500,000,040

29,379,590

30,909,167

11,998,559

-

74,846

1,671,742

-

-

Life GTA

1,945,300

1,578,500

-

-

Vehicle rent

1,800,000

750,000

-

-

Building rent

2,712,960

989,280

-

-

318,617

330,244

-

-

Insurance premium

Claims

....................................................................................................................
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Nature of
transaction

Entity

MPCS Wennappuwa

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.

Office rent
Fuel

2015
Rs.

929,500

858,000

-

-

3,800

6,400

-

-

-

-

-

-

Dividends

-

11,183,333

-

-

Sales promotion

-

195,000

-

-

Other

-

-

-

-

355,989

244,008

-

-

-

131,871

-

-

78,167

397,263

-

-

-

-

Calendars & diaries, hall charges
Claims
Sales promotion

-

Office rent

-

1,225,993

-

-

27,475

616,925

-

-

Transport charges

-

-

-

-

Foreign traveling

-

-

-

-

Water

-

-

-

-

Advertisement

Share promotion

Sri Lanka Co-operative Marketing
Federation

2016
Rs.

Vehicle hiring charges

Commission

National Co-operative Council of
Sri Lanka

Balance as at 31 December

765,000

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

-

Dividends payable

-

-

-

-

Rent advance

-

-

483,819

-

Dividends

-

50,445

-

-

Claims

-

190,100

-

-

Fuel

-

2,369,510

-

-

Dividends

-

28,657

-

-
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Nature of
transaction

Entity

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.

Balance as at 31 December
2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Sales promotion

-

-

-

-

Refunds & other

-

1,305,813

-

-

Vehicle rental
Sri Lanka Co-operative Rural Bank
Dividends
Federation
Security deposit

-

9,500,067

-

-

-

183,333

-

-

-

1,453,125

-

-

3,900

27,453

-

-

Lease payments

13,871,076

-

-

-

Uva Province Co-operative Rural Bank Dividends
Union
Share converted

-

1,248,504

-

-

-

-

-

-

Badulla Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank
Dividends
Union

-

722

-

-

Dividends

-

325,907

-

-

Claims

Business promotion
Mahiyangana MPCS

Dambadeniya MPCS Ltd

-

50,000

-

-

Commission

67,012

-

-

-

Others

25,000

-

-

-

Dividends

-

789,424

-

-

66,512

62,077

-

-

-

14,820

-

-

129,541

112,083

-

-

-

1,162

-

-

Others

10,000

-

-

-

Claims

9,890

73,172

-

-

Commission
Sales promotion
Incentive
Premium refund

....................................................................................................................
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Nature of
transaction

Entity

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.

Balance as at 31 December
2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Post & Telecom Employees Co-op Bank
Sales promotion
Society Ltd

-

-

-

-

Share converted

-

-

-

-

Claim payment

-

-

-

-

Dividends

-

7,333,333

-

-

Advertisement

-

25,000

-

-

Dividends payable

-

-

Dividends

-

418,187

-

-

Business promotion

-

148,000

-

-

Shares converted

-

-

-

-

Claims

-

44,850

-

-

-

1,471,829

-

-

Others

-

-

-

-

Dividends

-

2,353,410

-

-

511,838

183,491

-

-

Pujapitiya MPCS

Central Province Co-operative Rural
Dividends
Bank Union

Beralapanatara MPCS

Claims
Commission
Commission incentive
Sales promotion
Others
Matara Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank
Dividends
Union
Other

....................................................................................................................
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-

22,331

11,703

-

-

256,778

176,063

-

-

-

46,661

-

-

10,219

-

-

-

-

3,772,178

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Nature of
transaction

Entity

Matara Dist. Tea Producers
operative Society Union

Co-

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.

Dividends

Balance as at 31 December
2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

-

5,686,779

-

-

271,350

71,611

-

-

Kegalle Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank
Dividends
Union

-

6,850

-

-

Gampaha Dist. Co-operative Rural Bank
Motor claims
Union

-

-

-

-

Dividends

-

-

-

-

Dividends

-

41,829

-

-

Claims

Galigamuwa MPCS

Business promotion

Puttlam Salt Ltd

-

100,000

-

-

Commission

23,376

-

-

-

Commission incentive

24,891

-

-

-

Others

30,000

-

-

-

682,894

806,769

-

-

Claim payment
Others

6,816

-

-

-

Commission

4,697

2,709

-

-
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Nature of
transaction

Entity

Co-operative Leasing Company Ltd

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.
430,037

Commission
Sales promotion & other

Co-operative

Polonnaruwa MPCS Ltd

-

-

-

-

-

-

306,997

-

-

832,323

-

-

-

-

44,964

-

-

Business promotion

43,000

25,000

-

-

Claims

30,225

60,642

-

-

-

14,188

-

-

58,900

60,500

-

-

Training programmer

Polonnaruwa Dist. Co-operative Rural
Dividends
Bank Union
Commission
Sales promotion
Business promotion
Claims
Polonnaruwa Dist. Co-operative Council Dividends
Business promotion
Paduwasnuwara MPCS Ltd

2015
Rs.

-

Claims
of

2016
Rs.

1,996,068

Monthly rental

National Institute
Development

Balance as at 31 December

Dividends
Business promotion

....................................................................................................................
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-

3,034

-

-

15,000

4,235

-

-

287,519

82,754

-

-

-

244

-

-

-

10,000

-

-

-

1,505,167

-

-

12,500

12,500

-

-
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Nature of
transaction

Entity

Transaction amount
Paid/ (Received)
2016
2015
Rs.
Rs.
612,919

Commission & incentive
Claims

-

110,125

-

-

-

-

7,838,771

-

-

-

397,094

-

-

10,000

170,000

-

-

130,000

-

-

-

Business promotion
Co-operative

Promotion

2015
Rs.
-

Claim

Consumer

2016
Rs.
-

Wayamba Co-operative Rural Bank
Dividends
union

Sri Lanka
Federation

Balance as at 31 December

35. Contingencies
There were no material contingent liabilities outstanding as at the date of reporting.
36. Events occurring after the reporting date
There were no material events that occurred after the reporting date that required adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.
37. Comparative information
The following comparative figures have been reclassified in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 in order to provide a
fair presentation. Comparative information in the financial statements have been reclassified as follows:

....................................................................................................................

157

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
Note

As previously
reported

As reported
in 2016

As previously
reported

As reported
in 2016

Group

Group

Company

Company
1,337,622,691

Financial investments

a

2,763,640,948

2,760,621,980

1,340,641,658

Cash and cash equivalents

a

Net reclassification
Company

Group
(3,018,968)

(3,018,967)

44,802,188

84,854,772

36,865,532

75,831,464

3,018,964

3,018,964

Reinsurance receivables

34,854,479

32,030,715

24,095,796

21,272,032

(2,823,764)

(2,823,764)

Reinsurance creditors

36,043,887

33,220,123

10,830,814

8,007,050

(2,823,764)

(2,823,764)

226,703,830

197,371,489

164,187,513

134,855,172

(29,332,341)

(29,332,341)

1,765,299

33,808,571

1,765,299

28,027,997

32,043,272

26,262,698

959,923,971

995,145,774

763,501,095

792,220,399

35,221,803

28,719,304

Other liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings

b

Property, plant and
equipment
Net finance income

b/c

238,215,912

234,144,479

126,734,279

123,281,494

(4,071,433)

(3,452,785)

Other operating and
administrative expenses

c

678,710,818

675,281,929

496,072,219

493,080,780

(3,428,889)

(2,991,439)

24,784,881

13,557,906

a) Balances in the savings bank account and RFC account that were previously categorized as loans and receivables under financial investments
reclassified as cash and cash equivalents.
b) Finance lease agreements relating to motor vehicles and data card machines were previously recognized in the income statement, as an
operating lease erroneously.
c) Income and expenses were reclassified to the correct category for better representation.
38. Prior year adjustments - Company
The financial statements have been restated in accordance with LKAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, to
reflect the following adjustments:

Retained earnings as at

01.01.2015

As previously
reported
326,438,579

Net finance income

31.12.2015

126,734,279

123,281,494

(3,452,785)

Other liabilities

31.12.2015

164,187,513

134,855,172

(29,332,341)

Other operating and administrative expenses

31.12.2015

496,072,219

493,080,780

(2,991,439)

Interest bearing borrowings

31.12.2015

1,765,299

28,027,997

26,262,698

Property, plant and equipment

31.12.2015

763,501,095

792,220,399

28,719,304

....................................................................................................................
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...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

38.1 Commission payable amounting to Rs. 22,214,154 was written back at the beginning of this as they were not payable according to Board.
Rs.

Amounts written back in 2014 and before

22,214,154

Total adjustment to the opening retained earnings

22,214,154

39. Financial Instruments – Fair values and risk management
Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is
reasonable approximation of fair value.
31-Dec-16
In Rs ‘000
Group

Note

FVTPL

Held to
Maturity

Loans &
Receivables and
other
Financial
assets

Available
for Sale

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
Treasury bonds

6.2.1

-

-

-

733,868

-

733,868

733,868

-

-

Unquoted equity instrument

6.2

-

-

-

4,940

-

4,940

-

-

4,940

4,940

Quoted equity instrument

6.2

874

-

-

10,506

-

11,380

11,380

-

-

11,380

6.2.2.1 &
6.2.2.2

-

-

-

1,074,097

-

1,074,097

843,333

230,764

-

1,074,097

6.3

273,847

-

-

-

-

273,847

273,847

-

-

273,847

Fixed deposit

6.1

-

-

420,504

-

-

420,504

-

-

-

-

Unquoted debentures

6.1

-

-

24,060

-

-

24,060

-

-

-

-

Investments in Repo

6.1

-

-

609,293

-

-

609,293

-

-

-

-

Commercial papers

6.1

-

-

212,953

-

-

212,953

-

-

-

-

9

-

-

93,262

-

-

93,262

-

-

-

-

Premium receivable

10

-

-

440,912

-

-

440,912

-

-

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents

12

-

-

84,854

-

-

84,854

-

-

-

-

274,721

-

1,885,838

1,823,411

-

3,983,970

1,862,428

230,764

4,940

2,098,132

Quoted debentures
Unit trusts

733,868

Financial assets not measured at fair
value

Reinsurance receivable

Total Assets
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31-Dec-16
In Rs ‘000
Note

Group

Held to
Maturity

FVTPL

Loans &
Receivables
and
other
Financial
assets

Available
for Sale

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Financial lease

14

-

-

-

-

22,145

22,145

-

-

-

22,145

Reinsurance creditors

18

-

-

-

-

122,787

122,787

-

-

-

122,787

Bank overdrafts

12

Total Liabilities

-

-

-

-

41,072

41,072

-

-

-

41,072

-

-

-

-

186,004

186,004

-

-

-

186,004

31-Dec-16
In Rs ‘000
Company

Treasury bonds

Note

FVTPL

Held to
Maturity

Loans &
Receivables and
other
Financial
assets

Available
for Sale

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

6.2.1

-

-

-

422,254

-

422,254

422,254

-

-

6.2

-

-

-

10,506

-

10,506

10,506

-

-

10,506

6.2.2.1 &
6.2.2.2

-

-

-

649,993

-

649,993

523,772

126,221

-

649,993

6.3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fixed Deposit

6.1

-

-

343,980

-

-

343,980

-

-

-

343,980

Unquoted debentures

6.1

-

-

24,060

-

-

24,060

-

-

-

24,060

Investments in Repo

6.1

-

-

287,183

-

-

287,183

-

-

-

287,183

Commercial papers

6.1

-

-

160,715

-

-

160,715

-

-

-

160,715

9

-

-

82,931

-

-

82,931

-

-

-

82,931

Premium receivable

10

-

-

418,972

-

-

418,972

-

-

-

418,972

Cash and cash equivalents

12

-

-

75,831

-

-

75,831

-

-

-

75,831

-

-

1,393,672

1,087,693

-

2,481,365

956,532

126,221

4,940

2,481,365

Quoted equity instrument
Quoted debentures
Unit trusts

422,254

Financial assets not measured at fair
value

Reinsurance receivable

Total Assets
Financial lease

14

-

-

-

-

17,625

17,625

-

-

-

17,625

Reinsurance Creditors

18

-

-

-

-

100,184

100,184

-

-

-

100,184

Bank overdrafts

12

-

-

-

-

41,072

41,072

-

-

-

41,072

-

-

-

-

158,881

158,881

-

-

-

158,881

Total Liabilities
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31-Dec-16
In Rs ‘000
Group

Note

FVTPL

Held to
Maturity

Loans &
Receivables and
other
Financial
assets

Available
for Sale

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
Treasury bonds
Unquoted equity instrument
Quoted equity instrument

6.2.1

-

-

-

805,333

-

805,333

805,333

-

-

805,333

6.2

-

-

-

4,654

-

4,654

-

-

4,654

4,654

6.2

936

-

-

13,438

-

14,374

14,374

-

-

14,374

6.2.2.1 &
6.2.2.2

-

-

-

707,944

-

707,944

314,689

393,255

-

707,944

6.3

470,727

-

-

-

-

470,727

470,727

-

-

470,727

Fixed deposit

6.1

-

-

329,288

-

-

329,288

-

-

-

329,288

Savings deposit

6.1

-

-

3,018

-

-

3,018

-

-

-

3,018

Unquoted debentures

6.1

-

-

23,488

-

-

23,488

-

-

-

23,488

Investments in Repo

6.1

-

-

288,496

-

-

288,496

-

-

-

288,496

Commercial papers

6.1

-

-

116,317

-

-

116,317

-

-

-

116,317

9

-

-

34,854

-

-

34,854

-

-

-

34,854

Premium receivable

10

-

-

310,545

-

-

310,545

-

-

-

310,545

Cash and cash equivalents

12

-

-

41,369

-

-

1,147,375

1,531,369

Quoted debentures
Unit trusts

Financial assets not measured at fair
value

Reinsurance receivable

Total Assets

471,663

Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value

41,369

-

-

-

41,369

3,150,407

1,605,123

393,255

4,654

3,150,407

-

Financial lease

14

-

-

-

-

33,809

1,769

-

-

-

1,769

Reinsurance creditors

18

-

-

-

-

36,043

36,043

-

-

-

36,043

Bank overdrafts

12

-

-

-

-

57,162

57,162

-

-

-

57,162

-

-

-

-

127,014

94,974

-

-

-

94,974

Total Liabilities
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31-Dec-16
In Rs ‘000
Company

Note

FVTPL

Held to
Maturity

Loans &
Receivables and
other
Financial
assets

Available
for Sale

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets measured at fair value
Treasury bonds

6.2

-

-

-

467,055

-

467,055

467,055

-

-

Unquoted equity instrument

6.2

-

-

-

4,654

-

4,654

-

-

4,654

4,654

Quoted equity instrument

6.2

-

-

-

13,438

-

13,438

13,438

-

-

13,438

6.2.2.1 &
6.2.2.2

-

-

-

402,198

-

402,198

206,645

195,553

-

402,198

6.3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Quoted debentures
Unit trusts
Financial assets not measured at fair
value

467,055

-

Fixed deposit

6.1

-

-

202,664

-

-

202,664

-

-

-

Savings deposit

6.1

-

-

3,018

-

-

3,018

-

-

-

3,018

Unquoted debentures

6.1

-

-

23,488

-

-

23,488

-

-

-

23,488

Investments in Repo

6.1

-

-

107,809

-

-

107,809

-

-

-

107,809

Commercial papers

6.1

-

-

116,317

-

-

116,317

-

-

-

116,317

9

-

-

24,095

-

-

24,095

-

-

-

24,095

10

-

-

293,536

-

-

293,536

-

-

-

293,536

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

33,846

-

-

33,846

-

-

-

33,846

-

-

804,773

887,345

-

1,692,118

206,645

195,553

4,654

1,692,118

Reinsurance receivable
Premium receivable
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

12

Total Assets

202,664

Financial liabilities not measured at
fair value
Finance lease

14

-

-

-

-

28,028

1,765

-

-

-

1,765

Reinsurance creditors

18

-

-

-

-

10,831

10,831

-

-

-

10,831

Bank overdrafts

12

-

-

-

-

57,162

57,162

-

-

-

57,162

-

-

-

-

96,021

69,758

-

-

-

69,758

Total Liabilities

....................................................................................................................
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of available for sale financial assets is as bellows ;
Available for sale
financial assets

Group / Company

Total

2016
1-Jan-16

4,653,815

4,653,815

286,596

286,596

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

-

Total gains or losses recognised in:

Purchases / sales (net)
31-Dec-16

-

-

4,940,411

4,940,411

Available for sale
financial assets

Group / Company

Total

2015
1-Jan-15

4,100,524

4,100,524

553,291

553,291

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

-

-

Other comprehensive loss

-

-

Transfer from level 1

-

-

Total gains or losses recognised in:

Purchases / sales (net)
31-Dec-15

....................................................................................................................
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Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable
inputs used.
Financial Instruments measured at fair value

Type

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair
value measurement

Equity instruments- Unquoted

Net Assets based valuation

Net Assets Value and Number
of Share Outstanding

Positive

Debentures

Future Cash Flow based valuation

Discounting Factor

Negative

Transfers between the levels
Transfers between Levels 1 and 2

At 31 December 2016, debentures classified as available for sale with a carrying amount of Rs. 193.33 million were transferred from Level 1 to
Level 2 because there were no recent observable arm’s length transactions in the debentures held by the Group.
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Financial Instruments - Risk management
39.1 Introduction and overview

The Group has implemented a risk management framework in order to identify, measure, mitigate and manage the various risks falling within
credit, liquidity, market, operational and insurance categories. Risk reporting entails not only accounting but also the activities of risk management. The disclosures in the risk report largely adopt an economic view.
The Group has exposure to the following risks;
•
•
•
•
•
•

Insurance risk (Business risk)
Financial risk
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk
Operational risk

This section deals in detail with the various risks from insurance contracts and describe uncertainties in measuring them. In accordance with the
requirements of SLFRS 4, the effects of a change in the assumptions underlying the measurement of insurance contracts and / or in the market
environment are also quantified. In relation to financial instruments, SLFRS 7 stipulates that the disclosures must comprise information on the
maximum credit risk exposure, the remaining terms, the rating, and a sensitivity analysis regarding the market risk. This information is also relevant for assessing the risk stemming from financial instruments.
39.2 Insurance Risk (Business risk)

By the very nature of an insurance contract, risk is based on fortuity and is therefore unpredictable. The risk under any insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty regarding the amount of the resulting claim.
For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Company faces is
that the actual claim and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of
claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from
year to year from the level established using statistical techniques.
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Table A: Risk management procedures adopted by the Company to manage insurance risk

Area

Risk management procedure

Underwriting discipline.

Limits are set on underwriting capacity, and authority granted to individuals based on their specific
expertise.
Appropriate pricing guidelines have been set, with a focus on consistent technical pricing across the
organization.

Reinsurance

- Review adequacy of reinsurance support for catastrophe / extreme events on a regular basis

The Company obtains reinsurance to
limit its exposure to individual risks
and aggregation of risks arising from
individual large claims and catastrophe
events. The types of reinsurance obtained
are as follows;
- Excess of loss reinsurance obtained
to protect a range of individual inwards
contracts which could give rise to
individually large claims.
- Facultative reinsurance obtained to
reduce risk relating to an individual
specific inwards contract.

- Re- Insurance is done with Hannover Reinsurance for Life insurance and the following reinsurers for
General insurance;

- General Insurance Corporation of India
- African Reinsurance Corporation
- Malaysian Reinsurance Berhad
- Santam Re

39.2.1 Life Insurance Contracts
39.2.1.1.Risk Management

Life insurance products include protection and annuity covers.
Protection products carry mortality, longevity and morbidity risks as well as market and credit risk. The most significant factors that could
increase the frequency of mortality claims are epidemics, such as strains of influenza, or lifestyle changes such as eating, drinking and exercise
habits, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected. Morbidity claims experience would not only be affected by the factors mentioned above,
but because disability is defined in terms of the ability to perform an occupation, it could also be affected by economic conditions. In order to
reduce cross-subsidies in the pricing basis, premiums are differentiated, where permitted, for example by product, age, gender and smoker status.
The policy terms and conditions and the disclosure requirements contained in insurance applications are designed to mitigate the risk arising
from non-standard and unpredictable risks that may result in severe financial loss.
The policy terms and conditions and the disclosure requirements contained in insurance applications are designed to mitigate the risk arising
from non-standard and unpredictable risks that may result in severe financial loss.
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In the life annuity business, the most significant insurance risk is continued medical advances and improvement in social conditions that lead to
increase in longevity. Annuitant mortality assumptions include allowance for future mortality improvements.
In addition to the specific risks listed above, the Company is exposed to policyholder behavior and expense risks. Policyholder behavior risk is
mitigated by product designs that match revenue and expenses associated with the contract as closely as possible. Expense risk is mitigated by
careful control of expenses and by regular expense analyses and allocation exercises.
The Company is exposed to two main types of concentration risks in its life business:
 Market risk: Interest rate guarantees expose the Company to financial losses that may arise as a result of adverse movements in financial
markets.
 Insurance risk: Main factors include mortality risk, morbidity risk, longevity risk, policyholder behavior risk (lapse, anti-selection) and expense
risk.
Accordingly having a well-diversified portfolio of products reduces risk associated with the life business.
The Company’s exposure to life insurance risks varies significantly by product lines and may change over time.
The insurance risk described above is also affected by the contract holder’s right to pay reduced premiums or no future premiums, to terminate
the contract completely. As a result, the amount of insurance risk is also subject to contract holder behavior.
39.2.1.2.Concentration risk

The Company defines concentration risk in the life business as the risk of exposure to increased losses associated with inadequately diversified
portfolios of assets and /or obligations.
A more diversified portfolio of risks is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of risks.
Any potential change in the mix of the portfolio could significantly alter the nature of the overall risk. Hence the Executive Committee reviews
risks inherent in all new business propositions against the risk appetite of the life business.
Table B
Concentration risk within the life business
Insurance contract liabilities As at
31 December 2016 Rs.

Insurance contract liabilities As at
31 December 2015 Rs

Participating

727,148

574,338

Non-participating

482,883

468,724

Liability in respect of Bonuses declared of the current year
Total

....................................................................................................................
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39.2.1.3.Assumptions in determining Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contracts, estimates are made in two stages. At inception of the contract, the Company determines assumptions in relation to
future deaths, voluntary terminations, investment returns and administration expenses. Subsequently, new estimates are developed at each
reporting date to determine whether liabilities are adequate in the light of the latest current estimates. Improvements in estimates have no
impact on the value of the liabilities and related assets, while significant enough deteriorations in estimates have an impact.
The assumptions used for the insurance contracts are as follows:
Table C

Assumption

Description

The mortality table used was the A67 / 70 ultimate for all assurances
and deferred annuities before vesting and, a (90) ultimate table of
annuitants after vesting.
Investment returns affect the assumed level of future benefits due to
the contract holders and the selection of the appropriate discount rate.

Mortality
Investment returns

39.2.1.4.Sensitivity Analysis

The table D presents the sensitivity of the value of insurance liabilities disclosed in this note to movements in the assumptions used in the
estimation of insurance liabilities. For liabilities under life insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, changes in assumptions will not
cause a change to the amount of the liability, unless the change is severe enough to trigger a liability adequacy test adjustment.
No adjustments were required in 2016 or 2015, based on the results of the liability adequacy test. The table D indicates the level of the respective variable that will trigger an adjustment and then indicates the liability adjustment required as a result of a further deterioration in the
variable.
Table D: Sensitivity of the value of insurance liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2015

Assumption

Change in assumptions

Mortality
Discount rate

Impact on liabilities

10%

948,410

-10%

921,249

+50 basis points

880,380

-50 basis points

993,858

39.2.2. General insurance contracts

General insurance risks include the reasonable possibility of significant loss due to uncertainty in the frequency of the occurrence of the insured
event as well as in the severity of the resulting claim. An overview of the Group’s main lines of business is as follows;
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Line of business

Description

Motor

Includes automobile physical damage, loss of the insured vehicle and automobile third party liability insurance

Fire and engineering

Includes fire risks (for example fire, explosion and business interruption), natural perils (for example earthquake
and flood), engineering lines (for example boiler explosion, machinery breakdown and construction)

Accident and liability
Marine / Cargo

Includes general/public and product liability, excess and professional liability including medical malpractice,
errors and omissions of liability.
Coverage for special risk insurance and trip cargo insurance. Contracts with open policy cargo insurance that
covers all of a shipper’s good in transit.

The Group’s underwriting strategy is to take advantage of the diversification of General insurance risks across industries. The Group seeks
to optimize shareholder value by achieving its equity goals. Doing so necessitates a prudent, stable underwriting philosophy that aims to
take advantage of its competitive strengths while avoiding risks with disruptive volatility. At the core of the Group’s underwriting is a robust
governance process.
Reinsurance risk
Not with standing to the advantages reinsurance provides insurers, it can expose them, at varying degrees, to various risks inherent in its use. A
new or continuing reinsurance contract could give rise to one or more of the following risks;
-

Residual insurance risk

-

Legal risk

-

Counterparty risk

-

Liquidity risk

Considering the above factors the overall risk management strategy cedes insurance risk through proportional, non-proportional and specific
reinsurance treaties.
As at 31 December 2016, 87% of our reinsurance receivable were due from reinsurers with a rating of ‘A-’ or better and from the National Insurance Trust Fund (NITF). There were no collateral against reinsurance receivables as at the reporting date.
The ratings of reinsurer’s and their related rating agencies are as follows;
Country of
origin

Reinsurer

Rating

Rating agency

General Insurance Corporation of India

India

A-

A M Best

African Reinsurance Corporation

Nigeria

A-

A M Best

Malaysian Reinsurance Berhad

Malaysia

A-

A M Best

Santam Re

South Africa

AA-

Standard & Poor's

....................................................................................................................

169

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Financial Statement Contd.
Reinsurer

Country of
origin

Rating

Rating agency

Hannover Reinsurance

Germany

AA-

Standard & Poor's

National Insurance Trust Fund

Sri Lanka

Government security

Not applicable

Concentration risk

For General insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from the Motor Class.
The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts into different classes as mentioned earlier.
The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks
are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.
Concentration risk within the general insurance business based on the Gross Written Premium is as follows:
Concentration risk based on classes

Class

2016
Gross Written
Premium

Motor
Fire and Engineering

Total

....................................................................................................................

Net written
Premium

%

2,203,632

167,039

2,036,593

89%

94,104

59,751

34,353

3%

4,718

4,628

89

0%

Marine
Accident and liability

Re-insurance

173,086

49,208

123,878

6%

2,475,543

280,627

2,194,915

100%
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Class

2016
Gross Written
Premium

Motor
Fire and Engineering

Total

Net written
Premium

%

1,545,159

36,571

1,508,588

89%

63,271

25,448

37,823

3%

2,512

1,279

1,233

0%

113,601

5,710

107,891

6%

1,724,543

69,008

1,655,535

100%

Marine
Accident and liability

Re-insurance

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

The Company is liable for all insured events that occurred during the term of the contracts, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and large element of the claims provision related to incurred but
not reported (IBNR) claims. There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly relate
to the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the risk management they adopt.
Estimation of IBNR reserve
The IBNR claims reserve has been actuarially computed by NMG Consulting (NMG). The valuation is determined using internationally accepted
actuarial techniques.
The risk associated with these insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate the quantitative sensitivity
analysis. NMG use several statistical methods to incorporate the various assumptions made in order to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The
two methods more commonly used are the Chain-Ladder and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods.
Generally, NMG has given higher credibility to the chain ladder method on a cumulative claims reported basis for each class of business. In general, the reported basis would display more stability relative to the paid basis, especially for more recent accident years. To increase consistency, the
BF method uses results from the 31 December 2011 analysis as the seed loss ratio for each accident year and a projected loss ratio for the latest
accident year. Loss development factors, NMG has used loss development factors based on weighted averages except where;
• The weighted average is contrary to a trend in the recent ratios. For some classes, the trend in loss development factors applies only to
certain development years.
• Payments in particular years are clearly out of line relative to those in other years, in which case such outliers are disregarded in selecting
the loss development factors.
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Sensitivity of Profit Before Tax and net assets due to increase in net claims ratio:
2016
Rs.’000

+1% in claim ratio

2015
Rs.’000

Net impact to profit before tax

(19,446)

(14,394)

Impact to Net assets

(14,001)

(10,363)

39.3.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group’s loans and advances to customers and other banks, and investment debt securities. For risk management
reporting purposes, the Group considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposures (such as individual obligor default risk, country
and sector risk). The Group is exposed to credit risk on securities issued by third parties. The debt security investments are broadly categorized
into investments in Government securities and investments in corporate debt securities.
The Group’s credit risk could mainly arise from;
•

Financial investments in debt securities

•

Reinsurance receivable

•

Premiums receivable

•

Loans to Life policyholders and others

•

Cash and cash equivalents, excluding cash in hand

•

Other financial receivables

The Group manages credit risk exposure within parameters that reflect the Group’s strategic objectives and risk tolerance. Sources of credit risk
are identified, assessed and monitored, and the Group has policies to manage the specific risks within the various subcategories.
Credit Risk Exposure

Group’s exposure to credit risk as at the Financial position date is given in the tables below with the comparative figures and has been derived as
per the Group risk management policy of using the carrying values in the statement of financial Positions.
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As at 31 December 2016
Debt securities
receivables

-

Loans

Note

and

Debt securities - Available for sale

Group

% of allocation

Company

% of allocation

6.1

846,306

24%

471,958

22%

6.2

1,807,965

51%

1,072,247

50%

2,654,270

74%

1,544,204

71%

18,245

1%

-

0%

Total debt securities
Life Policyholders loans

8

Reinsurance Receivable

9

93,263

3%

82,932

4%

Premiums receivable

10

440,912

12%

418,972

19%

Other financial assets

11

329,015

9%

81,295

4%

Cash and cash equivalents

12

Total credit risk exposure

As at 31 December 2015
Debt securities
receivables

-

Loans

Debt securities - Available for sale

Note

and

41,789

1%

33,026

2%

3,577,493

100%

2,160,429

100%

Group

% of allocation

6.1

428,302

21%

6.2

1,167,477
1,595,780
14,757

Total debt securities

Company

% of allocation

247,615

17%

57%

869,252

58%

77%

1,116,867

75%

1%

-

0%

Life Policyholders loans

8

Reinsurance Receivable

9

34,854

2%

24,095

2%

Premiums receivable

10

310,545

15%

293,536

20%

Other financial assets

11

129,910

6%

84,748

6%

Cash and cash equivalents

12

Total credit risk exposure

(25,092)
2,060,754

-1%
100%

(25,353)
1,493,893

-2%
100%

The Group is exposed to credit risk on securities issued by third parties. The Group limits its exposure by analyzing the creditworthiness of each
debt security investment. The credit worthiness of a potential debt security investment is assessed mainly through ratings assigned to the
issuing institution or the ratings assigned to an issue. The debt security investments are broadly categorized into investments in government
securities and investments in corporate debt securities
The tables below set out information about the credit quality of financial investments (government securities and corporate debt securities) and
the allowance for impairment loss held by the Group against the assets.
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As at 31 December 2016

Held to
maturity
financial assets

Available for
sale financial
assets

Loans and
receivables

Financial assets
at fair value
Cash and cash
though profit
equivalents
or loss

Total

%

Group
Maximum exposure to credit risk
Carrying amount
AAA

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

AA+ to AA-

-

221,799

463,495

-

-

685,293

20

A+ to A-

-

410,625

319,340

-

-

729,965

22

BBB+ to BBB-

-

1,034

291,263

-

-

292,297

9

Government guaranteed

-

609,293

733,868

-

-

1,343,160

39

Not rated

-

24,060

15,446

274,720

41,789

356,015

10

Total

-

1,266,811

1,823,411

274,720

41,789

3,406,730

100

AAA

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

AA+ to AA-

-

221,799

357,167

-

-

578,965

30

A+ to A-

-

281,862

150,715

-

-

432,577

22

BBB+ to BBB-

-

1,034

142,112

-

-

143,146

7

Government guaranteed

-

287,183

422,254

-

-

709,436

37

Not rated

-

24,060

15,446

-

33,026

72,533

4

Total

-

815,938

1,087,693

-

33,026

1,936,657

100

Allowance for impairment
As at 31 December 2016
Company
Maximum exposure to credit risk
Carrying amount

....................................................................................................................
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As at 31 December 2016

Held to
maturity
financial assets

Available for
sale financial
assets

Loans and
receivables

Financial assets
at fair value
Cash and cash
though profit
equivalents
or loss

Total

%

Past due but not impaired

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Impaired

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

The following table provides information relating to credit risk exposure of other financial assets:
Group

Reinsurance receivable
2016

Premium receivable

2015

Maximum exposure to credit risk

2016

2015

-

-

-

-

31,173

7,060

378,460

252,088

-

-

-

-

61-90 days

5,455

1,655

3,802

49,960

91-365 days

29,588

21,994

77,502

9,442

365 days +

18,466

-

1,963

-

Total

84,683

30,709

461,726

311,490

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

Impaired

-

-

(20,814)

(945)

IBNR

8,580

1,322

-

-

Total

93,263

32,031

440,912

310,545

....................................................................................................................
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Company

Reinsurance receivable
2016

Premium receivable

2015

2016

2015

Maximum exposure to credit risk
Neither past due nor impaired

26,868

Past due but not impaired

3,652

-

367,075

248,788

-

-

61-90 days

5,240

1,322

-

44,749

91-365 days

25,092

14,976

69,428

945

365 days +

17,151

-

520

-

Total

74,352

19,950

-

294,482

Impaired

-

-

(18,050)

(945)

IBNR

8,580

1,322

-

-

Total

82,932

21,272

418,972

293,537

Credit risk relating to reinsurance receivable

As part of its overall risk management strategy, The Group cedes insurance risk through proportional, non-proportional and specific risk reinsurance treaties. While these mitigate insurance risk, the recoverable from reinsurers and receivables arising from ceded reinsurance exposes the
Group to credit risk.
Reinsurance is placed in line with policy guidelines approved by the Board of Directors on an annual basis in line with the guidelines issued by the
Insurance Board of Sri Lanka and concentration of risk is managed by reference to counterparties’ limits that are set each year and are subject to
regular reviews.
There were no collateral against reinsurance receivable as at the reporting date.
Credit risk of reinsurance receivables by rating class have been illustrated below in order to ensure that the Company has significant control over
managing them.
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2016 (Rs.)
On paid claims

AA
AAA+
A
A-

On reserve

Total

%

-

-

-

-

987

1,551

2,538

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,239

35,789

48,028

64%

BBB+

23

912

935

-

160

893

1,053

1%

5,022

16,776

21,798

29%

-

-

-

-

Total

18,432

55,920

74,352

100%

IBNR
Total Reinsurance receivable

-

-

-

-

18,432

55,920

74,352

100%

B+
NITF
Unrated
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Ratings - General

2015 (Rs.)
On paid claims

On reserve

Total

%

AA

-

-

-

-

AA-

-

-

-

-

A+

-

-

-

-

A

-

-

-

-

2,059

8,818

10,878

54%

-

-

-

-

236

2,137

2,373

12%

1,198

5,475

6,673

33%

ABBB+
B+
NITF
Unrated

-

Total

3,439

16,431

19,924

IBNR

1,321

Commission receivable

2,824

Total Reinsurance receivable

3,439

16,431

Ratings - Life

100%

24,069

100%

2016 (Rs.)
On paid claims

On reserve

Total

%

AA-

4,934

5,397

10,331

100%

Total Reinsurance receivable

4,934

5,397

10,331

100%

Ratings - Life

2015 (Rs.)
On paid claims

On reserve

Total

%

AA-

8,016

2,743

10,759

100%

Total Reinsurance receivable

8,016

2,743

10,759

100%
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Credit risk relating to reinsurance receivable
Group

Up to 30 days

31-60 days

Above 60 days

Total receivables

As at December 2016 (Rs.)

23,563

7,002

54,546

85,111

As at December 2015 (Rs.)

4,289

1,396

27,308

33,533

Company

Up to 30 days

31-60 days

Above 60 days

Total receivables

As at December 2016 (Rs.)

20,155

6,713

47,484

74,352

As at December 2015 (Rs.)

1,421

1,107

20,246

22,775

Credit risk relating to loans

The following table illustrates how the loans have been segregated amongst different categories.
Group
Rs.

Loan categories

Company
Rs.

Staff loans

25,529

20,802

Loans to policy holders

18,245

-

2,222

-

45,996

20,802

Loans to Field Staff
Total

The Group grants loan facilities to staff including field staff after a robust process of evaluating the credit worthiness of the individual, value of
the facility and the related collateral. The staff loan portfolio is largely made-up of vehicle loans and Group has undertaken the absolute ownership of those vehicles as collateral.
Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 84.85 Mn at 31 December 2016 (2015 - 44.82 Mn). The cash and cash equivalents are held with
banks and financial institutional counterparties, which are rated BBB+ or better except for cash in hand of Rs. 1.99 Mn (2015 – 12.03 Mn)
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Collateral of debt securities

Reverse repo investments which fall under government securities is backed up by treasury bills and bonds which are provided as collateral. Management monitors the market value of the collateral, requests additional collateral when needed and performs an impairment valuation when
applicable. As at the financial position date, Group holds treasury bonds and bills worth Rs. 312.60million as collateral for reverse repo investments amounting to Rs. 287.20 million.
Concentration of Credit risk - financial investments in Debt securities

The Group actively manages its investment mix to ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and instruments. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk from financial investments is shown below:
As at 31 December

2016
Group

Government securities and related institutions

Company
58

Corporate debt securities.
Total

2015
Group
46

Company
56

51

42

54

44

49

100%

100%

100%

100%

39.3.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not have sufficient liquid financial resources to meet its obligations when they fall due, or would have
to incur excessive costs to do so. In respect of catastrophic / unexpected large claim events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing
differences between gross cash outflows and expected reinsurance recoveries.
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the exposure to liquidity risk:
The Investment Committee manages this risk by diversifying investment durations and reviewing cash flow projections regularly.
Guidelines are set for asset allocations, portfolio limit structures and maturity profiles of assets, in order to ensure availability of sufficient funding to meet insurance and investment contract obligations.
Maturity analysis

The table I summarises the maturity profiles of non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations, including interest payable and receivable.
For insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance receivables, maturity profiles are determined based on estimated timing of net cash outflows
from the recognised insurance liabilities.
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Table I : Maturity Profile

31-Dec-16

Carrying Amount

Current

Non-current

Total

Group
Insurance contract liabilities - life

1,231,307

-

1,231,307

1,231,307

Reinsurance payable

122,787

122,787

-

122,787

Other financial liabilities

368,011

365,032

2,979

368,011

41,072

41,072

-

41,072

1,763,176

528,890

1,234,286

1,763,176

Bank overdraft
Total undiscounted liabilities

31-Dec-16

Carrying Amount

Current

Non-current

Total

Company
Insurance contract liabilities - life

-

-

-

-

Reinsurance payable

100,184

100,184

-

100,184

Other financial liabilities

296,832

296,832

-

296,832

41,072

41,072

-

41,072

438,087

438,087

-

438,087

Bank overdraft
Total undiscounted liabilities
Financial assets pledged as collateral

There were no financial assets pledged as collateral during the year ended 31 December 2016.
39.3.4 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risks:
Equity price risk
Foreign exchange risk and
Interest rate risk
The table below sets out the allocation of assets and liabilities subject to market risk.
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39.3.4.1 Equity Price Risk

Listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties of future values of the investment securities. The Group
manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total equity portfolio investments. The Group’s equity
risk management policies are;
Equity investment decisions are based on fundamentals rather than on speculation.
Decisions are based on in depth macroeconomic and industry analysis as well as research reports on Group performance.
The risk exposure to listed equity securities as at 31st December 2016 with the comparatives are as follows;
Table J : Listed Equity Investment
2016
Rs.

Segment
General
Life
Total

2015
Rs.

10,506

13,438

873

936

11,379

14,374

The table K shows the sector diversity of quoted equity investments of the Company.
Table K :
Portfolio diversification of equity investments - Group

Sector

2016
Rs.

%

Construction and engineering
Manufacturing
Banks Finance and Insurance

2015
Rs.

%

-

-

462

2

375

2

165

1

15,446

95

18,267

96

Investment trusts

112

1

135

1

Hotel and Travels

218

1

-

-

Services
Total

168

1

-

-

16,319

100

19,029

100
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Portfolio diversification of equity investments - Company

Sector

2016

2015

Rs.

%

Rs.

%

Banks Finance and Insurance

15,446

100

18,091

100

Total

15,446

100

18,091

100

The table below shows the estimated impact from a 10 percent decline in the stock markets, on the portfolio as at 31 December 2016.
Change in variables (Rs.’000)
10% decline in stock markets

Impact to profit before tax
Group
2016

Company
2015

2016

2015

Investments

10,328

11999

9,455

12,094

Net impact on Net Assets

(1,137)

(1,438)

(1,050)

(1,344)

39.3.4.2 Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in exchange rates. The Group’s principal operation is based in Sri Lanka, therefore
it is not exposed to the financial impact arising from changes in the exchange rates of various currencies.
Foreign currency exposures other than in respect of foreign operations
2016
Rs.’000

Foreign currency deposits
Amount in Foreign Currency
Group

Company

17979.21 USD

....................................................................................................................
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17979.21 USD
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2016
Rs.’000

Foreign currency deposits
Amount in Foreign Currency
Group

LKR Amount

Company

17617.67 USD

17617.67 USD

Group

Company

17,617.00

17,617.00

Sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the estimated impact to the profitability when the foreign currency rates movement against the domestic currency.
Change in variables (Rs.’000)

Impact to profit before tax

(+) / (-) 10% change in the exchange rate

Group
2016

Company
2015

268

2016
253

2015
268

253

39.3.4.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation of the value or cash flows of an instrument due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group has adopted the following policies to manage interest rate risk
The Investment Committee members keep a regular track of macroeconomic scenarios and their likely impact on interest rates
Initial recognition of investments is closely monitored
Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow fluctuations, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Group to change in fair
values.
As at 31 December 2016 there were no cash flow interest rate exposures, as the Group did not have any floating rate investments. However, The
Group is exposed to fair value fluctuations on fixed rate investments which are measured at fair value.
The following is a summary of the Group/Company’s interest rate gap position on non-trading portfolios.
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Carrying
amounts

Group -2016

Less than 3
months

3-6 months

6- 12 months

More than 5
years

1 – 5 years

Held to maturity
Loans and receivables

1,266,810

1,099,815

Available for sale

1,823,411

24,896

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Overdraft

Held to maturity
Loans and receivables
Available for sale
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Overdraft

101,148

65,596

36,330

1,129,461

632,723

84,854

84,854

(41,072)

(41,072)

Carrying
amounts

Company - 2016

251

Less than 3
months

3-6 months

-

More than 5
years
-

22,002

652,826

412,864

6- 12 months

-

-

-

-

815,938

714,539

251

101,148

1,087,693

-

-

1 – 5 years

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

75,831

75,831

-

-

-

-

(41,072)

(41,072)

-

-

-

-

Sensitivity analysis
The table below shows the estimated impact on profitability and equity due to fluctuation of interest rates on the fixed rate available for sale
financial assets.
Sensitivity of Profit before Tax and equity to changes in interest rates.

Group - 2016

Impact on profit
before tax

Impact on equity change in variables
Up to one year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

(+) 100 basis points

-

(351)

(7,418)

(29,372)

(36,790)

(-) 100 basis points

-

364

7,665

31,761

39,426
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Company - 2016

Impact on profit
before tax

Impact on equity change in variables
Up to one year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

(+) 100 basis points

-

(92.02)

(3,112)

(18,221)

(21,425)

(-) 100 basis points

-

93.42

3,203

19,686

22,982

Company - 2016

Impact on profit
before tax

Impact on equity change in variables
Up to one year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

(+) 100 basis points

-

(9,813)

(35,354)

(45,167)

(-) 100 basis points

-

10,214

38,556

48,771

Company - 2016

Impact on profit
before tax

Impact on equity change in variables
Up to one year

1-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

(+) 100 basis points

-

-

(2,248)

(21,545)

(23,793)

(-) 100 basis points

-

-

2,335

23,494

25,829
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186

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Instruments

Classification as at 31 December 2016

Group

Fixed Interest Rate

Government Securities
Corporate debt

Variable Interest Rate

Non-Interest bearing

733,867

-

-

1,098,157

-

-

Repo

609,291

-

-

Fixed deposit

420,504

-

-

Commercial Paper

212,953

-

-

Equity Instruments

-

-

16,319

Unit trust

-

-

273,847

3,074,773

-

290,166

Total

Instruments

Classification as at 31 December 2015

Group

Fixed Interest Rate

Variable Interest Rate

Non-Interest bearing

Government Securities

422,253

-

-

Corporate debt

674,053

-

-

Commercial Paper

160,715

-

-

Repo

287,182

-

-

Fixed deposit

343,980

-

-

3,198

-

-

-

-

15,446

1,891,383

-

15,446

Saving Deposit
Equity Instruments
Total

....................................................................................................................
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Instruments

Classification as at 31 December 2015

Group

Fixed Interest Rate

Variable Interest Rate

Non-Interest bearing

Government Securities

805,332

-

-

Corporate debt

847,750

-

-

Repo

288,496

-

-

Fixed deposit

329,288

-

-

3,019

-

-

Equity Instruments

-

-

19,964

Unit Trust

-

-

470,727

2,273,885

-

490,691

Saving Deposit

Total

Instruments

Classification as at 31 December 2015

Company

Fixed Interest Rate

Variable Interest Rate

Non-Interest bearing

Government Securities

467,054

-

-

Corporate debt

542,003

-

-

Repo

107,899

-

-

Fixed deposit

202,664

-

-

3,019

-

-

-

-

18,091

1,322,639

-

18,091

Saving Deposit
Equity Instruments
Total
39.3.5 Operating Risk

This is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior.
Operational failures could result in dire consequences such as producing misleading financial information, loss of return, financial penalties from
regulators or damage to the reputation of the Group. Operational risks arise from all operations of the Group.
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While it is acknowledged that the Group cannot eliminate all operational risks, it is in a position to manage such risks by initiating a rigorous
control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks.
Group’s Risk Management team assesses all foreseeable risk involved in its operation and they develop and implement action plan to control those
identified operational risk. These action plans recommended by the team is to manage the operational risk in the following areas:

·

requirements for having appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transactions;

·

requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions

·

compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements

·

documentation of controls and procedures

·

requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks
identified

·

training and professional development

·

risk mitigation, including insurance where this is cost effective.
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Segmental Review

Segmental Review Statement of Financial Position 2016
As at 31 December 2016

Company
( Non Life)
Rs.

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment

782,372,876

246,757,120

-

1,029,129,996

3,073,679

180,331

-

3,254,010

1,903,630,823

1,461,310,684

-

3,364,941,506

400,000,040

-

(400,000,040)

-

-

18,244,588

-

18,244,588

Deferred tax asset

39,207,757

-

-

39,207,757

Reinsurance receivable

82,931,657

10,330,843

-

93,262,500

418,971,726

21,940,209

-

440,911,937

Related party receivables

11,998,559

483,819

(11,998,559)

483,819

Other assets

69,296,032

55,902,256

-

125,198,288

Cash and cash equivalents

75,831,464

9,023,308

-

84,854,773

3,787,314,615

1,824,173,156

(411,998,599)

5,199,489,173

1,115,367,950

500,000,040

(500,000,040)

1,115,367,950

Revaluation reserve

268,847,038

44,705,482

(8,120,728)

305,431,792

Available for sale reserves

(87,476,248)

(57,959,353)

9,798,949

(135,636,651)

Retained earnings

398,604,509

(1,244,482)

1,221,444

398,581,471

-

-

97,100,338

97,100,338

1,695,343,249

485,501,687

Intangible assets
Financial investments
Investment in subsidiary
Loans to policyholders

Premium receivable

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Stated capital

Non controlling interest
Total equity

....................................................................................................................
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As at 31 December 2016

Company
( Non Life)
Rs.

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings

17,625,419

4,520,123

-

22,145,542

1,653,884,388

1,231,306,675

-

2,885,191,064

-

-

-

-

32,130,390

13,583,219

-

45,713,609

100,183,583

22,602,767

-

122,786,350

-

11,998,559

(11,998,559)

-

247,075,734

54,660,125

-

301,735,860

-

-

-

-

41,071,850

-

-

41,071,849

Total liabilities

2,091,971,364

1,338,671,469

(11,998,559)

3,418,644,273

Total equity and liabilities

3,787,314,614

1,824,173,156

(411,998,597)

5,199,489,173

Insurance liabilities
Financial liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Reinsurance creditors
Related party payables
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Bank overdrafts
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income 2016
Company
( Non Life)
Rs.

As at 31 December 2016
Gross written premium

2,475,543,314

Less: Premium ceded to reinsurers

(280,627,768)

Net written premium

2,194,915,546

Net change in reserves for unearned premium
Net earned premium

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.
466,997,348

Total
Rs.

(2,468,065)

(41,015,510)

-

2,940,072,597
(321,643,278)

425,981,838

(2,468,065)

-

-

1,936,570,424

425,981,838

(2,468,065)

2,360,084,198

192,795,948

112,589,105

(18,000,000)

287,385,053

(258,345,122)

2,618,429,320

(258,345,122)

Other income
Net finance income
Realized loss

-

(29,913,959)

-

(29,913,959)

Net fair value loss

-

(3,126,300)

-

(3,126,300)

Policy administration fees

91,966,277

-

-

91,966,277

Other operating revenue

9,729,110

5,225,362

(4,512,960)

10,441,512

294,491,336

84,774,207

(22,512,960)

356,752,583

2,231,061,760

510,756,045

(24,981,025)

2,716,836,781

1,354,063,910

81,898,522

-

1,435,962,432

(11,256,356)

-

(81,841,574)

-

151,532,183

-

151,532,183

1,283,478,692

222,174,349

-

1,505,653,041

947,583,069

288,581,696

(24,981,025)

1,211,183,740

Total revenue

Net benefits and claims
Gross benefits and claims incurred
Claims ceded to reinsurers

(70,585,218)

Change in life contract liabilities
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Company
( Non Life)
Rs.

As at 31 December 2016

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Other expenses
Underwriting and policy acquisition cost

153,697,752

66,576,558

-

220,274,311

Other operating and administrative expenses

604,743,561

229,270,775

(4,981,025)

829,033,312

758,441,314

295,847,334

(4,981,025)

1,049,307,623

(20,000,000)

161,876,118

-

32,502,884

(20,000,000)

129,373,234

Profit before tax

189,141,754

(7,265,638)

28,313,877

4,189,006

160,827,877

(11,454,644)

Revaluation of land and building

21,326,299

22,319,000

-

43,645,299

De-recognition of revaluation reserve

(1,640,476)

-

-

(1,640,476)

Actuarial gains / (loses) on defined benefit plan

(4,693,864)

(10,048,300)

-

(14,742,164)

(52,419,540)

(36,308,526)

-

(88,728,066)

21,306,692

3,429,378

-

24,736,070

144,706,988

(32,063,091)

(20,000,000)

92,643,897

Income tax expenses
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss ;

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss ;

"Net change in fair value of available for sale
financial assets "
Tax on other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
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Segmental Review

Segmental Review Statement of Financial Position 2015
As at 31 December 2015

Company
Rs.

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment

792,220,399

202,925,375

-

995,145,775

4,847,582

375,583

-

5,223,164

1,337,622,691

1,422,999,290

-

2,760,621,980

500,000,040

-

(500,000,040)

-

-

14,757,093

-

14,757,093

6,915,144

-

21,272,032

10,758,683

-

32,030,715

293,536,246

17,008,520

-

310,544,766

78,289,729

43,270,235

-

121,559,964

Receivables from Cooplife

5,277,178

-

(5,277,178)

-

Cash and cash equivalents

36,865,532

7,521,935

3,076,846,572

1,719,616,715

(504,862,498)

4,291,600,791

1,004,909,610

500,000,040

(500,000,040)

1,004,909,610

Revaluation reserve

233,220,060

28,298,122

-

261,518,182

Available for sale reserve

(39,017,836)

(22,100,915)

-

(61,118,751)

Retained earnings

349,965,668

31,367,532

-

381,333,200

1,549,077,502

537,564,779

(500,000,040)

1,586,642,241

Intangible assets
Investments
Investment in subsidiary
Loans to policyholders
Deferred tax asset
Reinsurance receivable
Premium receivable
Other assets

Total assets

6,915,144

414,720

44,802,187

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Allocated capital

Total equity
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As at 31 December 2015

Company
Rs.

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings
Insurance liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Reinsurance creditors

28,027,997

5,780,573

-

33,808,570

1,277,037,794

1,074,463,240

-

2,351,501,034

22,679,048

9,216,274

-

31,895,322

8,007,050

25,213,073

-

33,220,123

-

4,862,458

(4,862,458)

-

134,855,172

62,516,317

-

197,371,489

-

-

-

-

57,162,009

-

-

57,162,009

1,527,769,071

1,182,051,935

(4,862,458)

2,704,958,548

3,076,846,572

1,719,616,715

(504,862,498)

4,291,600,791

Related party payables
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Bank overdrafts

....................................................................................................................
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Segmental Review

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income 2015
As at 31 December 2015

Company
Rs.

Gross written premium

1,724,542,837

Less: Premium ceded to reinsurers

(69,008,451)

Net written premium

1,655,534,386

Net change in reserves for unearned premium
Net earned premium

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.
494,597,627

Total
Rs.

(2,618,842)

(32,012,585)

-

2,216,521,622
(101,021,036)

462,585,041

(2,618,842)

-

-

1,441,556,142

462,585,041

(2,618,842)

1,901,522,341

123,281,494

110,862,985

-

234,144,479

(213,978,244)

2,115,500,585

(213,978,244)

Other income
Net finance income
Net fair value gains/ (losses)

(8,972,030)

-

(8,972,030)

Policy administration fees

75,110,018

-

-

75,110,018

Other operating revenue

20,758,549

15,632,850

(1,739,280)

34,652,119

219,150,061

117,523,804

(1,739,280)

334,934,585

1,660,706,203

580,108,845

(4,358,122)

2,236,456,926

869,450,045

102,047,175

-

971,497,220

(10,923,164)

-

-

206,761,950

-

206,761,950

870,577,602

297,885,961

-

1,168,463,563

790,128,601

282,222,885

(4,358,122)

1,067,993,363

Total revenue

Net benefits and claims
Gross benefits and claims incurred
Claims ceded to reinsurers

1,127,557

Change in contract liabilities - Life

....................................................................................................................
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Company
Rs.

As at 31 December 2015

Subsidiary (Life)
Rs.

Consolidation
Adjustments
Rs.

Total
Rs.

Other expenses
Underwriting and policy acquisition cost

121,603,219

68,039,104

-

189,642,323

Other operating and administrative expenses

493,080,780

186,559,272

(4,358,122)

675,281,930

614,683,999

254,598,376

(4,358,122)

864,924,253

Profit before tax

175,444,602

27,624,508

-

203,069,110

Income tax expenses

(53,148,531)

-

(53,556,732)

Profit for the year

122,296,071

27,216,307

-

149,512,378

92,570,052

31,516,864

-

124,086,916

(55,619,133)

(57,071,772)

-

(112,690,905)

321,883

3,819,645

-

4,141,528

56,872,307

131,203

-

57,003,510

216,441,180

5,612,247

-

222,053,429

(408,201)

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of land and building
"Net change in fair value of available for sale
financial assets”
Actuarial gains/(loses) on defined benefit plan
Tax on other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

....................................................................................................................
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Statement of Value Added
2016
Rs.

Net Earned Premium
Investment Income and Other Income
Net Claims and Benefits

2015
Rs.

%

2,360,084,198

-

356,752,583
2,716,836,781

%

1,901,522,342

-

-

340,113,468

-

-

2,241,635,810

-

(1,354,120,858)

-

(961,701,613)

-

(337,710,345)

-

(326,125,875)

-

1,025,005,578

-

953,808,322

-

To Employees as Salaries and other benefits

327,827,833

32

273,086,862

28

To Intermediaries as Commission

288,109,094

28

219,062,250

23

Cost of External Services
Value Added

To the Government as Taxes
To Life Policyholders as increase in Life Fund

40,059,427

4

44,881,383

5

151,532,183

15

206,761,950

22

Retained within the Business
- as Depreciation
- as Profits

88,103,806

8

58,753,504

6

129,373,235

13

151,262,373

16

1,025,005,578

100

953,808,322

100

13%

16%
32%

28%

8%

6%

2016

2015

15%

22%
23%

4%
28%

5%

To Employees as Salaries and other benefits

To Intermediaries as Commission

To the Government as Taxes

To Life Policyholders as increase in Life Fund

Retained as Depreciation

Retained as Profits

....................................................................................................................
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Ten Year Summery - Statement of Income
NON-LIFE INSURANCE
In Rs

2016

2015

2014

2013 Restated

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

Gross Written Premium

2,475,543,314

1,724,542,837

1,386,207,634

1,304,357,157

1,156,912,067

938,114,747

616,921,216

609,118,660

522,448,711

289,691,043

Net Earned Premium

1,936,570,424

1,441,556,142

1,258,325,523

1,157,134,366

1,001,383,259

728,592,642

499,696,066

547,081,527

386,494,925

212,508,141

(870,577,602)

(927,929,186)

(753,425,724)

(640,657,920)

(359,400,965)

(274,961,291)

(337,244,145)

(225,638,663)

(99,443,603)

(121,603,219)

(107,574,794)

(96,359,265)

(26,400,880)

(19,532,963)

(9,397,409)

(5,303,530)

Insurance Claims and benefits (Net)
Underwriting and policy acquisition
costs
Income from Investments and Other
Income

(1,283,478,692)
(153,697,752)

2,718,778

5,422,508

294,491,336

219,150,061

218,285,742

219,162,764

116,561,008

76,259,129

89,134,117

88,024,374

64,756,700

24,150,161

(604,743,561)

(493,080,780)

(373,169,602)

(311,863,266)

(292,464,702)

(259,767,929)

(223,099,947)

(205,943,215)

(167,968,679)

(102,290,104)

189,141,754

175,444,602

67,937,682

214,648,875

158,420,765

188,401,654

61,191,453

65,385,578

48,246,874

29,621,065

2016

2015

2014

2013 Restated

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

Gross Written Premium

466,997,348

494,597,627

402,046,246

337,622,877

312,055,984

269,578,716

233,539,664

149,401,253

131,003,722

100,392,815

Net Earned Premium

425,981,838

462,585,041

371,098,731

308,055,849

284,238,046

238,215,200

220,158,212

138,994,839

119,676,508

97,479,206

Insurance Claims and benefits (Net)

(70,642,166)

(91,124,011)

(63,432,117)

(64,465,564)

(32,166,230)

(17,207,850)

(19,168,033)

(11,911,779)

(5,739,033)

(7,011,589)

66,576,558

(68,039,104)

(59,091,627)

(61,310,973)

(49,191,064)

(50,151,466)

(49,060,185)

(29,116,079)

(22,089,689)

(14,181,546)

84,774,207

117,523,804

117,595,252

123,819,329

86,100,062

70,332,513

72,396,486

57,725,350

41,958,703

22,593,112

(229,270,775)

186,559,272

(227,482,891)

(180,519,714)

(153,474,078)

(134,159,449)

(108,868,190)

(91,249,504)

(80,066,742)

(59,636,784)

-

-

-

-

-

-

35,000,000

7,000,000

-

-

151,532,183

206,761,950

121,882,712

113,593,744

120,976,096

83,275,882

134,372,485

63,720,949

48,812,286

37,667,973

27,624,508

16,804,638

11,985,184

14,530,641

23,753,066

16,085,805

7,721,878

4,927,461

1,574,426

Expenses
Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation

LIFE INSURANCE
In Rs

Underwriting and policy acquisition
cost (Including reinsurers)
Income from Investments and Other
Income
Other operating, investment related
and administration expenses
Expenses
Change in Contract Liabilities - Life Fund
Profit Before Taxation

(7,265,638)

COMPANY
In Rs

2016

2015

2014

2013 Restated

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

Gross Written Premium

2,940,072,597

2,216,521,622

1,788,253,880

1,641,980,034

1,468,968,051

1,207,693,463

850,460,880

758,519,913

653,452,433

390,083,858

Net Earned Premium

2,360,084,198

1,901,522,341

1,629,424,254

1,465,190,215

1,285,621,305

966,807,842

719,854,278

686,076,366

506,171,433

309,987,347

(961,701,613)

(991,361,303)

(817,891,288)

(672,824,150)

(376,608,815)

(294,129,324)

(349,155,924)

(231,377,696)

(106,455,192)

220,274,311

(189,642,323)

(166,666,421)

(157,670,238)

(75,591,944)

(47,432,688)

(43,637,677)

(48,649,042)

(31,487,098)

(19,485,076)

356,752,583

334,934,585

335,880,995

342,982,094

202,661,071

146,591,642

161,530,603

145,749,724

106,715,403

46,743,273

(829,033,312)

(675,281,930)

(600,652,493)

(492,382,980)

(445,938,780)

(393,927,378)

(331,968,137)

(297,192,719)

(248,035,421)

(161,926,888)

-

-

-

-

35,000,000

7,000,000

-

-

Insurance Claims and benefits (Net)
Underwriting and policy acquisition cost
(Including reinsurers)
Income from Investments and Other
Income
Expenses

(1,354,120,858)

Transfer from/ (to) General business
Change in Contract Liabilities - Life Fund

151,532,183

206,761,950

121,882,712

113,593,744

120,976,096

83,275,882

134,372,485

63,720,949

48,812,286

37,667,973

Profit Before Taxation

161,876,118

203,069,110

84,742,320

226,634,059

172,951,407

212,154,720

77,277,258

73,107,456

53,174,335

31,195,491
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Ten Year Summery - Statement of Financial Position
BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER
COMPANY
2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2010
Rs.

2009
Rs.

2008
Rs.

2007
Rs.

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Assets
Financial Investments
Investment in subsidiary
Deffered tax assets
Loans to life policyholders
Reinsurance receivables
Premium receivables

782,372,876

792,220,399

660,185,284

444,322,711

102,320,167

99,663,534

110,157,018

102,449,764

91,898,107

3,073,679

4,847,582

5,683,179

5,597,265

749,871

2,242,838

4,485,675

-

-

48,099,752
-

1,903,630,823

1,337,622,691

2,317,275,108

2,221,102,783

1,942,323,482

1,668,086,694

1,302,226,741

861,530,604

617,011,342

423,797,558

400,000,040

500,000,040

100,000,040

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,207,757

6,915,144

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,213,065

7,965,408

4,636,426

3,604,755

2,474,267

2,344,500

1,301,012

644,778

82,931,657

21,272,032

43,879,481

30,974,432

26,095,467

30,296,637

12,242,451

12,277,801

6,246,605

7,406,864
36,796,466

418,971,726

293,536,246

231,625,872

204,373,070

166,597,080

96,931,839

59,074,218

48,229,864

58,432,743

Receivables from Cooplife

11,998,559

5,277,178

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other assets

69,296,033

78,289,728

133,054,792

54,545,009

53,203,089

40,039,878

38,784,922

72,156,842

48,011,134

49,267,732

Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

75,831,464

36,865,532

327,560,284

18,275,185

24,019,881

26,583,671

10,674,531

18,008,192

17,229,366

8,513,993

3,787,314,614

3,076,846,572

3,830,477,105

2,987,155,863

2,319,945,464

1,967,449,846

1,540,119,823

1,116,997,567

840,130,309

574,527,143

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
1,115,367,950

1,004,909,610

1,004,909,610

632,019,940

554,889,880

540,734,090

501,238,350

354,647,130

249,471,750

165,362,220

Revaluation reserve

Stated capital

268,847,038

233,220,060

113,274,337

3,355,004

3,036,000

3,036,000

3,036,000

3,036,000

3,036,000

3,036,000

Available for sale reserves

(87,476,248)

(39,017,836)

19,510,661

-

4,311,033

695,844

1,625,872

Revenue reserves - Retained earnings

398,604,509

349,965,668

326,438,579

341,105,307

191,642,148

136,682,752

25,398,287

47,937,461

35,175,201

28,849,617

1,695,343,249

1,549,077,502

1,464,133,188

976,480,251

753,879,061

681,148,686

531,298,509

405,620,591

287,682,951

197,247,837

17,625,419

28,027,997

132,304,326

164,340,086

-

-

-

14,111,144

18,818,953

4,560,595

-

-

869,227,132

743,890,039

627,907,097

501,703,839

419,589,559

284,057,297

217,559,947

167,491,697

1,653,884,388

1,277,037,794

1,105,611,903

828,315,269

666,019,270

509,185,388

367,816,817

311,179,587

250,420,638

157,850,022

32,130,390

22,679,048

31,403,673

23,825,396

20,654,064

15,825,224

13,468,926

9,223,477

6,258,666

4,827,917

Reinsurance Creditors

100,183,584

8,007,050

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other liabilities

247,075,734

134,855,172

220,225,276

218,018,416

227,179,858

233,295,850

193,733,810

80,732,073

59,389,154

42,549,075

TOTAL EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Interest bearing borrowings
Insurance provision - Life
Insurance provision - Non Life
Retirement benefit obligations

41,071,850

57,162,009

7,571,607

32,286,406

24,306,114

26,290,858

14,212,203

12,073,398

-

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Bank Over draft

2,091,971,365

1,527,769,070

2,366,343,918

2,010,675,612

1,566,066,403

1,286,301,159

1,008,821,315

711,376,976

552,447,358

377,279,306

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

3,787,314,614

3,076,846,572

3,830,477,105

2,987,155,863

2,319,945,464

1,967,449,846

1,540,119,823

1,116,997,567

840,130,309

574,527,143
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Glossary of Insurance Terms
Actuary

Broker

An expert concerned with the application of probability and statistical
theory to problems of insurance, investment, financial management
and demography.

A sales and service representative who handles insurance for clients,
generally selling insurance of various kinds and for several companies.

Claims
The amount payable under a contract of insurance arising from
the occurrence of an insured event such as destruction or damage
of property and related death or injuries, the insuring of hospital or
medical bills, death or disability of the insured and gratuity claims.

Actuarial Valuation
A determination by an actuary at a specific date of the value of a
life insurance company’s assets and its liabilities. The purpose of a
valuation is to determine if the Company holds adequate assets to
fund the Company’s liabilities.

Claims Incurred
The aggregate of all claims paid during the accounting period together
with attributable claims handling expenses, where appropriate
adjusted by the gross claims reserve at the beginning and end of the
accounting period.

Admissible Assets
Value of assets that are included in determining an insurer’s statutory
solvency margin specified under the rules made by the Insurance
Board of Sri Lanka under Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No. 43
of 2000.

Claim Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
A reserve to cover the expect cost of losses that have occurred by the
Balance Sheet date but have not yet been reported to the insurer.

Annuity
A contract that provides an income for a specific period.

Claims Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER)
A reserve made in respect of to cover expected cost of losses that
have occurred but no comprehensive information is available to make
adequate provision as at the Balance Sheet date.

Approved Assets
Assets that represent the technical reserve and the long-term
insurance fund as per the determination made under Regulation of
Insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000.

Claims Outstanding - Life Insurance
The amounts provided to cover estimated ultimate cost of settling
claims arising out of events which have been notified by the Balance
Sheet date, being sums due to beneficiaries together with claims
handing expenses, less amounts already paid in respect of those claims.

Beneficiary
A person or financial institution named by the policyholder as the
recipient of the sum insured and other benefits due in the event of the
policyholder’s death.

Claims Outstanding - Non-Life Insurance
The amount provided to cover the estimated ultimate cost of settling
claims arising out of events which have occurred by the Balance Sheet
date, including IBNR and IBNER claims and claims handling expenses.

Bonus
Bonus is a method of distribution of surplus amongst the participating
policyholders of a life insurance company. A bonus is an enhancement
to the basic sum assured under a contract, and is declared as a
percentage of the sum assured.

....................................................................................................................
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Glossary of Insurance Terms Contd.
Commission

Facultative Reinsurance

Remuneration to an intermediary for services such as selling and
servicing an insurer’s products. This is one component of acquisition
expenses.

Oldest form of reinsurance. This is the reinsurance of an individual risk
on terms and conditions agreed with the reinsurer specially for that
risk. Particulars of each risk are submitted by the ceding company to
the reinsurer who may accept or decline at will. This is useful when
dealing with risks outside the ceding company’s treaty arrangements.

Deferred Acquisition Expense Reserve
Expenses which vary with and primarily related to the acquisition of
new insurance contracts and renewal of existing contracts, which are
deferred as they related to a period of risk subsequent to the Balance
Sheet date.

Gross Claims Reserve - Non-Life
The amount provided, including claims incurred but not reported and
claims handling expenses, to cover the estimated cost, arising out of
events occurred by the end of the accounting period, less amounts
already paid in respect of those claims.

Deposit Premium
A premium paid on the inception of a contract of insurance or
reinsurance, which is subject to adjustment at a latter date. A deposit
premium may represent the minimum amount payable.

Gross Written Premium - Life
Premium to which the insurer is contractually entitled and received in
the accounting period.

Earned Premium

Gross Written Premium - Non-Life

Written premium adjusted by the unearned premium reserve at the
beginning and end of the accounting period.

Premium which an insurer is contractually entitled to receive from the
insured in relation to contracts of insurance.

Endowment

Insurance

Life Insurance payable to the policyholder if living on the maturity date
in the policy or to a beneficiary if the insured dies before that date.

Insurance is a contract whereby one party the insurer, in return for
a consideration, i.e., the premium, undertakes to pay to the other
party the insured, a sum of money or its equivalent in kind, upon the
happening of a specified event that is contrary to the interest of the
insured.

Events Occurring after the Balance
Sheet Date
Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occurs between
the Balance Sheet date and the date when the Financial Statements
are authorized for issue.

Insurance Provision - Non-Life
This comprises of the gross claims reserve, unearned premium reserve
net of reinsurance and the deferred acquisition expenses.

Ex-gratia Payments
A payment by an insurer to an insured for which there is no liability
under the contract. In some cases an insurer may feel there has been
a mistake or a misunderstanding and he may pay a claim, even though
he does not appear to be liable.

....................................................................................................................

Insurance Provision - Long-Term
The fund or funds to be maintained by an insurer in respect of its longterm insurance business in accordance with Act No. 43 of 2000.
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Interim Payments

Net Claims Ratio - Non-Life

Periodic payments to the policyholders on a specific type of policy.

A formula used by insurers to relate net claims incurred to net earned
premium (i.e., after deducting relevant reinsurances).

Life Surplus
The excess of the assets cover the liabilities as determined by the
actuary (taking into account the solvency requirements) and after
distribution of Bonus to policyholders.

Formula:

Long-Term Insurance

Net Written Premium

Commonly referred to as life insurance contracts, as opposed to
annual non-life Insurance policies.

Gross written premium less reinsurance premium payable.

Maturity

Claims incurred less reinsurance recoveries.

The time at which payment of the sum insured under a life insurance
policy falls due at the end of its term.

Policy Loans

Net claims incurred X 100
Net earned premium

Net Claims Incurred

A loan given to the policyholder on the security of the surrender value
of a Life Insurance policy. The loan is limited to a percentage of the
current surrender value of the policy and interest is charged on such
loan.

Net Assets
Total assets less total liabilities. Also equal to the shareholders’ equity.

Net Combined Ratio - Non-Life

Premium

This ratio indicates the profitability of the insurer’s operations by
combining the net loss ratio with net expense ratio. The combined
ratio does not take account of investment income.

The consideration payable by the insured for an insurance contract.

Profit Commission

Net Earned Premium

Commission received from the reinsurer based on the net profit of the
reinsurer as defined in the accounting period.

Gross written premium adjusted for the reinsurance incurred and for
the increase or decrease in unearned premium.

Reinsurance

Net Expense Ratio - Non-Life

Transfer of all or part of the risk assumed by an insurer under one or
more insurance to another insurer, called the reinsurer.

A formula used by insurance companies to relate income to acquisition
and administrative expenses (e.g. commissions, taxes, staff, operating
expenses).

Reinsurance Commission
Commission received or receivable in respect of premium paid or
payable to a reinsurer.

Formula:
Net Expenses
X 100
Net earned premium

....................................................................................................................
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Glossary of Insurance Terms Contd.
Reinsurance Premium

Unearned Premium

The premium payable to the reinsurer.

Revenue Account

It represents the portion of premium already entered in the account
as due but which relates to a period of risk subsequent to the Balance
Sheet date.

An account which shows a financial summary of the insurance related
revenue transactions for the accounting period.

Unearned Premium Reserve

Segment

A fund kept by the general insurer to provide for claims that may arise
in the future under insurance that are still in course.

Constituent business units grouped in terms of nature and similarity
of operation.

Surrender
Termination of an insurance policy by the insured before the expiry of
its term (more common in life insurance).

Surrender Value
The sum payable by an insurance company upon the surrender of a life
insurance policy before it has run its full course.

Technical Reserve
This comprises of the claims reserve net of reinsurance, unearned
premium reserve net of reinsurance and the deferred acquisition costs.

Title Insurance
Insurance which indemnifies the owner of real estate in the event that
his clear ownership of property is challenged by the discovery of fault
in the title that was passed to him.

Underwriting Result
This is the profit generated purely from the non-life insurance business
without taking into account the investment income and expenses.

....................................................................................................................
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Branch Network
Co-operative Insurance Company

Co-operative Insurance Company
Cooplife Insurance Limited

Akuressa
D.C.Wanigasekara Mawatha, New Bangam
Rd, Akuressa
041-2284973
041-2284974
Ambalangoda
26B ½, Galle Rd, Ambalangoda
091-2256500
091-2255581

Mannar

Ambalantota
59, Main Street, Ambalantota
047-2225045
047-2225511
Ampara
16, D S Senanayake Mw, Ampara
063-2223122
063-2223586
Anuradhapura
08, Maithreepala Senanayake Mw,
Anuradhapura
025-2226777-8
025-2225457
025-2227533
Avissawella
No.35, Gem Land, Kudagama Road,
Avissawella
036-2233881
036-2233704
Badulla
81, 2nd Floor, Bank Road, Badulla
055-2222620
055-2225512

....................................................................................................................
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Branch Network Contd.
Balangoda
133A 1/1, Brans Rathwaththa Mw,
Balangoda
045-2287494
045-2288438

Dambulla
No.719 (717), Anuradhapura Road,
Dambulla
066-2285624
066-2285625

Batticaloa
Dist. Co-op Council Bldg, Pioneer Rd,
Batticaloa
065-2227984
065-2228844

Deniyaya
No.98/02, Near the Bridge, Main Street,
Deniyaya
041-2273353
041-2273519

Bandarawela
Shopping Complex, Thanthiriya,
Bandarawela
057-2221657
057-2221701

Embilipitiya
66 1/1, Pallegama Rd, Embilipitiya
047-2230177
047-2261394

Battaramulla
No.153, Pannipitiya Road, Battaramulla
011-2872791
011-2872792
Chilaw
66, Kurunegala Rd, Chilaw
032-2224745
032-2220360
City Office
No.327, Ceyesta Bld, Galle Rd, Colombo 03
011-3010851
011-3010751
Corporate Branch
No.70, Grandpass Road, Colombo 14
011-2337427
011-2337449

Galle
36, Sri Dewamiththa Mw, China Garden,
Galle
091-2227688
091-2227687
Gampaha
No.114/1/1, Bauddaloka Mawatha,
Gampaha
033-2248600/2
033-2231618
033-2231122
Homagama
77, High Level Rd, Homagama
011-2895270-1
011-2748307
011-2098740
011-2855392
Horana
No.257, Rathnapura Road, Horana
034-2260310
034-2260444

....................................................................................................................
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Jaffna
No.570, Hospital Road, Jaffna
021-2224561
021-2217495
Kaduwela
No.51, Avissawella Road, Kaduwela
011-2548544
011-2548666
Kaluthara
358/A, Kaluthara North, Kaluthara
034-2238131-2
034-2223450
Kandy
100/2/1, Vindana Learner’s Bldg, Yatinuwara
Veediya
081-2205661/3
081-2202055
Kegalle
245, Kandy Rd, Kegalle
035-2221461
035-2231911
Kekirawa
12, Dambulla Rd, Kekirawa
025-2265333
025-2265332
Kiribathgoda
67 D/3, Kandy Rd, Kiribathgoda
011-2907858
011-2907859
Kilinochchi
C/O Pillaiyar Arul Vanachcholai, A9 Road,
Kilinochchi
021-2285790
021-2285791

...................................................................................................................
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Kurunegala
13 1/1, Rajapihilla Road, Kurunegala
037-2233601-2
037-2221749

Metro
60/1/1, Maligawaththa New Rd, Colombo
10
011-2675466
011-2675467

Maharagama
218A 1/1, High Level Rd, Maharagama
011-2845144
011-2089007
011-2843422
Malabe
878/B, Athurugiriya Rd, Malabe
011-2156045
011-2742501
011-2742058

Monaragala
210, Wellawaya Rd, Monaragala
055-2277534
055-2276113
Moratuwa
177 2/1, New Galle Rd, Moratuwa
011-2644891
011-2644893

Mathugama
No.203, Agalawaththa Rd, Mathugama
034-2240972
034-2240973
Mannar
No.45, Hospital Road, Mannar
023-2251336
023-2251682
Matale
No. 577, Trincomalee Street, Matale
066-2224498
066-2232222
Matara
45A/2, Anagarika Dharmapala Mw, Matara
041-2234701-2
041-2230649

Negombo
102, St. Nicholas Marcus Rd, Negombo
031-2222426
031-2228270

Pelmadulla
No.118, Main Street, Pelmadulla
045-2276216
045-2274732
Piliyandala
No.109, Moratuwa Road, Piliyandala
011-2615702
011-2615701
Polonnaruwa
No.292/1, Batticaloa Road, Polonnaruwa
027-2226880
027-2227310
Puttalam
No.114/2, Kurunegala Road, Puttalam
032-2267211
032-2267336

Nikaweratiya
No.81, Maho Road, Nikaweratiya
037-2260946
037-2260995

Rathnapura
Coop House, Bandaranayake Mw,
Rathnapura
045-2222983-4
045-2225335

Nittambuwa
No.48/4, Kandy Road, Nittambuwa
033-2246294
033-2287748

Trincomalee
No.316, Inner Harbor Road, Trincomalee
026-2226751
026-2221126

Nugegoda
No.36, Nawala Road, Nugegoda
011-2890851
011-2890850

Thalawathugoda
No.1136, Pannipitiya Road, Thalawathugoda
011-2774261
011-2774262

Nuwara Eliya
No.72, Park Rd, Nuwara Eliya
052-2235570
052-2235811

Thissamaharama
Medaweediya, New Town, Thissa
047-3221115-6

....................................................................................................................
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Branch Network Contd.
Vauniya
2nd Floor, Sathya Bld, 1st Cross Street,
Vavuniya
024-2225536-7
024-2224122
Wariyapola
92/A, Puttalam Road, Wariyapola
037-2268206
037-2268205
Wellawaya
No.167, Tissa Road, Wellawaya
055-2274214

Gampaha
114/1/1, Bauddaloka Mawatha, Gampaha
033-2248602
071-6840781

Ambalantota
59, Main Street, Ambalantota
047-2225346
047-2225511 (G)

North Central
08, Maithreepala Senanayake Mw,
Anuradhapura
025-2227429
071-4562992

Ampara
16, D S Senanayake Mw, Ampara
063-2222887

North
2nd Floor, Sathya Bld, 1st Cross Street,
Vavuniya
024-2228035
071-4554350

Wennappuwa
Wenco Super Market, Chilaw Rd,
Wennappuwa
031-2253541
031-2245000
031-2253363

Southern
45A/2, Anagarika Dharmapala Mw, Matara
041-2234703
071-6840785

Regional Office For General Insurance

Colombo (South)
77, High Level Rd, Homagama
011-2895271
071-6840782

Avissawella
No.35, Gem Land, Kudagama Road,
Avissawella
036-2234862
036-2233704 (G)
Badulla
81, 2nd Floor, Bank Road, Badulla
055-2231692
055-2231693

Regional Offices
Colombo (North)
60/1/1, Maligawaththa New Rd, Colombo
10
011-2675469
071-6840790

Anuradhapura
No.521/116, II Part, 7th Avenue,
Anuradhapura
025-2227638
025-2227637

Cooplife Insurance Limited
Akuressa
D.C.Wanigasekara Mawatha, New Bangam
Rd, Akuressa
041-3006003
041-2284878
Ambalangoda
26B ½, Galle Rd, Ambalangoda
091-2255875
091-2255581 (G)

....................................................................................................................
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Balangoda
133A 1/1, Brans Rathwaththa Mw,
Balangoda
045-2289522
045-2288438 (G)
Batticaloa
Co-op Council Bldg, Pioneer Rd, Batticaloa
065-2229896
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Chilaw
66, Kurunegala Rd, Chilaw
032-2224745
032-2220360 (G)

Kandy
100/2/1, Vindana Learner’s Bldg, Yatinuwara
Veediya
081-2205662
081-2202055 (G)

Embilipitiya
66 1/1, Pallegama Rd, Embilipitiya
047-2262162
047-2262163

Gampaha
No.114/1/1, Bauddaloka Mawatha,
Gampaha
033-2248601
033-2248617
Homagama
77, High Level Rd, Homagama
011-2893916
011-2895424
Jaffna
No.570, Hospital Road, Jaffna
021-2228071
021-2217496
Kaluthara
358/A, Kaluthara North, Kaluthara
034-2238252
034-2223450

Mannar
No.45, Hospital Road, Mannar
023-2250833
023-2251681

Kegalle
245, Kandy Rd, Kegalle
035-2231912
035-2222215

Galle
36, Sri Dewamiththa Mw, China Garden,
Galle
091-2223155
091-2223295

Matale
No. 577, Trincomalee Street, Matale
066-2224499
066-2232222

Kekirawa
12, Dambulla Rd, Kekirawa
025-2264996
025-2265945
025-2264995
Kiribathgoda
67 D/3, Kandy Rd, Kiribathgoda
011-2907920
011-2907859 (G)
Kilinochchi
C/O Pillaiyar Arul Vanachcholai, A9 Road,
Kilinochchi
021-2285792
021-2285791 (G)
Kurunegala
13 1/1, Rajapihilla Road, Kurunegala
037-2221915
037-2221749 (G)
Maharagama
218A 1/1, High Level Rd, Maharagama
011-2088744
011-2843422 (G)

....................................................................................................................
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Malabe
894/4A, Athurugiriya Road, Malabe
011-2077454
011-2185841

Matara
45A/2, Anagarika Dharmapala Mw, Matara
041-2237765
041-2230649 (G)
Metro
60/1/1, Maligawaththa New Rd, Colombo 10
011-2675470
011-2675468
Monaragala
72, Wellawaya Rd, Monaragala
055-2276155
055-2277533
Moratuwa
177 2/1, New Galle Rd, Moratuwa
011-2644841
011-2644893 (G)
Negombo
102, St. Nicholas Marcus Rd, Negombo
031-2228446
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Branch Network Contd.
Nikaweratiya
No.81, Maho Road, Nikaweratiya
037-2260996
037-2260945

Wennappuwa
Wenco Super Market, Chilaw Rd,
Wennappuwa
031-2255910
031-2253363 (G)

Nuwara Eliya
No.72, Park Rd, Nuwara Eliya
052-2235590
052-2235594

Regional Office For Life Insurance

Polonnaruwa
No.292/1, Batticaloa Road, Polonnaruwa
027-2226696
027-2227311
Puttalam
No.114/2, Kurunegala Road, Puttalam
032-2265292
032-2265366
Rathnapura
No.22, Kiriella Bld, Panadura Rd,
Moragahayata, Rathnapura
045-2233237
045-2233238
Trincomalee
No.316, Inner Harbor Road, Trincomalee
026-2062121
026-2062122
Vauniya
2nd Floor, Sathya Bld, 1st Cross Street,
Vavuniya
024-2227961
024-2227962

Colombo
60/1/1, Maligawaththa New Rd, Colombo
10
011-2675469
071-5362843
Nikaweratiya
No.81, Maho Road, Nikaweratiya
037-2260321
North
08, Maithreepala Senanayake Mw,
Anuradhapura
025-2227638
071-3842178
East
81, 2nd Floor, Bank Road, Badulla
055-2231694
071-7546390
Southern
36, Sri Dewamiththa Mw, China Garden,
Galle
091-2223295
071-4541163
DGM - Zone 1
13 1/1, Rajapihilla Road, Kurunegala
071-6810926

....................................................................................................................
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting
Notes

Notice is hereby given that the19th Annual General Meeting of Cooperative Insurance Company Limited is convened on June 25, 2017 at
“Grand Monarch Hotel, 527/7, Borella Road, Thalawathugoda at 10.00
a.m. when the following ordinary business will be transacted.

1. A member is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on
behalf of him/her. One ordinary share carries one voting right.
If a member is a corporate body, its representative must be
appointed by a proxy.

1. To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and the
Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st December
2016 with the Report of the Auditor’s thereon.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
3. A proxy form is enclosed for this purpose.

2. To declare a final dividend of Rs. 1.30 per share to shareholders
as at December 31, 2016 to be paid by distribution of ordinary
shares of the company as provided for in clause 122 of the
Articles of Association

4. The completed proxy form should be deposited at the Head
office of the company at No. 74/5, Co-operative Insurance
House, Grandpass Road, Colombo 14 or at the office of the
secretaries, Business Management Services Limited, No. 94 1/2,
York Street, Colombo 01 not less than 48 hours before holding
of the meeting.

3. To re-appoint Messrs SJMS Associates, Chartered Accountants,
as auditors of the company for the financial year ending
December 31, 2017 and to authorize the Board of Directors to
determine their remuneration.
4. To appoint new Directors to fill three vacancies created as a
result of the rotation of three directors, Mr. W.L.A. Peiris, Mr.
K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe and Mr. J.M.V.P. Jayasooriya in terms of
the Article 95,95 and 97 of the Articles of Association of the
company,
5. To transact any other business

By Order of the Board,

Business Management Services Ltd.
Secretaries to the Company
May 30, 2017

....................................................................................................................
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Form of Proxy
I/We.…………........................................................…............................................…..…..of………………………………………………………
….....................…........................….………………………………………….....….being

member

/

members

of

CO-OPERATIVE

INSURANCE

COMPANY LIMITED, hereby appoint….………………………………………………………………………NIC No…………………........................…
of………………………………………………………………………….…..as my / our proxy to represent me / us and vote on my / our behalf at the
19th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held at “Grand Monarch Hotel, No. 527/7, Borella Road, Thalawathugoda on June 25, 2017 at
10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof, and every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.
Signed this …………………………………. day of …………………… two thousand seventeen.

…………………………………….
Signature of shareholder

………………………………….
Signature of participant

Instructions as to Completion
1. Please perfect the form of proxy by filling in legibly your full name and address, signing in the space provided and filling in the date of signature.
2. If the appointer is a company or corporation, the form of proxy should be executed under its common seal or by a duly authorized officer of the
company or corporation in accordance with its articles of association or constitution.
3. The completed form of proxy should be deposited at the registered office of the company at No. 74/5, Co-operative Insurance House”, Grandpass
Road, Colombo 14 or at the office of the secretaries, Business Management Services Limited 94 ½, York Street, Colombo 01 not less than 48
hours before holding of the meeting.

....................................................................................................................

215

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

....................................................................................................................

216

...................................................................................................................

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Corporate Information
Name of the Company

Life Centre

Co-operative Insurance Company Limited (CICL).

Cooplife Insurance Limited
455, Co-op House, Galle Road

Legal Form

Colombo 03

A Public Limited Liability Company Incorporated in
Sri Lanka on August 11, 1997 under Companies Act
No. 17 of 1982. The Company was re-registered on
December 31, 2008 under Companies Act No. 07 of
2007. Co-operative Insurance Company Limited has
become a General Insurance Company licensed by the

Telephone : +94 (0)112 57 48 01

1st January 2015.
Company Registration Number
PB 834
Tax Payer Identification Number
TIN - 134007168
VAT Registration Number
134007168 - 7000
Balance Sheet Date
December 31
Principal Activities
of the Company are carrying on General Insurance
Business and providing services to its subsidiary
CoopLife Insurance Ltd which is carrying on Life
Insurance Business.

Auditors
SJMS Associates – Chartered Accountants
No.11,Castle Lane,
Colombo 04,

No: 74/5

-

Manager Information Technology

Mr. Ananda Godage Anupaseela -

Manager - Internal
Audit

Mr. Ramitha Bandara

Manager - Human
Resources

Ms. Preethimalee Wijerama

-

Manager - Legal

Commercial Bank

-

Chairman

Mr. K.R.K.N. Jayasinghe

-

Vice-Chairman

Mr. K.R.W Ranasinghe

-

Managing Director

Mr. D.P. Amaradeva

-

Director

Mr. K.J Sesiri

-

Director

Mr. R Sooriyaarachchi

-

Director

Consultant Actuaries - General Insurance

Mr. R.G.K. Rankothge

-

Director

NMG Financial Services Consulting Pte Ltd.

Mr. C.P. Jayasinghe

-

Director

30, Hill Street, #03-02A,

Mr. A.D.T.S. Palitha

-

Director

Singapore 179360

Mr. J. M.V. P. Jayasooriya

-

Director

Mr. P. P. D. S. Kularathne

-

Director

Life Insurance Fund & Gratuity Fund

Mr. R.M. B. M. Bandara

-

Director

Actuarial & Management

Mr. S.S. Weerasekara

-

Director

Consultants (Pvt) Ltd.

Sampath Bank
RDB Bank
Seylan Bank

1st Floor, 434, R.A. De Mel Mawatha, Colombo 03
Secretaries
Business Management Services Ltd.
94 ½, York Street

Corporate Management
-

Managing Director

-

Chief Operations
Officer / Principal Officer

Telephone : +94 (0)112 55 73 00 - 8

Mr. Laksiri Nawaratne

-

Manager – Finance

Facsimile: +94 (0)112 55 73 09

Mr. W.H Somathilleke

-

Consultant

E-mail: info@coopinsu.com

Mr. L.A.N.C Weerasinghe

-

Assistant General Manager
(Marketing Operations)

Web : www.ci.lk

Mr. Ravi Rathnayake

Mr. W. Lalith A. Peiris

Mr. Pubudu Wimalarathna

Colombo 14.

Manager Administration

People’s Bank

Directorate

Mr. K.R.W Ranasinghe

Grandpass Road,

-

Bankers

Colombo 01.
“Co-operative Insurance House”

Mr. H.L Rashmitha

